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ITEM 1.  BUSINESS

The Company

     Foodmaker owns, operates and franchises Jack In The Box, a chain of fast
food restaurants located principally in the western and southwestern United
States.  Until January 27, 1994, Foodmaker also owned Chi-Chi's, Inc. ("Chi-
Chi's"), a chain of full-service, casual Mexican restaurants located primarily
in the midwestern and midatlantic United States.

     On January 27, 1994, Foodmaker, Apollo Advisors, L.P. ("Apollo") and Green
Equity Investors, L.P. ("GEI"), whose general partner is Leonard Green &
Partners, (collectively, the "Investors"), acquired Restaurant Enterprises
Group, Inc. ("REGI"), a company that owns, operates and franchises various
restaurant chains including El Torito, Carrows and Coco's.
Contemporaneously, REGI changed its name to Family Restaurants, Inc.
("FRI").  Concurrently, Foodmaker contributed its entire Chi-Chi's Mexican
restaurant chain to FRI in exchange for a 39% equity interest in FRI and
other consideration (See Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements).

Jack In The Box

     Overview.  Jack In The Box is a leading regional competitor in the fast
food segment of the restaurant industry with system-wide sales of $1,049.9
million in 1994.  At October 2, 1994, there were 1,224 Jack In The Box
restaurants, of which 810 were operated by the Company and 414 were franchised.

     Jack In The Box's menu and marketing strategies are principally directed
toward adult fast food customers.  Jack In The Box offers a wider menu
selection than most of its major fast food competitors.  The Jack In The Box
menu features foods (such as the Teriyaki Bowl and Chicken Caesar Sandwich)
that are not commonly offered in the fast food hamburger segment, as well as
more traditional fast food products (such as hamburgers and french fries).
The Company believes that a key competitive strength of Jack In The Box is
its ability to introduce new and distinctive, high quality menu items that
appeal to the changing preferences of its adult guests.

     Jack In The Box was the first restaurant chain to develop and expand the
concept of drive-thru only restaurants, and drive-thru sales presently
account for approximately 60% of the sales by Company-operated restaurants.
Over the years the Jack In The Box concept has evolved to include more inside
seating in its restaurants.  Most restaurants are located in freestanding
buildings with seating capacities ranging from 24 to 85 seats and are open
approximately 18 hours a day.

     History.  The first Jack In The Box restaurant, which offered only
drive-thru service, commenced operation in 1950, and Jack In The Box expanded
its operations through the late 1960's to approximately 300 restaurants in 1968.
After Ralston Purina Company purchased the Company in 1968, Jack In The Box
underwent a major expansion program in an effort to penetrate the eastern and
midwestern markets, and the business grew to over 1,000 units by 1979.  In
1979, Foodmaker decided to concentrate its efforts and resources in the
western and southwestern markets, which it believed offered the greatest
growth and profit potential.  Accordingly, Foodmaker sold 232 restaurants in
the eastern and midwestern markets and redeployed the sale proceeds in its
western and southwestern markets where the Company had a well-established
market position and better growth prospects.

     Operating Strategy.  Jack In The Box's operating strategy is to: (i)
increase per store average sales through the continued introduction and
promotion of distinctive, high quality menu items; (ii) focus on improving
sales and margins through increased emphasis on guest service, food quality and



cost management; and (iii) increase the number of Jack In The Box restaurants
through the addition of Company-operated and franchisee-developed restaurants
in Jack In The Box's existing and contiguous markets.

     Menu Strategy.  Jack In The Box's menu strategy is to provide new and
distinctive, high quality products that represent good value and appeal to
the changing preferences of its targeted customers.  The Jack In The Box menu
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features a wide variety of approximately 45-50 fast food menu items,
including hamburgers, specialty sandwiches, salads, Mexican foods, finger
foods, breakfast foods, side items and desserts.

     Management believes that Jack In The Box's ability to develop new and
unique menu items has been a traditional strength of the Company.  Jack In The
Box continuously develops and tests new items for its menu and seeks to improve
existing products.  New products are developed in a corporate test kitchen
and then introduced in one or more of Foodmaker's research and development
restaurants to ensure that product consistency, high quality standards and
profitability can be maintained and to determine preliminary guest response.
Operating and training systems have been developed that enable Jack In The
Box to respond quickly to implement menu changes while achieving quality and
profit objectives.  If a new item proves successful at the research and
development level, it is generally tested in selected markets, both with and
without marketing support, and if it proves successful, the item is
incorporated into the standard Jack In The Box menu.  Jack In The Box has
introduced over 50 new products in the last ten years.  More than 40 new
products are in various stages of development, and Jack In The Box currently
plans to introduce an average of three new products per year.

     Hamburgers represent the largest segment of the fast food industry;
accordingly, Jack In The Box continues to maintain hamburgers as principal
menu items.  Hamburgers, including the Grilled Sourdough Burger and the
Ultimate Cheeseburger, accounted for approximately 24% of Jack In The Box's
fiscal 1994 sales.  However, management believes that, as a result of its
diverse menu, Jack In The Box restaurants are less dependent on the
commercial success of one or a few products than other fast food chains, and
that Jack In The Box's menu appeals to a broad range of food preferences.

     Expansion Strategy.  The Company's goal is to achieve targeted levels of
media pressure in Jack In The Box's existing major markets through the
construction of new restaurants primarily by the Company and, to a lesser
extent, by franchisees.  The Company's current plan calls for opening
approximately 300-350 new Company-operated restaurants and approximately 40
new franchised restaurants over the next five years.  The Company has
historically acquired and will continue to consider the acquisition of
existing restaurants for conversion to Jack In The Box restaurants.

     The following table sets forth the growth in Company-operated and
franchised Jack In The Box restaurants since the beginning of fiscal year 1990:

                                                   Fiscal year
                                  --------------------------------------------
                                  1994      1993      1992      1991      1990
                                  ----      ----      ----      ----      ----
Company-operated Restaurants:
  Opened                            54        10        51        46        41
  Sold to franchisees               (4)      (11)      (18)       (7)       (2)
  Closed                            (9)       (4)       (4)       (7)       (5)
  Acquired from franchisees         44        10         7         2        11
  Ending number                    810       725       720       684       650
Franchised Restaurants:
  Opened                             8        13        21        16        14
  Acquired from Company              4        11        18         7         2
  Closed                            (1)       (2)       (2)       (1)       (1)
  Sold to Company                  (44)      (10)       (7)       (2)      (11)



  Ending number                    414       447       435       405       385
System Total                     1,224     1,172     1,155     1,089     1,035
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     The following table summarizes the locations of the Jack In The Box
restaurants at October 2, 1994:

               Number of restaurants                    Number of restaurants
               ----------------------                   ---------------------
               Company-                                 Company-
               operated    Franchised                   operated    Franchised
               --------    ----------                   --------    ----------
Arizona. . . . .  59           46      Nevada. . . . . . .  --           21
California . . . 363          235      New Mexico. . . . .  --            2
Colorado . . . .  --           10      Oregon. . . . . . .  --            2
Hawaii . . . . .  30            3      Texas . . . . . . . 239           71
Idaho. . . . . .   5           --      Washington. . . . .  64           --
Illinois . . . .  12           --      Hong Kong . . . . .  --            7
Louisiana. . . .  --            5      Mexico. . . . . . .  --            9
Missouri . . . .  38            3      Total . . . . . . . 810          414

     Site selections for all new Jack In The Box restaurants are made after an
extensive review of demographic data and other information relating to
population density, restaurant visibility and access, available parking,
surrounding businesses and opportunities for market concentration.  Jack In
The Box restaurants to be developed by franchisees are built to Company
specifications on sites which have been approved by the Company.

     The Company currently uses two configurations in building new Jack In The
Box restaurants.  The larger restaurants seat an average of 82 customers and
require a larger customer base to justify the required investment of
approximately $1.3 million, including land.  The smaller restaurants seat an
average of 48 customers, require significantly less land on which to build,
and cost approximately $150,000 less to build and equip than do the larger
restaurants.  Management believes that the flexibility afforded by the
alternative configurations enables the Company to match the restaurant
configuration with specific demographic, economic and geographic
characteristics of the site.

     Restaurant Operations.  Significant resources are devoted to ensuring
that all Jack In The Box restaurants offer the highest quality of food and
service.  Emphasis is placed on ensuring that quality ingredients are
delivered to the restaurants, restaurant food production systems are
continuously developed and improved, and all employees are dedicated to
delivering consistently high quality food and service.  Through its network
of management personnel, including regional vice presidents, area managers,
restaurant managers and corporate quality assurance personnel, the
Company standardizes specifications for the preparation and service of its
food, the maintenance and repair of its premises and the appearance and
conduct of its employees.  Operating specifications and procedures are
documented in a series of manuals and video presentations.  Most restaurants,
including franchised units, receive at least 6 full inspections and 26
limited reviews each year.

     Each Jack In The Box restaurant is operated by a Company-employed manager
or franchisee who normally receives a minimum of eight weeks of management
training.  Foodmaker's management training program involves a combination of
classroom instruction and on-the-job training in specially designated
training restaurants.  Restaurant managers and supervisory personnel train
other restaurant employees in accordance with detailed procedures and
guidelines prescribed by Foodmaker, utilizing training aids including video
equipment available at each location.  The restaurant managers are directly
responsible for the operation of the restaurants, including product quality,
food handling safety,  cleanliness, service, inventory, cash control and the
appearance and conduct of employees.

     Restaurant managers are supervised by approximately 50 area managers, each



of whom is responsible for approximately 15 restaurants.  The area managers are
under the supervision of 10 regional vice presidents who are supervised in
turn by a vice president of operations.  Regional vice presidents, area
managers and restaurant management are eligible for bonuses of up to 40% of
restaurant profit improvement and up to 20% of their base salary under the
Company's performance system for which goals and objectives are generally
established quarterly.

                                     -3-

     Jack In The Box's quality assurance program is designed to maintain high
standards for the food and materials and food preparation procedures used by
Company-operated and franchised restaurants.  Foodmaker maintains product
specifications and approves sources for obtaining such products.  Products
are randomly inspected by the Company's quality assurance personnel as they
arrive at Foodmaker's distribution centers to ensure that they conform to
Foodmaker standards. These items then are distributed to individual
restaurants through a network of Company-operated delivery trucks.

     Foodmaker provides purchasing, warehouse and distribution services for both
Company-operated and franchised restaurants.  While substantially all Jack In
The Box franchisees utilize these services to the full extent available, they
are permitted to purchase products directly from any approved source.  The
Company believes that the service, prices and terms provided to its Jack In
The Box franchisees through its distribution centers are at least as
favorable as franchisees could obtain from third parties.  Some products,
primarily dairy and bakery items, are delivered to both Company-operated and
franchised restaurants directly by approved suppliers.

     The primary commodities purchased by Jack In The Box restaurants are beef,
poultry, seafood and produce.  The Company monitors the current and future
prices and availability of the primary commodities purchased by the Company
in order to minimize the impact of fluctuations in price and availability,
and make advance purchases of commodities when considered to be advantageous.
However, the Company remains subject to price fluctuations in certain
commodities, particularly produce.  All essential food and beverage products
are available, or upon short notice can be made available, from alternative
qualified suppliers.

     Foodmaker maintains centralized financial and accounting controls for
Company-operated Jack In The Box restaurants which it believes are important
in analyzing profit margins.  Jack In The Box utilizes a specially designed
computerized reporting and cash register system on a chain-wide basis which
provides point-of-sale transaction data and accumulation of pertinent
marketing information.  Sales data are collected and analyzed on a weekly
basis by management.

     Franchising Program.  Jack In The Box's franchising strategy is directed
toward franchisee development of restaurants in existing non-primary markets
and selected primary markets.  The Company offers development agreements for
construction of one or more new restaurants over a defined period of time and
in a defined geographic area.  Multi-unit developers are required to prepay
one-half of the franchise fees for restaurants to be opened in the future and
may forfeit such fees and lose their rights to future developments if they do
not maintain the required schedule of openings.  At present, most franchisees
operate no more than three restaurants.  The Company's strategy is to grant
franchises in a smaller metropolitan area to a single franchisee in order to
achieve operating efficiencies and to grant franchises for a larger
metropolitan area to several franchisees in order to maximize development of
the area.

     Another important aspect of the franchising program has been the conversion
of existing Company-operated restaurants to franchised restaurants.  Although
franchised units totaled 414 of Jack In The Box's 1,224 restaurants at
October 2, 1994, the ratio of franchised to Company-operated restaurants is
still low relative to Jack In The Box's major competitors.  The Company views
its non-franchised Jack In The Box units as a potential resource which, on a
selected basis, can be sold to a franchisee to generate additional immediate



cash flow and earnings while still maintaining future cash flow and earnings
through franchise rents and royalties.

     Jack In The Box's current franchise agreement provides for an initial
franchise fee of $25,000 per restaurant.  This agreement generally provides
for royalties of 4% of gross sales (royalties are 2% of gross sales for the
first two years of the agreement and 4% of gross sales thereafter under
agreements with respect to certain franchisee-built restaurants), a marketing
fee of 5% of gross sales (although some existing agreements provide for a 4%
rate) and a 20-year term.  In connection with the conversion of a Company-
operated restaurant, the restaurant equipment and the
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right to do business at that location, known as "Trading Area Rights," are sold
to the franchisee, in most cases for cash.  The aggregate price is equal to the
negotiated fair market value of the restaurant as a going concern, which
depends on various factors including the history of the facility, its location
and its cash flow potential.  In addition, the land and building are leased or
subleased to the franchisee at a negotiated rent, generally equal to the
greater of a minimum base rent or a percentage of gross sales (typically
8 1/2%).  The franchisee is required to pay property taxes, insurance and
maintenance costs.

     Advertising and Promotion.  Jack In The Box engages in substantial
marketing programs and activities.  Advertising costs are paid from a fund
created by the marketing fees paid by franchisees together with an amount
contributed each year by the Company equal to at least 5% of the gross sales of
its Company-operated restaurants.  Jack In The Box's use of advertising media
is limited to regional and local campaigns both on spot television and radio
and in print media.  Jack In The Box does not advertise nationally.  Jack In
The Box spent approximately $85 million on advertising and promotions in fiscal
1994, including franchisee contributions and contributions from certain of
its suppliers under co-operative advertising programs.  Jack In The Box's
current advertising campaign promotes new and established Jack In The Box
products on an individual basis in a series of creative 30 second television
and radio spot advertisements.  The Company also allocates funds for local
marketing purposes.  Franchisees are encouraged to, and generally do, spend
funds in addition to those expended by the Company for local marketing
programs.

     Employees.  At October 2, 1994, Jack In The Box had approximately 26,170
employees, of whom 24,430 were restaurant employees, 460 were corporate
personnel, 365 were distribution employees and 915 were field management and
administrative personnel.  Employees are paid on an hourly basis, except
restaurant managers, corporate and field management and administrative
personnel.  A majority of Jack In The Box's restaurant employees are employed
on a part-time, hourly basis to provide services necessary during peak
periods of restaurant operations.  Jack In The Box has not experienced any
significant work stoppages and believes its labor relations are good.

     Jack In The Box competes in the job market for qualified employees and
believes its wage rates are comparable to those of its competitors.

Trademarks and Service Marks

     The Jack In The Box name is of material importance to the Company and is a
registered trademark and service mark in the United States and in certain
foreign countries.  In addition, the Company has registered numerous service
marks and trademarks for use in its business, including the Jack In The Box
logo, Breakfast Jack and Jumbo Jack names and Crescent Breakfast name and
design.

Competition and Markets

     In general, the restaurant business is highly competitive and is affected
by competitive changes in a geographic area, changes in the public's eating
habits and preferences and local and national economic conditions affecting



consumer spending habits, population trends and traffic patterns.  Key
competitive factors in the industry are the quality and value of the food
products offered, quality and speed of service, advertising, name
identification, restaurant location and attractiveness of facilities.

     Each Jack In The Box restaurant competes directly and indirectly with a
large number of national and regional chain operators as well as with
locally-owned fast food restaurants and coffee shops.  In selling franchises,
Jack In The Box competes with many other restaurant franchisors, and some of
its competitors have substantially greater financial resources and higher total
sales volume.

                                     -5-

Regulation

     Each Company-operated and franchised restaurant is subject to regulation
by federal agencies and to licensing and regulation by state and local health,
sanitation, safety, fire and other departments.  Difficulties or failures in
obtaining any required licensing or approval could result in delays or
cancellations in the opening of new restaurants.

     The Company is also subject to federal and a substantial number of state
laws regulating the offer and sale of franchises.  Such laws impose registration
and disclosure requirements on franchisors in the offer and sale of
franchises and may also apply substantive standards, including limitations on
the ability of franchisors to terminate franchisees and alter franchise
arrangements, to the relationship between franchisor and franchisee.  The
Company believes it is operating in substantial compliance with applicable
laws and regulations governing its operations.

     The Company is subject to the Fair Labor Standards Act and various state
laws governing such matters as minimum wages, overtime and other working
conditions.  Significant numbers of the Company's food service personnel are
paid at rates related to the federal and state minimum wage, and accordingly,
increases in the minimum wage increase the Company's labor costs.

     In addition, various proposals which would require employers to provide
health insurance for all of their employees are being considered from time-
to-time in Congress and various states.  The imposition of any requirement
that the Company provide health insurance to all employees would have a
material adverse impact on the consolidated operations and financial
condition of the Company and the restaurant industry.

     The Company is also subject to various federal, state and local laws
regulating the discharge of materials into the environment.  The cost of
developing restaurants has increased as a result of the Company's compliance
with such laws.  Such costs relate primarily to the necessity of obtaining
more land, landscaping and below surface storm drainage and the cost of more
expensive equipment necessary to decrease the amount of effluent emitted into
the air and ground.

ITEM 2.  PROPERTIES

     At October 2, 1994, Foodmaker owned 547 Jack In The Box restaurant
buildings, including 328 located on land covered by ground leases.  In
addition, it leased 579 restaurants where both the land and building are
leased.  Some of these restaurants are operated by franchisees.  The remaining
lease terms of ground leases range from approximately one year to 46 years,
including renewal option periods.  The remaining lease terms of Foodmaker's
other leases range from approximately one year to 41 years, including renewal
option periods.  In addition, at October 2, 1994, franchisees directly owned
or leased 98 restaurants.

                                         Company-    Franchise-
                                         operated     operated      Total
                                        restaurants  restaurants  restaurants
                                        -----------  -----------  -----------



Company-owned restaurant buildings:
  On Company-owned land . . . . . . . . .   131           88          219
  On ground-leased land . . . . . . . . .   271           57          328
                                            ---          ---        -----
    Subtotal. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   402          145          547
Company-leased restaurant buildings . . .   408          171          579
Franchise directly-owned or
 directly-leased restaurant buildings        --           98           98
                                            ---          ---        -----
Total restaurant buildings. . . . . . . .   810          414        1,224
                                            ===          ===        =====

     The Company's leases generally provide for the payment of fixed rentals
(with cost-of-living index adjustments) plus real estate taxes, insurance and
other expenses; in addition, many of the leases provide for contingent rentals
of between 2% and 10% of the restaurant's gross sales.  The Company has
generally been able to
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renew its restaurant leases as they expire at then current market rates.  At
October 2, 1994, the leases had initial terms expiring as follows:

                                                Number of restaurants
                                              ----------------------------
  Years initial                                                   Land and
   lease term                                 Ground              building
    expires                                   leases               leases
  -------------                               ------              ---------
   1995-1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    108                  138
   2000-2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     32                   15
   2005-2009 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    121                  329
   2010 and later. . . . . . . . . . . . . .     67                   97
                                                ---                  ---
                                                328                  579
                                                ===                  ===

     In addition, the Company owns its principal executive offices in San Diego,
California, consisting of approximately 150,000 square feet.

     The Company owns one warehouse and leases an additional seven with
remaining terms ranging from three years to 19 years, including renewal option
periods.

     Substantially all the Company's real and personal property are pledged as
collateral for various components of the Company's long-term debt.

ITEM 3.  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

     Various claims and legal proceedings are pending against the Company in
various state and federal courts; many of those proceedings are in the states
of California, Washington, Nevada and Idaho and in Federal Court, Western
District of Washington at Seattle seeking monetary damages and other relief
relating to the outbreak of food-borne illness ("the Outbreak") attributed to
hamburgers served at Jack In The Box restaurants.  The Company, in
consultation with its insurance carriers and attorneys, does not anticipate
that the total liability on all such lawsuits and claims will exceed the
coverage available under its applicable insurance policies.

     Actions were filed on July 2, 1993, in the Superior Court of California,
County of San Diego, by certain of the Company's franchisees against the
Company, The Vons Companies, Inc., ("Vons") and other suppliers (Syed Ahmad,
et al, versus Foodmaker, Inc., et al), claiming damages from reduced sales
and profits due to the Outbreak.  After extensive negotiations, settlements
were reached with all but one of its franchisees.  During 1993, the Company
provided approximately $44.5 million to cover the settlements and associated
costs, including a then anticipated settlement with the remaining franchisee.
On January 14, 1994, the non-settling Franchisee filed two substantially



identical suits against the Company and The Vons Companies in Superior Court
of California, County of San Diego and in Federal Court, Southern District of
California (Ira Fischbein, et al versus Foodmaker, Inc., et al) claiming
damages from reduced sales, lost profits and reduced value of the franchise
due to the Outbreak.  The Company has engaged legal counsel and is vigorously
defending the actions in Federal Court.  The suit in Superior Court has been
voluntarily dismissed.  The Company and the franchisee are actively engaged
in settlement discussions.

     The Company on July 19, 1993, filed a cross-complaint against Vons and
other suppliers seeking reimbursement for all damages, costs and expenses
incurred in connection with the Outbreak.  On or about January 18, 1994, Vons
filed a cross complaint against Foodmaker and others in this action alleging
certain contractual and tort liabilities and seeking damages in unspecified
amounts and a declaration of the rights and obligations of the parties.

     In April 1993, a class action, In re Foodmaker, Inc./Jack In The Box
Securities Litigation, was filed in Federal Court, Western District of
Washington at Seattle against the Company, its Chairman, and the President of
the Jack In The Box Division on behalf of all persons who acquired the
Company's common stock between March 4, 1992 and January 22, 1993 seeking
damages in an unspecified amount as well as punitive damages.  In general
terms, the
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complaint alleges that there were false and misleading statements
in the Company's March 4, 1992 prospectus and in certain public statements
and filings in 1992 and 1993, including claims that the defendants
disseminated false information regarding the Company's food quality standards
and internal quality control procedures.  The Company has engaged legal
counsel and is vigorously defending the action.

     The Federal Trade Commission is investigating whether the Company violated
the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 (the "HSR Act") when
the Company's former subsidiary, Chi-Chi's, Inc., acquired Consul Restaurant
Corporation in October 1992 without first complying with the reporting and
waiting requirements of the HSR Act.  The Company later made the filing as it
was preparing for the sale of Chi-Chi's.  The Company has engaged counsel in
connection with the investigation and on August 17, 1994, counsel for the
Company received a request, preliminary in nature, for information and
documents.  The HSR Act provides for a penalty of up to $10,000 per day for
failure to comply with the above requirements.  Management believes that any
potential penalty, if assessed, will not have a material impact on the
Company.

     The amount of liability from the claims and actions described above cannot
be determined with certainty, but in the opinion of management, based in part
upon advice from legal counsel, the ultimate liability from all pending legal
proceedings, asserted legal claims and known potential legal claims which are
probable of assertion will not materially affect the consolidated financial
position or operations of the Company.

     The U.S. Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") had proposed adjustments to tax
liabilities of $17 million (exclusive of interest) for the Company's federal
income tax returns for fiscal years 1986 through 1988.  A final report has
not been issued but agreement has been reached to satisfy these proposed
adjustments at approximately $1.3 million (exclusive of $.8 million
interest).  The IRS examinations of the Company's federal income tax returns
for fiscal years 1989 and 1990 resulted in the issuance of proposed
adjustments to tax liabilities aggregating $2.2 million (exclusive of $.7
million interest).  The Company has filed a protest with the Regional Office
of Appeals of the IRS contesting the proposed assessments.  Management
believes that adequate provision for income taxes has been made.

ITEM 4.  SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

     No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth



quarter ended October 2, 1994.
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ITEM 5.  MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

     The following table sets forth the high and low closing sales prices for
the common stock during the quarters indicated, as reported on the New York
Stock Exchange-Composite Transactions:

                  16 weeks ended         12 weeks ended         13 weeks ended
                  --------------   ---------------------------- --------------
                   Jan. 17, 1993   Apr. 11, 1993   Jul. 4, 1993   Oct. 3, 1993
                   -------------   -------------   ------------   ------------
High . . . . . . .        14           13 5/8         12 3/8         11 1/2
Low. . . . . . . .     9 3/4            7 3/8          9 5/8          8 7/8

                  16 weeks ended                 12 weeks ended
                  --------------   -------------------------------------------
                   Jan. 23, 1994   Apr. 17, 1994  Jul. 10, 1994   Oct. 2, 1994
                   -------------   -------------  -------------   ------------
High . . . . . . .    10 1/4           10 1/2              8              6
Low  . . . . . . .     8 7/8            7 5/8          5 1/4          5 1/8

     Foodmaker has not paid any cash or other dividends during its last two
fiscal years and does not anticipate paying dividends in the foreseeable future.
The Company's credit agreements prohibit and its public debt instruments
restrict the Company's right to declare or pay dividends or make other
distributions with respect to shares of its capital stock.

     As of October 2, 1994, there were approximately 689 holders of record.
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ITEM 6.  SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

     The selected data presented in the following table summarizes certain
consolidated financial information concerning the Company and is derived from
financial statements which have been audited by KPMG Peat Marwick LLP,
independent certified public accountants.  Chi-Chi's results of operations
are included through January 27, 1994, the date of Chi-Chi's sale.  The
capital structure  changed as the result of the 1992 recapitalization of the
Company (See Note 4 to consolidated financial statements).  The Company's
fiscal year is 52 or 53 weeks, ending the Sunday closest to September 30.

                                             52 weeks     53 weeks     52 weeks     52 weeks      52 weeks
                                               ended        ended        ended        ended         ended
Statement of Operations Data:                 10/2/94      10/3/93      9/27/92      9/29/91       9/30/90
- - - -----------------------------                 -------      -------      -------      -------       -------
                                                                                                         
Revenues:
  Restaurant sales . . . . . . . . . . . .  $  843,038   $1,088,269   $1,061,904   $1,019,927   $  985,797
  Distribution sales . . . . . . . . . . .     171,711      108,546      104,041       94,815       94,259
  Franchise rents and royalties. . . . . .      33,740       35,232       38,803       35,277       35,901
  Other revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . .       4,837        8,680       14,585        7,140        3,444
                                             ---------    ---------    ---------    ---------    ---------
  Total revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . .   1,053,326    1,240,727    1,219,333    1,157,159    1,119,401
                                             ---------    ---------    ---------    ---------    ---------
Costs of revenues <F1> . . . . . . . . . .     928,511    1,124,918    1,004,467      962,212      919,467
Equity in loss of FRI  . . . . . . . . . .       2,108           --           --           --           --
Selling, general and administrative
 expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     100,764      124,422      103,697       95,095       92,400
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . .      55,201       57,586       72,455       93,573       94,676
                                             ---------    ---------    ---------    ---------    ---------
Earnings (loss) before income taxes
 (benefit), extraordinary item, and
 cumulative effect of changes in
 accounting principles . . . . . . . . . .     (33,258)     (66,199)      38,714        6,279       12,858
Income taxes (benefit) . . . . . . . . . .       3,010      (22,071)      16,818        5,930        5,370
                                             ---------    ---------    ---------    ---------    ---------
Earnings (loss) before extraordinary item
 and cumulative effect of changes in
 accounting principles . . . . . . . . . .     (36,268)     (44,128)      21,896          349        7,488
Extraordinary item - loss on early
 extinguishment of debt, net of income
 taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      (3,302)          --      (63,651)          --           --
Cumulative effect on prior years of



 adopting SFAS 106 and SFAS 109 <F2> . . .          --      (53,980)          --           --           --
                                             ---------    ---------    ---------    ---------    ---------
Net earnings (loss). . . . . . . . . . . .  $  (39,570)  $  (98,108)  $  (41,755)  $      349   $    7,488
                                             =========    =========    =========    =========    =========
Balance Sheet Data (at end of period):
- - - -------------------------------------
Current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $  107,486   $   93,534   $  106,311   $   71,534   $   67,860
Current liabilities. . . . . . . . . . . .     147,530      202,194      153,851      185,022      151,820
Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     740,285      897,280      915,487      864,848      889,325
Long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     447,822      500,460      501,083      629,291      686,546
Stockholders' equity . . . . . . . . . . .     100,051      139,132      246,933       50,535       50,186
- - - ------------------------------------------
<FN>
  <F1>  Reflects a provision of  $44.5 million for the year ended October 3, 1993 to cover franchisee
        settlements and associated costs related to the Outbreak of food-borne illness.
  <F2>  See Item 7, "New Accounting Standards".
</FN>
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ITEM 7.  MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
         RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results of Operations

     Fiscal 1994 Compared to Fiscal 1993.  Fiscal 1994 includes 52 weeks; fiscal
1993 includes 53 weeks.  On January 27, 1994, the Company contributed its
entire Chi-Chi's Mexican restaurant chain to Family Restaurants, Inc. ("FRI")
in exchange for an approximate 39% equity interest in FRI and other
consideration including cash, debt assumption and a warrant to acquire
additional shares as described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.  The consolidated statements of operations, therefore, include
Chi-Chi's results of operations only for the 16 weeks (first fiscal quarter)
ended in January 1994, and for the 53 weeks ended October  3, 1993.

     Sales by Jack In The Box Company-operated restaurants increased $36.0
million, or 5.3%, to $719.8 million in 1994 from $683.8 million in 1993,
principally due to an increase in the average number of Company-operated
restaurants to 761 in 1994 from 717 in 1993, partially offset by the
inclusion of an additional week of sales in  1993.  The increase in average
number of Company-operated restaurants was principally due to opening 54 new
Company restaurants and acquiring 44 restaurants from franchisees.  Per store
average sales for comparable restaurants ("PSA") increased approximately 2.7%
in 1994 as compared to 1993, as sales recovered from the depressed levels
subsequent to January 1993 when Jack In The Box was linked to an outbreak of
food-borne illness ("the Outbreak").  Chi-Chi's sales included in the
consolidated financial statements were $123.2 million in 1994 and $404.5
million in 1993.

     Distribution sales of food and supplies to franchisees and others increased
$63.2 million to $171.7 million in 1994 from $108.5 million in 1993 primarily
due to the recognition of $63.6 million in sales to Chi-Chi's subsequent to
its sale to FRI in January 1994.  Distribution sales to Chi-Chi's while it
was a subsidiary of the Company were previously eliminated in consolidation.

     Jack In The Box franchise rents and royalties decreased to $33.6 million in
1994 from $34.0 million in 1993. PSA increases at franchisee-operated
restaurants were more than offset by a decline in the average number of
domestic franchisee-operated restaurants to 412 in 1994 from 439 in 1993,
which was principally due to the purchase by the Company of 44 franchised
restaurants .  Chi-Chi's franchise rents and royalties included in the
consolidated financial statements were $.1 million in 1994 and $1.2 million
in 1993.

     Other revenues for Jack In The Box increased to $4.3 million in 1994 from
$4.1 million in 1993.  The increase is principally due to a $2.2 million
increase in interest earned on cash proceeds from the sale of Chi-Chi's,
offset by a $2.1 million decline in gains and fees realized from the
conversion of Company-operated Jack In The Box restaurants to franchises,
which decreased to 4 in 1994 from 11 in 1993.  Chi-Chi's other revenues
included in the consolidated financial statements were $.5 million in 1994
and $4.6 million in 1993.



     Jack In The Box restaurant costs of sales increased $10.9 million, or 5.4%,
to $211.9 million in 1994 from $201.0 million in 1993, principally due to the
increase in restaurant sales.  Restaurant costs of sales were 29.4% of
restaurant sales in both 1994 and 1993.  Chi-Chi's restaurant costs of sales
included in the consolidated financial statements were $32.7 million in 1994
and $106.9 million in 1993.

     Jack In The Box restaurant operating costs increased $23.9 million, or
6.1%, to $414.6 million in 1994 from $390.7 million in 1993, primarily due to
the increase in the average number of Company-operated restaurants, variable
costs associated with increased sales in 1994, and in part due to increased
occupancy costs.  Chi-Chi's restaurant operating costs included in the
consolidated financial statements were $80.7 million in 1994 and $253.7
million in 1993.

     Costs of distribution sales increased $61.0 million to $165.8 million in
1994 from $104.8 million in 1993, consistent with the increase in distribution
sales.
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     Jack In The Box franchised restaurant costs, which normally consist of
rents and depreciation on properties leased to franchisees and other
miscellaneous costs, decreased $44.4 million to $22.7 million in 1994 from
$67.1 million in 1993, principally due to the inclusion in 1993 of $44.5
million of settlements and assistance provided to franchisees as described in
Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.  Chi-Chi's franchised
restaurant costs included in the consolidated financial statements were $.1
million in 1994 and $.6 million in 1993.

     Selling, general and administrative expenses for Jack In The Box decreased
to $91.7 million in 1994 from $93.2 million in 1993, principally due to a $5.7
million gain recognized from the sale of Chi-Chi's.  Expenses in 1994 also
reflect the recognition of (1) a charge of $3.5 million principally for the
write-down of assets to net realizable values and providing for costs of
closing seven older, under-performing restaurants with short remaining lease
terms, (2) $2.0 million in severance expenses and associated costs resulting
from the elimination of approximately 80 administrative positions, and (3)
$1.1 million for write-offs principally associated with replacement of signs
at substantially all of the Company-operated restaurants in conjunction with
the exterior enhancement project.  Chi-Chi's selling, general and
administrative expenses included in the consolidated financial statements
were $9.1 million in 1994 and $31.2 million in 1993.

     The Company recognized a loss of $2.1 million relating to its 39% equity in
the operations of FRI for the eight months from January 27, 1994, the date of
FRI's acquisition, through September 25, 1994, the end of FRI's third
quarter.  See Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

     Interest expense decreased $2.4 million to $55.2 million in 1994 from $57.6
million in 1993 due to the repayment of $79 million of bank debt offset
partially by the addition of an approximate $70 million finance lease
obligation.

     Considering the sale of Chi-Chi's combined with the Company's recent
losses, the rules under SFAS 109 required the Company to provide in 1994 a
non-cash valuation allowance of approximately $14 million for previously
recognized tax benefits, resulting in an income tax expense rather than a tax
benefit, associated with the Company's loss for 1994.  The U.S. Internal
Revenue Service ("IRS") had proposed adjustments to tax liabilities of $17
million (exclusive of interest) for the Company's federal income tax returns
for fiscal years 1986 through 1988.  A final report has not been issued but
agreement has been reached to satisfy these proposed adjustments at
approximately $1.3 million (exclusive of $.8 million interest).  The IRS
examinations of the Company's federal income tax returns for fiscal years
1989 and 1990 resulted in the issuance of proposed adjustments to tax
liabilities aggregating $2.2 million (exclusive of $.7 million interest).
The Company has filed a protest with the Regional Office of Appeals of the



IRS contesting the proposed assessments.  Management believes that adequate
provision for income taxes has been made.

     The Company incurred an extraordinary loss of $5.1 million, less currently
recognizable income tax benefits of $1.8 million, on the early extinguishment
of debt. The Company utilized cash proceeds from the sale of Chi-Chi's to
repay all of the debt outstanding under its then existing bank credit
facility, which was terminated, and all of the remaining 13 1/2% Senior Notes.

     Fiscal 1993 Compared to Fiscal 1992.  Fiscal 1993 includes 53 weeks; fiscal
1992 includes 52 weeks.  Total revenues increased $21.4 million, or 1.8%,
from $1,219.3 million in 1992 to $1,240.7 million in 1993.  Sales by Company-
operated restaurants increased $26.4 million, or 2.5%, from $1,061.9 million
in 1992 to $1,088.3 million in 1993, principally due to the inclusion of an
additional week of sales in fiscal year 1993.   The sales improvement also
results from an increase in the average number of Company-operated
restaurants from 681 Jack In The Box restaurants and 175 Chi-Chi's
restaurants in 1992 to 717 and 200, respectively, in 1993, offset by
decreases in per store average sales for comparable restaurants ("PSA").

     In January 1993, the Company was linked to an Outbreak of food-borne
illness attributed to hamburgers served at Jack In The Box restaurants.  Prior
to the Outbreak, Jack In The Box experienced a 6.2% PSA increase in the first
quarter of fiscal 1993.  However, subsequent to the Outbreak, Jack In The Box
experienced PSA declines of 22.2%,
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9.2% and 8.8%, respectively, in the second, third and fourth quarters of 1993,
resulting in an annual PSA decline of 7.4% in fiscal 1993 as compared to 1992.

     Chi-Chi's PSA declined 5.2% in 1993 due, in part, to the Company's decision
to temporarily slow refurbishment plans in order to preserve capital and due
to the negative impact of the severe bad weather in certain geographical
areas where Chi-Chi's has a high concentration of restaurants.

     Distribution sales of food and supplies to franchisees and others increased
$4.5 million, or 4.3%, from $104.0 million in 1992 to $108.5 million in 1993.
The increase is due to the inclusion of an additional week of sales in 1993
and an increase in the average number of franchise and other restaurants
serviced by the Company.

     Franchise rents and royalties decreased $3.6 million from $38.8 million in
1992 to $35.2 million in 1993, principally due to sales declines at Jack In
The Box franchisee-operated restaurants and rent concessions provided by the
Company to franchisees subsequent to the Outbreak.  Chi-Chi's franchise rents
and royalties decreased due to the Consul acquisition, which resulted in an
approximate 45% reduction in the average number of franchisee-operated Chi-
Chi's restaurants in 1993 as compared to 1992.

     Other revenues decreased $5.9 million from $14.6 million in 1992 to $8.7
million in 1993, primarily due to a decline in the number of conversions of
Company-operated Jack In The Box restaurants to franchises from 18 in 1992 to
11 in 1993.

     Costs of revenues increased $120.4 million to $1,124.9 million in 1993 from
$1,004.5 million in 1992, reflecting the increase in direct restaurant costs
from the net addition of approximately 36 Jack In The Box and 25 Chi-Chi's
restaurants, and higher variable operating costs related to increased
restaurant and distribution sales in 1993.  Costs of revenues also includes
$44.5 million to provide for settlement of franchisee lawsuits (see Note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements) and associated costs, and $2.5 million
for professional fees and other expenses related to the Outbreak.

     Selling, general and administrative expenses increased from $103.7 million
in 1992 to $124.4 million in 1993.  Advertising and promotion costs increased
$15.0 million from $69.3 million in 1992 to $84.3 million in 1993, primarily
due to increased advertising and aggressive discount promotions designed to



recover Jack In The Box sales lost as a result of the Outbreak.  The Company
also provided for $5.5 million in write-offs, accruals and other known costs
associated with the Outbreak and for closed or underperforming restaurants.

     Interest expense decreased $14.9 million from $72.5 million in 1992 to
$57.6 million in 1993 due to the March 1992 recapitalization, which contributed
to the approximate $127 million reduction of indebtedness since the beginning of
1992, and the reduction of interest rates on long-term debt.

     Income tax benefit was 33% of the pretax loss in 1993, versus income taxes
of 43% in 1992, reflecting the inability to fully benefit from the carryover of
losses to future years due to state law prohibitions.

     Effective September 28, 1992, the Company adopted the Financial Accounting
Standards Board's Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No.
106, "Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pension Benefits",
and No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes".  As a result, the Company
reported in 1993 a $54.0 million cumulative effect to September 27, 1992 of
these changes in accounting principles, $10.2 million relating to SFAS 106
and $43.8 million relating to SFAS 109.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

     The Company's primary sources of liquidity are expected to be cash flows
from operations, the revolving bank credit facility described below, funds
available from the finance lease transaction described below and the sale and
leaseback of restaurant properties.  An additional potential source of
liquidity is the conversion of Company-operated Jack In The Box restaurants
to franchised restaurants.  The Company requires capital principally to
construct new restaurants, to maintain, improve and refurbish existing
restaurants, and for general corporate purposes.
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     At October 2, 1994, the Company's working capital deficit had improved
$68.7 million to $40.0 million from $108.7 million at October 3, 1993, due
primarily to net cash proceeds received from the sale of Chi-Chi's, after the
repayment of bank debt.  The Company's working capital position was also
improved by the partial payment of franchisee settlements and associated
costs and the recognition of tax receivables.  The restaurant business does
not require the maintenance of significant receivables or inventories, and it
is common to receive trade credit from vendors for purchases such as
supplies.  In addition, the Company, and generally the industry, continually
invests in its business through the addition of new units and refurbishment
of existing units, which are reflected as long-term assets and not as part of
working capital.

     At October 2, 1994, the Company's total debt outstanding was $447.8
million. In early January 1994, the Company completed financing arrangements
(see Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements), which added an
approximate $70 million finance lease obligation to the Company's debt,
enabling the Company to repay approximately $28 million in bank borrowings,
fund existing capital expenditures and establish a construction fund of
approximately $28 million for new restaurants (of which $3.7 million remained
in other assets at October 2, 1994).  With the sale of Chi-Chi's on January 27,
1994, the Company reduced its outstanding debt, including full repayment of all
bank borrowings and termination of the then existing bank credit facility, and
had approximately $36 million in cash on hand at October 2, 1994.

     On July 26, 1994, the Company entered into a revolving bank credit
agreement, expiring July 26, 1997, which provides for a credit facility of up
to $52.5 million, including letters of credit for the account of the Company
in an aggregate amount of up to $25 million.  Covenants contained in the
agreement limit capital spending and require the Company to maintain
specified financial ratios, and to meet certain requirements regarding
maximum leverage and minimum fixed charges, cash flows, interest coverage,
and net worth.  The Company intends to use the revolving line to retire a



portion of its debt, to fund expansion efforts and for general operating
purposes.  Substantially all of the Company's real estate and machinery and
equipment is, and is expected to continue to be, pledged to its lenders.

     Based upon current levels of operations and anticipated growth, the Company
expects that sufficient cash flow will be generated from operations so that,
combined with other financing alternatives available to it, including the
bank credit facility, the utilization of cash on hand and in the construction
fund referred to above, and the sale and leaseback of restaurants, the
Company will be able to meet all of its debt service requirements, as well as
its capital expenditures and working capital requirements, for the
foreseeable future.

     On August 7, 1992, the Board of Directors of the Company authorized the
purchase of up to 2 million shares of the Company's outstanding common stock
in the open market, for an aggregate amount not to exceed $20 million.  At
October 2, 1994, the Company had acquired 1,412,654 shares for an aggregate
cost of $14.5 million, none of which were acquired in 1994.

Seasonality

     The Company's restaurant sales and profitability are subject to seasonal
fluctuations and are traditionally higher during the spring and summer months
because of factors such as increased travel and improved weather conditions
affecting the public's dining habits.

ITEM 8.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

     The consolidated financial statements and related financial information
required to be filed are indexed on page F-1 and are incorporated herein.

ITEM 9.  DISAGREEMENTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

     Not applicable.

                                     -14-

                                   PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

     The following table provides certain information about each of the
Company's current directors and executive officers as of January 1995:

     Name                 Age      Position with the Company(4)
     ----                 ---      ----------------------------
Jack W. Goodall(1)        56       Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive
                                    Officer and President

Robert J. Nugent          53       Executive Vice President; President and Chief
                                    Operating Officer of Jack In The Box
                                    Division and Director

Charles W. Duddles        54       Executive Vice President, Chief
                                    Administrative Officer, Chief Financial
                                    Officer and Director

Kenneth R. Williams       52       Senior Vice President; Executive Vice
                                    President-Marketing and Operations of Jack
                                    In The Box Division

William E. Rulon          62       Senior Vice President and Secretary

Robert L. Suttie          51       Vice President, Controller and Chief
                                    Accounting Officer



Bruce N. Bowers           48       Vice President, Purchasing and Distribution

William F. Motts          51       Vice President; Vice President-Restaurant
                                    Development of Jack In The Box Division

Paul L. Schultz           40       Vice President; Vice President-Operations of
                                    Jack In The Box Division

David Theno               44       Vice President, Quality Assurance, Research
                                    and Development, and Product Safety

Carlo Cetti               50       Vice President, Human Resources and
                                    Strategic Planning

Don Blough                47       Vice President, Management Information
                                     Systems

Edward Gibbons(1)(2)(3)   58       Director

Leonard I. Green(1)(2)(3) 61       Director

L. Robert Payne(1)(2)     61       Director

Christopher V. Walker     48       Director

Paul T. Carter(2)         72       Director

Michael E. Alpert         52       Director

- - - ----------------------------
(1)  Member of the Executive Committee.
(2)  Member of the Audit Committee.
(3)  Member of Stock Option Committee.
(4)  Directors and officers are elected annually.  Each director and officer
     holds his office until his successor has been elected and qualified or
     until he resigns or is removed.
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     Mr. Goodall has been President of the Company since April 1970, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company since February 1979 and Chairman since
October 1985.  He has been the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of FRI
since January 1994.  He has been a director of Grossmont Bank, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Bancomer, S.A., since 1980, a director of Van Camp Seafood
Company, Inc. since April 1992 and a director of TCH Corp. since October
1992.  He has been a director of Ralcorp Holdings, Inc. since March 1994 and
was a Vice President of Ralston Purina Company from July 1981 to October
1985.  He was a director of Budget Rent-A-Car from June 1987 to March 1989.

     Mr. Nugent has been Executive Vice President of the Company since February
1985 and President and Chief Operating Officer of the Jack In The Box
Division of the Company since May 1988.  He was Executive Vice President,
Operations and Marketing from February 1985 to May 1988.  He was previously
Division Vice President of the Company from August 1979 to April 1982 and
Corporate Vice President, Restaurant Operations from April 1982 through January
1985.  He has been a director since February 1988.

     Mr. Duddles has been Executive Vice President and Chief Administrative
Officer of the Company since May 1988.  He has been Chief Financial Officer
of the Company since October 1985 and was Senior Vice President from October
1985 to May 1988.  He was previously Vice President and Controller of the
Company from August 1979 to July 1981 and Senior Vice President, Finance and
Administration from August 1981 to October 1985.  He has been a director
since February 1988.  He has also been a director of FRI since January 1994.

     Mr. Williams has been Senior Vice President of the Company since January
1993 and Executive Vice President of Marketing and Operations, Jack In The Box



Division since November 1994.  He was Executive Vice President of Operations,
Jack In The Box Division from May 1988 until November 1994.  He was
temporarily President and Chief Executive Officer of Chi-Chi's from June 1992
to January 1993.  He was previously Vice President of the Company and Vice
President, Operations-Division I from January 1985 to May 1988.  He was a
Zone Manager from August 1979 to May 1981 and Division Vice President and
Zone General Manager from May 1981 through January 1985.

     Mr. Rulon has been Senior Vice President and Secretary of the Company since
October 1985 and was previously Secretary and Treasurer of the Company from
March 1976 to July 1981 and Senior Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer
from July 1981 to October 1985.  Mr. Rulon is also a trustee of Income
Managers Trust, Neuberger & Berman Income Funds and Neuberger & Berman Income
Trust.

     Mr. Suttie has been Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer
of the Company since July 1981 and was previously Division Controller for the
Company from November 1978 to July 1981.

     Mr. Bowers has been Vice President, Purchasing and Distribution of the
Company, since April 1982 and previously held various other positions with
the Company relating to manufacturing, purchasing and distribution from
September 1975 to April 1982.

     Mr. Motts has been Vice President of the Company and Vice President of
Restaurant Development of Jack In The Box Division since September 1988 and
was previously Director, Restaurant Construction from April 1983 to August
1984 and Division Vice President, Restaurant Construction from August 1984
through August 1988.

     Mr. Schultz has been a Vice President of the Company since May 1988 and
Vice President of Operations, Jack In The Box Division since November 1994.  He
was Vice President of Domestic Franchising, Jack In The Box Division from
October 1993 until November 1994.  He was previously Vice President of Jack
In The Box Operations-Division I from May 1988 to October 1993, temporarily
Vice President of Jack In The Box Operations and Domestic Franchising from
June 1992 to January 1993, Regional Manager of Los Angeles from August 1985
to May 1988, and Regional Manager of San Diego from January 1985 to August
1985.
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     Dr. Theno has been Vice President, Quality Assurance, Research and
Development, and Product Safety of the Company since April 1994.  He was Vice
President, Quality Assurance and Product Safety from March 1993 to April
1994.  Prior to joining Foodmaker, he was previously Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer of Theno & Associates, Inc., an agribusiness
consulting firm, from January 1990 to March 1993 and Director of Technical
Services for Foster Farms from March 1982 to December 1989.

     Mr. Cetti has been Vice President, Human Resources and Strategic Planning
of the Company since March 1994.  He was previously Vice President, Training and
Risk Management, from December 1992 to March 1994, Division Vice President,
Training and Risk Control from October 1991 to December 1992 and Director of
Management and Franchise Training from April 1981 to October 1991.

     Mr. Blough has been Vice President, Management Information Systems of the
Company since August 1993 and was previously Division Vice President, Systems
Development from June 1990 to August 1993 and Director of Systems Development
and POS Support from December 1984 to June 1990.

     Mr. Gibbons has been a director of the Company since October 1985 and has
been a general partner of Gibbons, Goodwin, van Amerongen ("GGvA"), successor
to Gibbons, Green, van Amerongen ("Gibbons Green"), an investment banking
firm specializing in management buyouts, for more than five years preceding
the date hereof.  Mr. Gibbons is also a director of Robert Half
International, Inc., Bath Iron Works Corporation, Horace Mann Companies and



Kash n' Karry Food Stores, Inc.  He has also been a director of FRI since
January 1994.

     Mr. Green has been a director of the Company since October 1985 and has
been a general partner of Leonard Green & Partners, an investment firm, since
June 1989.  Until June 28, 1989 and for more than five years preceding that
date, he was a partner of Gibbons Green.  Mr. Green is also a director of Horace
Mann Companies, Kash n' Karry Food Stores, Inc., Australian Resources N.L.,
Carr-Gottstein Foods Co., Thrifty Payless, Inc. and United Merchandising
Corp.  He has also been a director of FRI since January 1994.

     Mr. Payne has been a director of the Company since August 1986, having
served as a consultant to the Board of Directors since November 1985.  He has
been Chairman of the Board of Grossmont Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Bancomer, S.A., since February 1974, President and Chief Executive Officer of
Multi-Ventures, Inc. since February 1976.  Multi-Ventures, Inc. is a real
estate development and investment company that is also the managing partner
of the Mission Valley Hilton in San Diego.  He was a principal in the Company
prior to its acquisition by Ralston in 1968.

     Mr. Walker has been a director of the Company since February 1988.  Since
September 1989, Mr. Walker has been a general partner of Leonard Green &
Partners, an investment firm.  He was associated with Gibbons Green from
November 1985 and was a partner thereof from January 1989 until September
1989.  Prior to joining Gibbons Green, Mr. Walker worked from March 1984 to
October 1985 for Zimmerman Holdings, Inc., a California based private holding
company engaged in the acquisition and operation of manufacturing companies.
He is also a director of Kash n' Karry Food Stores, Inc. and Australian
Resources N.L., an Australian gold mining company.

     Mr. Carter has been a director of the Company since June 1991.  Since
February 1987, Mr. Carter has been an insurance consultant for the Government
Division of Corroon & Black Corporation.  From February 1987 until December
1990, he was also a consultant to the San Diego Unified School District on
insurance matters.  He retired in February 1987 as Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of Corroon & Black Corporation, Southwestern Region and as
Director and Senior Vice President of Corroon & Black Corporation, New York.

     Mr. Alpert has been a director of the Company since August 1992.
Mr. Alpert was a partner in the San Diego Office of the law firm of Gibson,
Dunn & Crutcher for more than 5 years prior to his retirement on August 1, 1992.
He is currently Advisory Counsel to Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher.  Gibson, Dunn &
Crutcher provides legal services from time to time to the Company.
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     That portion of Foodmaker's definitive Proxy Statement appearing under the
captions "Information About the Board of Directors and Committees of the
Board" and "Nonconforming Securities and Exchange Commission Filings" to be
filed with the Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after
October 2, 1994 and to be used in connection with its 1995 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders is hereby incorporated by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

     That portion of Foodmaker's definitive Proxy Statement appearing under the
caption "Executive Compensation" to be filed with the Commission pursuant to
Regulation 14A within 120 days after October 2, 1994 and to be used in
connection with its 1995 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is hereby
incorporated by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

     That portion of Foodmaker's definitive Proxy Statement appearing under the
caption "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management" to
be filed with the Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after
October 2, 1994 and to be used in connection with its 1995 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders is hereby incorporated by reference.



ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

     That portion of Foodmaker's definitive Proxy Statement appearing under the
caption "Certain Transactions" to be filed with the Commission pursuant to
Regulation 14A within 120 days after October 2, 1994 and to be used in
connection with its 1995 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is hereby
incorporated by reference.

ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

ITEM 14(a)(1)  Financial Statements.  See the index to consolidated financial
               statements and Schedules on page F-1 of this report.

ITEM 14(a)(2)  Financial Statement Schedules.  See the index to consolidated
               financial statements and Schedules on page F-1 of this report.
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ITEM 14(a)(3)  Exhibits.

Number      Description
- - - ------      -----------
3.1         Restated Certificate of Incorporation (4)
3.2         Restated Bylaws (4)
4.1         Warrant Agreement dated as of December 8, 1988, by and among PDV
            Holding, Inc.,  Foodmaker, Inc., Fulcrum III Limited Partnership
            and State Street Bank and Trust Company(2)
4.2         Indenture for the 9 1/4% Senior Notes due 1999(6)
4.3         Indenture for the 9 3/4% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2002(6)

            (Instruments with respect to the registrant's long-term debt not in
            excess of 10% of the total assets of the registrant and its
            subsidiaries on a consolidated basis have been omitted.
            The registrant agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any such
            instrument to the Commission upon request.)

10.1        Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of July 26, 1994, among
            Foodmaker, Inc. and the Banks and Agents, as defined therein
10.1.1      First Amendment dated as of December 14, 1994 to the Revolving
            Credit Agreement dated as of July 26, 1994 among Foodmaker, Inc.
            and the Banks and Agents, as defined therein
10.2        Purchase Agreements dated as of January 22, 1987 between Foodmaker,
            Inc. and FFCA/IIP 1985 Property Company and FFCA/IIP 1986 Property
            Company(1)
10.3        Land Purchase Agreements dated as of February 18, 1987, by and
            between Foodmaker, Inc. and FFCA/IPI 1984 Property Company and
            FFCA/IPI 1985 Property Company and Letter Agreement relating
            thereto(1)
10.4        1992 Employee Stock Incentive Plan(5)
10.5        Capital Accumulation Plan for Executives(3)
10.6        Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan(3)
10.7        Foodmaker Performance Bonus Plan(7)
10.8        Memorandom of Agreement with Gibbons, Goodwin, van Amerongen dated
            December 6, 1991(8)
21          Subsidiaries(3)
27          Financial Data Schedule (included only with electronic filing)
- - - --------------
  (1)  Previously filed and incorporated herein by reference from
       registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-10763) filed
       February 24, 1987.
  (2)  Previously filed and incorporated herein by reference from Amendment
       No. 2 to registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-27670)
       filed June 30, 1989.
  (3)  Previously filed and incorporated herein by reference from
       registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
       September 30, 1990.
  (4)  Previously filed and incorporated herein by reference from Amendment



       No. 1 to registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-44198)
       filed February 3, 1992.
  (5)  Previously filed and incorporated herein by reference from
       registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
       January 19, 1992.
  (6)  Previously filed and incorporated herein by reference from
       registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
       April 12, 1992.
  (7)  Previously filed and incorporated herein by reference from
       registrant's Annual Report on form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
       September 27, 1992.
  (8)  Previously filed and incorporated herein by reference from registrants
       Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 11, 1993.
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ITEM 14(b)  During the fourth quarter ended October 2, 1994, the Company
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission a report on Form 8-K under
Item 5, a press release dated November 9, 1994 announcing the Company's
losses for the fourth quarter and fiscal year ended October 2, 1994.

ITEM 14(c)  All required exhibits are filed herein or incorporated by
reference as described in Item 14(a)(3).

ITEM 14(d)  Copies of Schedules V, VI and X are attached hereto.  All other
supplemental schedules other than as enumerated here and in the Index to
Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedules on page F-1 are omitted as
inapplicable or because the required information is included in the
consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.
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                                  SIGNATURES
                                  ----------

     Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

                                FOODMAKER, INC.

                             By:JACK W. GOODALL
                                ------------------------------
                                Jack W. Goodall
                                Chairman of the Board, Chief
                                Executive Officer and President
                                Date:  December  30, 1994

     Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this
report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

         Signature                 Title                              Date
         ---------                 -----                              ----

JACK W. GOODALL          Chairman of the Board, Chief          December 30, 1994
- - - ------------------------ Executive Officer and President
Jack W. Goodall          (Principal Executive Officer)

CHARLES W. DUDDLES       Executive Vice President, Chief       December 30, 1994
- - - ------------------------ Administrative Officer, Chief
Charles W. Duddles       Financial Officer and Director
                         (Principal Financial Officer)



ROBERT L. SUTTIE         Vice President, Controller and Chief  December 30, 1994
- - - ------------------------ Accounting Officer
Robert L. Suttie         (Principal Accounting Officer)

ROBERT J. NUGENT         Executive Vice President, President   December 30, 1994
- - - ------------------------ and Chief Operating Officer of Jack
Robert J. Nugent         In The Box Division and Director

MICHAEL E. ALPERT        Director                              December 30, 1994
- - - ------------------------
Michael E. Alpert

                         Director                              December __, 1994
- - - ------------------------
Paul T. Carter
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EDWARD GIBBONS           Director                              December 30, 1994
- - - ------------------------
Edward Gibbons

LEONARD I. GREEN         Director                              December 30, 1994
- - - ------------------------
Leonard I. Green

L. ROBERT PAYNE          Director                              December 30, 1994
- - - ------------------------
L. Robert Payne

CHRISTOPHER V. WALKER    Director                              December 30, 1994
- - - ------------------------
Christopher V. Walker
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                         INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors
Foodmaker, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Foodmaker,
Inc. and subsidiaries as of October 2, 1994 and October 3, 1993, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, cash flows and stockholders'
equity for the fifty-two weeks ended October 2, 1994, the fifty-three weeks
ended October 3, 1993 and the fifty-two weeks ended September 27, 1992.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Foodmaker, Inc. and subsidiaries as of October 2, 1994 and October 3, 1993,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the fifty-two
weeks ended October 2, 1994, the fifty-three weeks ended October 3, 1993 and
the fifty-two weeks ended September 27, 1992, in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Notes 2, 7 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Company changed in 1993 its methods of accounting for postretirement
benefits and income taxes to adopt the provisions of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board's Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 106,
"Employers' Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions" and
No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes".

                                              KPMG PEAT MARWICK LLP



San Diego, California
November 8, 1994
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                         FOODMAKER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

                            CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
                  (Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

                                       ASSETS

                                                       October 2,     October 3,
                                                          1994           1993
                                                       ----------     ----------

Current assets:

  Cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 35,965       $  4,481

  Receivables, including notes receivable of $6,772
    and $9,291, less allowance for doubtful
    accounts of $4,173 and $3,392, respectively. . . .    31,167         30,277

  Inventories. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    25,319         40,977

  Prepaid expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    15,035         17,799
                                                         -------        -------
      Total current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   107,486         93,534
                                                         -------        -------
  Investment in FRI. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    57,188              -
                                                         -------        -------
  Trading area rights, net of accumulated
    amortization of $12,775 and $10,162, respectively.    62,932         55,678
                                                         -------        -------
  Lease acquisition costs, net of accumulated
    amortization of $16,096 and $17,932, respectively.    27,660         46,013
                                                         -------        -------
  Other assets, net of accumulated
    amortization of $17,277 and $15,185, respectively.    43,444         60,993
                                                         -------        -------
  Property at cost:

    Land . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    90,036         93,725

    Buildings. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   264,560        350,115

    Restaurant and other equipment . . . . . . . . . .   180,115        250,680

    Construction in progress . . . . . . . . . . . . .    39,874         16,764
                                                         -------        -------
                                                         574,585        711,284

    Accumulated depreciation and amortization. . . . .  (135,607)      (164,813)
                                                         -------        -------
                                                         438,978        546,471
                                                         -------        -------
  Cost of business in excess of net assets at
    acquisition, net of accumulated amortization
    of $497 and $12,920, respectively. . . . . . . . .     2,597         94,591
                                                         -------        -------
                                                        $740,285       $897,280
                                                         =======        =======



           See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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                         FOODMAKER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

                            CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
                   (Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

                        LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

                                                       October 2,     October 3,
                                                          1994           1993
                                                       ----------     ----------

Current liabilities:

  Current maturities of long-term debt . . . . . . . .  $  1,346       $ 33,163

  Accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    36,915         36,662

  Accrued payroll and related taxes. . . . . . . . . .    22,101         25,018

  Other accrued taxes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     9,713         12,000

  Accrued advertising. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     9,050         13,426

  Accrued insurance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    25,533         23,742

  Accrued interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    10,932         10,004

  Other accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    23,792         37,396

  Income tax liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     8,148         10,783
                                                         -------        -------
    Total current liabilities. . . . . . . . . . . . .   147,530        202,194
                                                         -------        -------
Deferred income taxes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     5,062         17,189

Long-term debt, net of current maturities. . . . . . .   447,822        500,460

Other long-term liabilities. . . . . . . . . . . . . .    39,820         38,305

Stockholders' equity:

  Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 15,000,000 shares
    authorized, none issued. . . . . . . . . . . . . .         -              -

  Common stock, $.01 par value, voting
    shares, 75,000,000 authorized, 40,080,854
    and 39,646,904 issued, respectively. . . . . . . .       401            396

  Capital in excess of par value . . . . . . . . . . .   280,837        280,353

  Accumulated deficit. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (166,724)      (127,154)

  Treasury stock, at cost, 1,412,654 shares. . . . . .   (14,463)       (14,463)
                                                         -------        -------
    Total stockholders' equity . . . . . . . . . . . .   100,051        139,132
                                                         -------        -------
                                                        $740,285       $897,280
                                                         =======        =======

            See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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                         FOODMAKER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES



                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
                      (In thousands, except per share data)

                                     Fifty-two      Fifty-three      Fifty-two
                                    weeks ended     weeks ended     weeks ended
                                     October 2,      October 3,    September 27,
                                        1994            1993            1992
                                      ---------       ---------       ---------
Revenues:

  Restaurant sales . . . . . . . . . .$ 843,038      $1,088,269      $1,061,904

  Distribution sales . . . . . . . . .  171,711         108,546         104,041

  Franchise rents and royalties. . . .   33,740          35,232          38,803

  Other. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    4,837           8,680          14,585
                                      ---------       ---------       ---------
                                      1,053,326       1,240,727       1,219,333
                                      ---------       ---------       ---------
Costs and expenses:

  Costs of revenues:

    Restaurant costs of sales. . . . .  244,560         307,940         309,380

    Restaurant operating costs . . . .  495,340         644,434         576,221

    Costs of distribution sales. . . .  165,789         104,817          97,873

    Franchised restaurants costs . . .   22,822          67,727          20,993

  Selling, general and administrative.  100,764         124,422         103,697

  Equity in loss of FRI. . . . . . . .    2,108               -               -

  Interest expense . . . . . . . . . .   55,201          57,586          72,455
                                      ---------       ---------       ---------
                                      1,086,584       1,306,926       1,180,619
                                      ---------       ---------       ---------

Earnings (loss) before income taxes,
  extraordinary item and cumulative
  effect of changes in accounting
  principles . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (33,258)        (66,199)         38,714

Income taxes (benefit) . . . . . . . .    3,010         (22,071)         16,818
                                      ---------       ---------       ---------
Earnings (loss) before extraordinary
  item and cumulative effect of
  changes in accounting principles . .  (36,268)        (44,128)         21,896
Extraordinary item - loss on early
  extinguishment of debt, net of taxes   (3,302)              -         (63,651)
Cumulative effect on prior years of
  adopting SFAS 106 and SFAS 109 . . .        -         (53,980)              -
                                      ---------       ---------       ---------
Net earnings (loss). . . . . . . . . .$ (39,570)      $ (98,108)      $ (41,755)
                                      =========       =========       =========
Earnings (loss) per share - primary
  and fully diluted:
  Earnings (loss) before extraordinary
    item and cumulative effect of
    changes in accounting principles .     (.94)          (1.15)            .67
  Extraordinary item . . . . . . . . .     (.09)              -           (1.95)
  Cumulative effect on prior years of
    adopting SFAS 106 and SFAS 109 . .        -           (1.40)              -



                                      ---------       ---------       ---------
Net loss per share . . . . . . . . . .$   (1.03)      $   (2.55)      $   (1.28)
                                      =========       =========       =========
Weighted average shares outstanding. .   38,531          38,486          32,577

            See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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                         FOODMAKER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

                       CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
                   (Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

                                     Fifty-two      Fifty-three      Fifty-two
                                    weeks ended     weeks ended     weeks ended
                                     October 2,      October 3,    September 27,
                                        1994            1993            1992
                                      ---------       ---------       ---------
Cash flows from operations:
  Earnings (loss) before
    extraordinary item . . . . . . . . $(36,268)     $  (98,108)     $   21,896
  Non-cash items included in income:
    Depreciation and amortization. . .   39,925          53,499          50,810
    Deferred finance cost amortization    2,685           3,200           4,001
    Deferred income taxes. . . . . . .    4,535         (23,905)            150
    Equity in loss of FRI. . . . . . .    2,108               -               -
    Cumulative effect of
      accounting changes . . . . . . .        -          53,980               -
  Decrease (increase) in receivables .   (3,373)          6,442         (13,848)
  Decrease (increase) in inventories .      194          (5,646)         (2,813)
  Decrease (increase) in
    prepaid expenses . . . . . . . . .     (196)         (2,200)          1,317
  Increase (decrease) in
    accounts payable . . . . . . . . .   16,375          (1,659)          4,326
  Increase in other accrued
    liabilities. . . . . . . . . . . .    3,417          40,067             473
                                      ---------       ---------       ---------
       Cash flows provided by
        operations . . . . . . . . . .   29,402          25,670          66,312
                                      ---------       ---------       ---------
Cash flows from investing activities:
  Additions to property and equipment.  (92,037)        (46,269)        (76,629)
  Disposition of property
    and equipment. . . . . . . . . . .    3,374           6,162           6,483
  Investment in FRI, net . . . . . . .  (59,296)              -               -
  Disposition of Chi-Chi's . . . . . .  214,551               -               -
  Acquisition of Consul. . . . . . . .        -          (8,700)              -
  Increase in trading area rights. . .   (9,915)         (1,289)         (2,370)
  Other. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   (3,936)         (8,557)         (7,289)
                                      ---------       ---------       ---------
       Cash flows provided (used)
        in investing activities. . . .   52,741         (58,653)        (79,805)
                                      ---------       ---------       ---------
Cash flows from financing activities:
  Proceeds from issuance of
    long-term debt . . . . . . . . . .   82,519           2,283         429,993
  Principal payments on long-term debt,
    including current maturities . . . (113,033)        (25,015)       (557,776)
  Borrowings under revolving
    bank loans . . . . . . . . . . . .    5,000          30,000         105,400
  Principal repayments under
    revolving bank loans . . . . . . .  (35,000)              -        (113,967)
  Extraordinary loss on retirement of
    debt, net of taxes . . . . . . . .   (3,302)              -         (63,651)
  Increase (decrease) in
    accrued interest . . . . . . . . .    1,678          (1,875)        (14,593)
  Proceeds from issuance of



    common stock . . . . . . . . . . .      489           1,171         241,743
  Repurchase of common stock . . . . .        -         (10,929)         (3,495)
  Other changes in equity. . . . . . .        -              65             (95)
  Proceeds from sale and leaseback
    transactions . . . . . . . . . . .    9,695          22,035           8,982
  Increase (decrease) in accrued
    transaction costs. . . . . . . . .    1,295            (273)            385
                                      ---------       ---------       ---------
       Cash flows provided (used) by
        financing activities . . . . .  (50,659)         17,462          32,926
                                      ---------       ---------       ---------
Net increase (decrease) in cash. . . .$  31,484       $ (15,521)      $  19,433
                                      =========       =========       =========
Supplemental disclosure of cash
 flow information:
  Cash paid during the year for:
    Interest, net of amounts
     capitalized . . . . . . . . . . .$  51,242       $  56,070       $  82,486
    Income tax payments (refunds), net     (275)          4,837          15,175

Noncash investing and financing
 activities:
  Increase in property and intangible
     assets due to change in
     accounting for income taxes . . .$       -       $  16,401       $       -

             See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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                         FOODMAKER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

                  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
                    (Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

                                                                          Capital                         Notes
                                                                         in excess  Retained              receivable-
                                     Preferred stock    Common stock       of par   earnings   Treasury   stock-
                                     Shares  Amount   Shares     Amount    value   (deficit)     stock    holders   Total
                                     ------  ------   ------     ------    -----    -------      -----    -------   -----
                                                                                                                               
Balance at September 30, 1991        600,000  $  6  10,800,000  $ 1,080  $ 36,740  $ 12,709   $       -  $     -  $ 50,535
Reduction of common stock
  par value to $.01 per share              -     -           -     (972)      972          -          -        -         -

Effect of the merger with PDV        172,500     2   5,400,000       54       (47)         -        (39)    (137)     (167)

Sale of common stock
  pursuant to a public offering            -     -  17,151,000      172   241,567          -          -        -   241,739

Exchange of preferred stock
  for common stock                  (772,500)   (8)  5,150,000       51       (43)         -          -        -         -

Exercise of stock options
  and warrants                             -     -       4,500        -         4          -          -        -         4

Payments on stockholder notes              -     -           -        -         -          -          -       72        72

Purchases of treasury stock                -     -           -        -         -          -     (3,495)       -    (3,495)

Net loss of the Company                    -     -           -        -         -    (41,755)         -        -   (41,755)
                                     -------   ---  ----------   ------   -------    -------   --------   ------   -------
Balance at September 27, 1992              -     -  38,505,500      385   279,193    (29,046)    (3,534)     (65)  246,933

Exercise of stock options
  and warrants                             -     -   1,141,404       11     1,160          -          -        -     1,171

Payments on stockholder notes              -     -           -        -         -          -          -       65        65

Purchases of treasury stock                -     -           -        -         -          -    (10,929)       -   (10,929)

Net loss of the Company                    -     -           -        -         -    (98,108)         -        -   (98,108)
                                     -------   ---  ----------   ------   -------    -------   --------   ------   -------
Balance at October 3, 1993                 -     -  39,646,904      396   280,353   (127,154)   (14,463)       -   139,132

Exercise of stock options
  and warrants                             -     -     433,950        5       484          -          -        -       489

Net loss of the Company                    -     -           -        -         -    (39,570)         -        -   (39,570)
                                     -------   ---  ----------   ------   -------    -------   --------   ------   -------
Balance at October 2, 1994                 -  $  -  40,080,854  $   401  $280,837  $(166,724) $ (14,463) $     -  $100,051
                                     =======   ===  ==========   ======   =======    =======   ========   ======   =======



           See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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                         FOODMAKER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

                     NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
                    (Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

1.   ORGANIZATION

     Foodmaker, Inc. ("the Company") operates and franchises Jack In The Box
     restaurants and formerly operated Chi-Chi's Mexican restaurants ("Chi-
     Chi's") (See Note 3).  The number of restaurants in operation at the end
     of each fiscal year follows:

                                              Jack In The Box        Chi-Chi's
                                           --------------------    ------------
                                           1994    1993    1992    1993    1992
                                           ----    ----    ----    ----    ----
        Operated by the Company . . . . .   810     725     720     207     181
        Operated by franchisees . . . . .   414     447     435      28      51
                                          -----   -----   -----    ----    ----
        System restaurants. . . . . . . . 1,224   1,172   1,155     235     232
                                          =====   =====   =====    ====    ====

2.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

     Basis of presentation and fiscal year - The consolidated financial
     statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
     subsidiaries.  All significant intercompany transactions are eliminated.
     Certain financial statement reclassifications have been made in prior
     years to conform to the 1994 presentation.  The Company's fiscal year is
     52-53 weeks ending the Sunday closest to September 30.

     Cash Equivalents, for the purposes of statement of cash flows, are
     considered to be all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three
     months or less when purchased.

     Inventories are valued at the lower of cost, which approximates FIFO, or
     market.

     Investments - The Company accounts for its 39% investment in Family
     Restaurants, Inc. ("FRI") using the equity method of accounting.  The
     carrying value differs from the amount of the underlying equity in net
     assets of FRI by the $3,045 deferred gain resulting from the Company's
     sale of its former subsidiary to FRI.

     Trading area rights represent the amount allocated under purchase
     accounting to reflect the value of operating existing restaurants within
     their specific trading area and are amortized on a straight-line basis
     over the period of control of the property, not exceeding 40 years, and
     are retired when a restaurant is franchised or sold.

     Lease acquisition costs represent the acquired values of existing lease
     contracts having lower contractual rents than fair market rents and are
     amortized over the remaining lease term.

     Other assets are inclusive of deferred franchise contract costs
     representing the acquired value of franchise contracts, amortized over the
     term of the franchise agreement, usually 20 years; deferred finance costs
     amortized on the interest method over the terms of the respective loan



     agreements, from 7 to 14 years; and pre-opening costs, consisting
     primarily of employee training costs incurred before a restaurant opens,
     which are capitalized and amortized over a one-year period commencing the
     date a restaurant opens.

     Property at cost - Facilities leased under capital leases are stated at
     the present value of minimum lease payments at the beginning of the lease
     term, not to exceed fair value.

     Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis based on the estimated
     useful lives of the buildings and equipment or over the lease term for
     certain capital leases (buildings 3% to 6 2/3% per year and restaurant and
     other equipment 3% to  33 1/3% per year).
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2.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

     Expenditures for new facilities and those which substantially increase the
     useful lives of the property are capitalized.  Maintenance, repairs, and
     minor renewals are expensed as incurred.  When properties are retired or
     otherwise disposed of, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are
     removed from the accounts and gains or losses on the dispositions are
     reflected in results of operations.

     Cost of business in excess of net assets at acquisition is amortized on a
     straight-line basis over 40 years.  The Company assesses the
     recoverability of cost of business in excess of net assets at acquisition
     by determining whether the amortization of the balance over its remaining
     life can be recovered through projected undiscounted future cash flows.
     Based on these calculations, the Company has determined that there is no
     future impairment of this intangible asset at October 2, 1994, October 3,
     1993 and September 27, 1992.

     Franchise operations - Franchise fee revenues are recognized when all
     material services have been performed by the Company.  Expenses associated
     with the issuance of the franchise are charged to expense as incurred.
     Continuing fees from franchised restaurants, for which the Company is
     obligated to maintain its restaurant concepts, are recorded as income on
     an accrual basis.  Gains on sales of restaurant businesses to franchisees,
     including trading area rights and equipment, are recorded as other
     revenues when the sales are consummated and certain other criteria are
     met.

     Income taxes - In February 1992, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
     issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. ("SFAS") 109,
     "Accounting for Income Taxes".  SFAS 109 requires a change from the
     deferred method of accounting for income taxes of APB Opinion 11 to the
     asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes.  Under the
     asset and liability method of SFAS 109, deferred tax assets and
     liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
     differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing
     assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss
     and tax credit carryforwards.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
     measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in
     the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
     recovered or settled.  Under SFAS 109, the effect on deferred tax assets
     and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the
     period that includes the enactment date.  Effective September 28, 1992,
     the Company adopted SFAS 109 and has reported the cumulative effect of
     this change in the 1993 consolidated statement of operations.



     Pursuant to the deferred method under APB Opinion 11, which was applied in
     1992 and prior years, deferred income taxes are recognized for income and
     expense items that are reported in different years for financial reporting
     purposes and income tax purposes using the tax rate applicable in the year
     of the calculation.  Under the deferred method, deferred taxes are not
     adjusted for subsequent changes in tax rates.

3.   FAMILY RESTAURANTS, INC.

     On January 27, 1994, Foodmaker, Apollo Advisors, L.P. ("Apollo") and Green
     Equity Investors, L.P. ("GEI"), whose general partner is Leonard Green &
     Partners, (collectively, the "Investors"), acquired Restaurant Enterprises
     Group, Inc. ("REGI"), a company that owns, operates and franchises various
     restaurant chains including El Torito, Carrows and Coco's.
     Contemporaneously, REGI changed its name to Family Restaurants, Inc.
     ("FRI").  Concurrently, Foodmaker contributed its entire Chi-Chi's Mexican
     restaurant chain to FRI in exchange for a 39% equity interest in FRI,
     valued at $62 million, a five-year warrant to acquire 111,111 additional
     shares at $240 per share, which would increase its equity interest to 45%,
     and approximately $173 million in cash ($208 million less the face amount
     of Chi-Chi's debt assumed, aggregating approximately $35 million).  Apollo
     and GEI, respectively, contributed $62 million and $29 million in cash and
     hold approximate 39% and 18% equity positions in FRI.  Management of FRI
     invested $2.5 million in
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3.   FAMILY RESTAURANTS, INC. (continued)

     cash and notes and holds an approximate 4% equity position.  The net
     cash received was used by Foodmaker to repay all of the debt outstanding
     under its then existing bank credit facility, which has been terminated,
     and to reduce other debt, to the extent permitted by the Company's
     financing agreements, and to provide funds for capital expenditures and
     general corporate purposes.  The Company does not anticipate receiving
     dividends on its FRI common stock in the foreseeable future.  The payment
     of dividends is restricted by FRI's public debt instruments.

     Summarized FRI financial information for the eight months from the date of
     the acquisition through and as of September 25, 1994, the end of its third
     quarter, follows:

        Balance sheet data:                     Statement of operations data:
          Current assets . . . . . $  44,133      Sales . . . . . .  $778,592
          Current liabilities. . .   201,316      Gross profit. . .    70,984
          Total assets . . . . . .   873,942      Loss before extraordinary
          Stockholders' equity . .   151,213        item. . . . . .    (8,336)
                                                  Net loss. . . . .    (5,395)

     As a result of recent publicity regarding the nutritional value of Mexican
     food, and resulting sales declines, FRI's management is evaluating the
     future prospects for its Mexican Restaurant Division and the
     recoverability of certain long-lived intangible assets based on consumer
     reaction to new marketing programs.

4.   LONG-TERM DEBT

     In 1992, the Company completed a recapitalization plan which increased
     stockholders' equity, reduced indebtedness and interest expense, and
     improved the Company's operating and financial flexibility.  The plan
     included the sale of common stock for approximately $257 million and the
     issuance of new lower interest rate debt of $300 million, the net proceeds



     of which were used to retire approximately 94%, 86% and 40%, respectively,
     of the Company's 12 3/4% senior notes, 141/4% senior subordinated notes and
     subordinated debentures, and contributed to the Company's increased cash
     position.  The Company incurred an extraordinary loss of $79.6 million on
     the early extinguishment of debt consisting of premiums, consent payments
     and associated other costs, less currently recognizable income tax
     benefits of $15.9 million.

     In early January 1994, the Company entered into financing lease
     arrangements with two limited partnerships, (the "Partnerships"), in which
     estates for years relating to 42 existing and approximately 34 to-be-
     constructed restaurants were sold.  The acquisition of the properties,
     including costs and expenses, was funded through the issuance by a special
     purpose corporation acting as agent for the Partnerships of $70 million
     senior secured notes, interest payable semi-annually, and due in two equal
     installments of principal on January 1, 2003 and November 1, 2003.  The
     Company is required semi-annually through 2002 to make payments to a
     trustee of approximately $3.4 million and special payments of
     approximately $.7 million, which effectively cover interest and sinking
     fund requirements, respectively, on the notes.  Immediately prior to the
     principal payment dates, the Company must make rejectable offers to
     reacquire 50% of the properties at each date at a price which is
     sufficient, in conjunction with previous sinking fund deposits, to retire
     the notes.  If the Partnerships reject the offers, the Company may
     purchase the properties at less than fair market value or cause the
     Partnerships to fund the remaining principal payments on the notes and, at
     the Company's option, cause the Partnerships to acquire the Company's
     residual interest in the properties.  If the Partnerships are allowed to
     retain the estates for years, the Company has available options to extend
     the leases for total terms of up to 35 years, at which time the ownership
     of the property will revert to the Company.  The transactions are
     reflected as financings with the properties remaining in the Company's
     financial statements.  As a result of the foregoing transaction, at
     October 2, 1994, the Company had approximately $3.7 million in
     construction funds available for new restaurants, which was classified in
     other assets.
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4.   LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

                                                                                  October 2,      October 3,
                                                                                     1994            1993
                                                                                  ----------      ----------
     The detail of long-term debt follows:
                                                                                                          
      Bank loans, variable interest rates
       based on established market indicators
       which approximate 1 1/2% or less over prime. . . . . . . . . . . . .        $      -         $107,000
      Senior notes, 9 1/4% interest, due March 1, 1999,
       redeemable beginning March 1, 1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .         175,000          175,000
      Senior subordinated notes, 9 3/4% interest, due June 1, 2002,
       redeemable beginning June 1, 1997. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .         125,000          125,000
      Senior notes, 12 3/4% interest, due July 1, 1996. . . . . . . . . . .           7,043            7,043
      Senior notes, 13 1/2% interest, repaid in full September 30, 1994 . .               -           23,283
      Senior subordinated notes, 14 1/4% interest,
       due May 15, 1998, redeemable beginning May 15, 1993. . . . . . . . .          42,843           42,843
      Financing lease obligations, net of discounts of
       $3,295 reflecting a 10.3% effective interest rate,
       semi-annual payments of $3,400 and $700 to cover
       interest and sinking fund requirements, respectively,
       due in equal installments January 1, 2003 and
       November 1, 2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .          66,705                -
      Subordinated debentures, net of discount of $10,413 in 1993
       to record obligation at 15% effective interest rate,
       due October 2009, assumed by FRI in the sale of Chi-Chi's. . . . . .               -           19,268
      Secured notes, 11 1/2% interest, due in monthly



       installments through May 1, 2005 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .          10,489           10,965
      Secured notes, 9 1/2% interest, due in monthly
       installments through August 1, 2017. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .           8,692            8,794
      Capitalized lease obligations, 11% average
       interest rate. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .          11,213           10,576
      Other notes, principally unsecured,
       10% average interest rate. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .           2,183            3,851
                                                                                    -------          -------
                                                                                    449,168          533,623
      Less current portion. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .          (1,346)         (33,163)
                                                                                    -------          -------
                                                                                   $447,822         $500,460
                                                                                    =======          =======

     The secured notes, bank loans and senior notes are secured by
     substantially all the Company's real and personal property.

     The Company is subject to a number of covenants under its various credit
     agreements including limits on  additional borrowing, capital
     expenditures, lease commitments and dividend payments, requirements to
     maintain various financial ratios, and to meet certain requirements
     regarding maximum leverage and minimum fixed charges, cash flows, interest
     coverage and net worth.
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4.   LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

     In conjunction with the sale of Chi-Chi's in January 1994, the Company
     repaid all of the bank loans then outstanding and cancelled its former
     bank credit agreement.  On July 26, 1994, the Company entered into a new
     revolving bank credit agreement, expiring July 26, 1997, which provides
     for a credit facility of up to $52.5 million, including letters of credit
     for the account of the Company in an aggregate amount of up to $25
     million.  The revolving bank loans require the payment of a commitment fee
     of 1/2% per year of the unused credit line.

     Aggregate maturities and sinking fund requirements on all long-term debt
     are $8,372, $1,798, $44,281 and $176,557 for the years 1996 through 1999,
     respectively.

     The amount of interest cost capitalized during the construction period of
     restaurants was $727, $255, and $731 in 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively.

5.   DISCLOSURES ABOUT THE FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

     The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade
     accounts payable, accrued expenses and notes payable to banks approximate
     fair values.

     The fair values of each of the Company's long-term debt instruments are
     based on quoted market values, where available, or on the amount of future
     cash flows associated with each instrument discounted using the Company's
     current borrowing rate for similar debt instruments of comparable
     maturity.  The carrying value and the estimated fair value of the
     Company's long-term debt at October 2, 1994 are $437,955 and $414,267,
     respectively.

     Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on
     relevant market information and information about the financial
     instrument.  These estimates are subjective in nature and involve
     uncertainties and matters of significant judgement and therefore cannot be
     determined with precision.  Changes in assumptions could significantly
     affect the estimates.



     The Company does not maintain investments or commitments for which the
     application of SFAS 119, "Disclosure about Derivative Financial
     Instruments and Fair Value of Financial Instruments," would cause a
     material effect.

6.   LEASES

     As Lessee - The Company leases restaurant and other facilities under
     leases having terms expiring at various dates through 2039.  The leases
     generally have renewal clauses of 5 to 20 years exercisable at the option
     of the Company and in some instances have provisions for contingent
     rentals based upon a percentage of revenues, as defined.  Total rent
     expense for all operating leases was $77,296, $87,845 and $77,940
     including contingent rentals of $3,486, $3,875 and $4,320 in 1994, 1993
     and 1992, respectively.
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6.   LEASES (continued)

     Future minimum lease payments under capital and operating leases are as
     follows:

                                                   Capital         Operating
                                                    leases          leases
                                                    ------          -------
        1995 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .         $ 1,750         $ 60,529
        1996 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .           1,750           59,746
        1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .           1,697           57,622
        1998 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .           1,625           54,543
        1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .           1,547           51,302
        Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . .          18,481          420,041
                                                    ------          -------
        Total minimum lease payments . . .          26,850         $703,783
                                                                    =======
        Less amount representing interest.          15,637
                                                    ------

        Present value of obligations
         under capital leases. . . . . . .          11,213
        Less current portion . . . . . . .             485
                                                    ------

        Long-term capital lease obligation         $10,728
                                                    ======

     Building assets recorded under capital leases were $10,464 and $8,865, net
     of accumulated depreciation of $2,420 and $4,022, as of October 2, 1994
     and October 3, 1993, respectively.

     As Lessor - The Company leases or subleases restaurants to certain
     franchisees and others under agreements which generally provide for the
     payment of percentage rentals in excess of stipulated minimum rentals,
     usually for a period of 20 years.  Total rental revenue was $21,911,
     $26,318 and $23,629, including contingent rentals of $4,979, $8,880 and
     $7,097 in 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively.  The minimum rents receivable
     under these non-cancelable leases are as follows:

                                                   Sales-type      Operating
                                                     leases         leases
                                                    ---------      ---------



        1995 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .           $  44         $ 17,382
        1996 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .              44           16,961
        1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .              44           16,612
        1998 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .              44           15,955
        1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .              45           15,820
        Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . .             299          135,038
                                                       ---          -------
        Total minimum future rentals . . .             520         $217,768
                                                                    =======
        Less amount representing interest.             226
                                                       ---

        Net investment (included
        in other assets) . . . . . . . . .           $ 294
                                                       ===

     Land and building assets held for lease were $76,051 and $86,096, net of
     accumulated depreciation of $14,664 and $13,041, as of October 2, 1994 and
     October 3, 1993, respectively.
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7.   INCOME TAXES

     The Company adopted SFAS 109 as of September 28, 1992.  The $43,804
     cumulative effect at that date of this change in accounting for income
     taxes is reported separately in the 1993 consolidated statement of
     operations.  Prior years' financial statements have not been restated to
     apply the provisions of SFAS 109 and the pro forma effects on prior years'
     financial statements have not been included because such effects cannot be
     reasonably estimated.

     The provision for income taxes consists of the following:

                                     Fifty-two     Fifty-three      Fifty-two
                                    weeks ended    weeks ended     weeks ended
                                     October 2,     October 3,    September 27,
                                        1994           1993            1992
                                      ---------     ----------      ----------
       Federal - current. . . . . . .  $   (624)       $      -        $    593
               - deferred . . . . . .     3,236         (21,252)         (3,087)
       State   - current. . . . . . .       478           1,834           3,803
               - deferred . . . . . .    (1,858)         (2,653)           (404)
                                         -------         -------         -------
       Subtotal . . . . . . . . . . .     1,232         (22,071)            905

       Income tax benefit of
        extraordinary item. . . . . .    (1,778)              -         (15,913)
                                        -------         -------         -------

       Income taxes (benefit) . . . .  $  3,010        $(22,071)       $ 16,818
                                        =======         =======         =======

     A reconciliation of income taxes with the amounts computed at the
     statutory federal rates of 35% in 1994 and 1993 and 34% in 1992 follows:

                                     Fifty-two     Fifty-three      Fifty-two
                                    weeks ended    weeks ended     weeks ended
                                     October 2,     October 3,    September 27,
                                        1994           1993            1992



                                      ---------     ----------      ----------

       Computed at federal
        statutory rates . . . . . . .  $(11,640)       $(23,170)       $ 13,163
       State income taxes (benefits),
        net of federal tax benefits .      (897)           (410)          3,239
       Amortization of intangibles. .       327           1,088           2,220
       Tax basis differences relating
        to business combinations. . .         -               -             571
       Targeted jobs credit wages . .      (742)           (585)            914
       Utilization of general
        business credits. . . . . . .         -               -          (3,035)
       Addition to valuation allowance   18,520             537               -
       Gain on sale of subsidiary . .    (1,988)              -               -
       Other, net . . . . . . . . . .      (570)            469            (254)
                                        -------         -------         -------
                                       $  3,010        $(22,071)       $ 16,818
                                        =======         =======         =======
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7.   INCOME TAXES (continued)

     The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant
     portions of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are presented
     below:
                                                           October 2, October 3,
                                                              1994        1993
                                                           ---------   ---------
        Deferred tax assets:
          Tax loss carryforwards and tax credits . . . . . $ 29,455    $ 34,312
          Insurance reserves . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   14,242      16,230
          Accrued pension and postretirement benefits. . .    9,649       9,193
          Accrued vacation pay expense . . . . . . . . . .    5,767       5,298
          Other reserves and allowances. . . . . . . . . .    7,308       5,656
          Deferred income. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    4,190       4,444
          Investment in subsidiary . . . . . . . . . . . .    3,140           -
          Other, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    1,511       3,494
                                                             ------      ------
           Total gross deferred tax assets . . . . . . . .   75,262      78,627
          Less valuation allowance . . . . . . . . . . . .  (23,227)     (5,122)
                                                             ------      ------
           Net deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . .   52,035      73,505
                                                             ------      ------

        Deferred tax liabilities:
         Property and equipment, principally due to
          differences in depreciation. . . . . . . . . . .   40,960      67,468
         Intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   15,539      17,183
         Unamortized bond discount . . . . . . . . . . . .        -       4,328
         Other, net. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      598       1,715
                                                             ------      ------
          Total gross deferred liabilities . . . . . . . .   57,097      90,694
                                                             ------      ------

          Net deferred tax liability . . . . . . . . . . . $  5,062    $ 17,189
                                                             ======      ======

     The valuation allowance of $23,227 as of October 2, 1994 represents
     deferred tax assets that may not be realized by the reversal of future
     taxable temporary differences.  In fiscal 1994, the Company recognized an
     increase in the valuation allowance of $18,520 related to the reduction of



     deferred tax liabilities resulting from the sale of Chi-Chi's, the
     investment in Family Restaurants, Inc. and the SFAS 106 pension accrual.

     At October 2, 1994, the Company had federal tax net operating loss
     carryforwards of approximately $27,328 which expire in 2009, and general
     business credit carryforwards of approximately $9,302, which expire in
     2001 through 2009.  The Company has an alternative minimum tax credit
     carryforward of approximately $8,948.  The alternative minimum tax credit
     carryforward has no expiration date; however, it may only be utilized to
     reduce any regular tax liability the Company may have in the future.

8.   CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

     Various claims and legal proceedings are pending against the Company in
     various state and federal courts; many of those proceedings are in the
     states of California, Washington, Nevada and Idaho and in Federal Court,
     Western District of Washington at Seattle seeking monetary damages and
     other relief relating to the outbreak of food-borne illness ("the
     Outbreak") attributed to hamburgers served at Jack In The Box restaurants.
     The Company, in consultation with its insurance carriers and attorneys,
     does not anticipate that the total liability on all such lawsuits and
     claims will exceed the coverage available under its applicable insurance
     policies.
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8.   CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

     Actions were filed on July 2, 1993, in the Superior Court of California,
     County of San Diego, by certain of the Company's franchisees against the
     Company, The Vons Companies, Inc., ("Vons") and other suppliers (Syed
     Ahmad, et al, versus Foodmaker, Inc., et al), claiming damages from
     reduced sales and profits due to the Outbreak.  After extensive
     negotiations, settlements were reached with all but one of its
     franchisees.  During 1993, the Company provided approximately $44.5
     million to cover the settlements and associated costs, including a then
     anticipated settlement with the remaining franchisee.  On January 14,
     1994, the non-settling Franchisee filed two substantially identical suits
     against the Company and The Vons Companies in Superior Court of
     California, County of San Diego and in Federal Court, Southern District of
     California (Ira Fischbein, et al versus Foodmaker, Inc., et al) claiming
     damages from reduced sales, lost profits and reduced value of the
     franchise due to the Outbreak.  The Company has engaged legal counsel and
     is vigorously defending the action in Federal Court.  The suit in Superior
     Court has been voluntarily dismissed.  The Company and the franchisee are
     actively engaged in settlement discussions.

     The Company on July 19, 1993, filed a cross-complaint against Vons and
     other suppliers seeking reimbursement for all damages, costs and expenses
     incurred in connection with the Outbreak.  On or about January 18, 1994,
     Vons filed a cross complaint against Foodmaker and others in this action
     alleging certain contractual and tort liabilities and seeking damages in
     unspecified amounts and a declaration of the rights and obligations of the
     parties.

     In April 1993, a class action, In re Foodmaker, Inc./Jack In The Box
     Securities Litigation, was filed in Federal Court, Western District of
     Washington at Seattle against the Company, its Chairman, and the President
     of the Jack In The Box Division on behalf of all persons who acquired the
     Company's common stock between March 4, 1992 and January 22, 1993 seeking
     damages in an unspecified amount as well as punitive damages.  In general
     terms, the complaint alleges that there were false and misleading



     statements in the Company's March 4, 1992 prospectus and in certain public
     statements and filings in 1992 and 1993, including claims that the
     defendants disseminated false information regarding the Company's food
     quality standards and internal quality control procedures.  The Company
     has engaged legal counsel and is vigorously defending the action.
     The Federal Trade Commission is investigating whether the Company violated
     the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 (the "HSR Act")
     when the Company's former subsidiary, Chi-Chi's, Inc., acquired Consul
     Restaurant Corporation in October 1992 without first complying with the
     reporting and waiting requirements of the HSR Act.  The Company later made
     the filing as it was preparing for the sale of Chi-Chi's.  The Company has
     engaged counsel in connection with the investigation and on August 17,
     1994, counsel for the Company received a request, preliminary in nature,
     for information and documents.  The HSR Act provides for a penalty of up
     to $10,000 per day for failure to comply with the above requirements.
     Management believes that any potential penalty, if assessed, will not have
     a material impact on the Company.

     The amount of liability from the claims and actions described above cannot
     be determined with certainty, but in the opinion of management, based in
     part upon advice from legal counsel, the ultimate liability from all
     pending legal proceedings, asserted legal claims and known potential legal
     claims which are probable of assertion will not materially affect the
     consolidated financial position or operations of the Company.

     The U.S. Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") had proposed adjustments to tax
     liabilities of $17 million (exclusive of interest) for the Company's
     federal income tax returns for fiscal years 1986 through 1988.  A final
     report has not been issued but agreement has been reached to satisfy these
     proposed adjustments at approximately $1.3 million (exclusive of $.8
     million interest).  The IRS examinations of the Company's federal income
     tax returns for fiscal years 1989 and 1990 resulted in the issuance of
     proposed adjustments to tax liabilities aggregating $2.2 million
     (exclusive of $.7 million interest).  The Company has filed a protest with
     the Regional Office of Appeals of the IRS contesting the proposed
     assessments.  Management believes that adequate provision for income taxes
     has been made.
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9.   RETIREMENT, SAVINGS AND BONUS PLANS

     The Company has non-contributory pension plans covering substantially all
     salaried and hourly employees meeting certain eligibility requirements.
     These plans are subject to modification at any time.  The plans provide
     retirement benefits based on years of service and compensation.  It is the
     Company's practice to fund retirement costs as necessary.

     The following items are the components of the net defined benefit pension
     expense:

                                            Fifty-two  Fifty-three   Fifty-two
                                           weeks ended weeks ended  weeks ended
                                            October 2,  October 3, September 27,
                                               1994        1993         1992
                                            ---------- ----------- -------------
        Present value of benefits earned
         during the year. . . . . . . . . .  $ 2,456     $ 2,075     $ 1,641
        Interest cost on projected benefit
         obligations. . . . . . . . . . . .    2,961       2,530       2,235
        Actual return on plan assets. . . .     (538)       (300)       (900)
        Net amortization. . . . . . . . . .     (908)     (1,203)       (134)



                                               -----       -----       -----
        Net pension expense for the period.  $ 3,971     $ 3,102     $ 2,842
                                               =====       =====       =====

     The funded status of the plans is as follows:

                                                            October 2, 1994              October 3, 1993
                                                       --------------------------    --------------------------
                                                       Qualified    Non-qualified    Qualified    Non-qualified
                                                         plans           plan          plans          plan
                                                        ------         --------       ------        --------
        Actuarial present value of benefit obligations:
                                                                                                            
         Vested benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . .     $(22,871)       $(4,178)      $(20,146)      $(3,349)
         Nonvested benefits. . . . . . . . . . . .       (3,166)        (1,169)        (3,837)       (2,036)
                                                         ------          -----         ------         -----
        Accumulated benefit obligation . . . . . .      (26,037)        (5,347)       (23,983)       (5,385)
        Effect of future salary increases. . . . .       (6,147)        (3,773)        (7,164)       (2,003)
                                                         ------          -----         ------         -----
        Projected benefit obligation . . . . . . .      (32,184)        (9,120)       (31,147)       (7,388)
        Plan assets at fair value. . . . . . . . .       26,583              -         23,112             -
                                                         ------          -----         ------         -----
        Projected benefit obligations in
         excess of plan assets . . . . . . . . . .       (5,601)        (9,120)        (8,035)       (7,388)
        Unrecognized prior service cost. . . . . .          267          3,203            380         1,997
        Unrecognized net transition obligation . .           63            193             58           220
        Unrecognized net (gain) loss . . . . . . .        2,158          1,534          3,991         2,143
                                                         ------          -----         ------         -----
        Pension liability. . . . . . . . . . . . .     $ (3,113)       $(4,190)      $ (3,606)      $(3,028)
                                                         ======          =====         ======         =====

     In determining the above information for each period, the Company's actuaries assumed the following:

                                                            October 2, 1994              October 3, 1993
                                                       --------------------------    --------------------------
                                                       Qualified    Non-qualified    Qualified    Non-qualified
                                                         plans           plan          plans          plan
                                                        ------         --------       ------        --------
                                                                                                              
        Discount rate. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .        8.25%          7.25%          7.75%         7.25%
        Rate of increase in compensation levels. .        5.50%          5.00%          5.50%         6.50%
        Long-term rate of return on assets . . . .        8.00%            N/A          8.00%           N/A

     Assets of the qualified plans consist primarily of listed stocks and
     bonds.
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9.   RETIREMENT, SAVINGS AND BONUS PLANS (continued)

     The Company maintains savings plans which are organized under Section
     401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, which allow non-executive
     administrative and clerical employees who have completed at least one year
     of service or reached age 21, whichever is later, to defer up to 12% of
     their pay on a pre-tax basis. The Company contributes an amount equal to
     50% of the first 4% of compensation that is deferred by the participant.
     The Company also maintains an unfunded, non-qualified deferred
     compensation plan, which was created in 1990 for key executives and other
     members of management.  This plan allows participants to defer up to 15%
     of their salary on a pre-tax basis.  The Company contributes an amount
     equal to 100% of the first 3% contributed by the employee.  In each plan,
     a participant's right to Company contributions vests at a rate of 25% per
     year of service.  The Company's savings plans contributions were $1,081,
     $1,162 and $1,209 in 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively.  The Company's
     non-qualified deferred compensation plan contributions were $285, $376 and
     $362 in 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively.

     The Company maintains a bonus plan which allows certain officers of the
     Company to earn annual cash bonuses based upon achievement of certain
     financial and performance goals approved by the compensation committee of
     the Company's board of directors.  Under this plan, $1,673 was expensed in
     1992.

10.  POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN



     The Company sponsors a health care plan that provides postretirement
     medical benefits for employees who meet minimum age and service
     requirements.  The plan is contributory, with retiree contributions
     adjusted annually, and contains other cost-sharing features such as
     deductibles and coinsurance.  The Company's policy is to fund the cost of
     medical benefits in amounts determined at the discretion of management.

     The Company adopted SFAS 106, "Employers' Accounting for Postretirement
     Benefits Other Than Pensions," as of September 28, 1992.  The effect of
     SFAS 106 on the net periodic postretirement benefit cost for 1994 and 1993
     was $1,533 and $1,532, respectively.  The cumulative effect on prior years
     of adopting SFAS 106 was $10,176.  Prior years have not been restated and
     the pro forma effects on prior years' financial statements have not been
     included because such effects cannot be reasonably estimated.

     The plan's funded status reconciled with amounts recognized in the
     Company's consolidated balance sheet is as follows:
                                                           October 2, October 3,
                                                              1994        1993
                                                           ---------   ---------
        Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation:
          Retirees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (1,036)   $ (1,008)
          Fully eligible active plan participants. . . . .   (2,171)     (1,686)
          Other active plan participants . . . . . . . . .   (7,209)     (7,882)
                                                             ------      ------
                                                            (10,416)    (10,576)
        Plan assets at fair value. . . . . . . . . . . . .        -           -
                                                             ------      ------
        Accumulated postretirement benefit
         obligation in excess of plan assets . . . . . . .  (10,416)    (10,576)
        Unrecognized prior service cost. . . . . . . . . .        -           -
        Unrecognized net gain. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   (2,825)     (1,132)
                                                             ------      ------
        Accrued postretirement benefit cost
         included in other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . $(13,241)   $(11,708)
                                                             ======      ======

     The following items are the components of the net periodic
     postretirement benefit cost:

        Service cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $    770    $    743
        Interest cost. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      763         789
        Actual return on plan assets . . . . . . . . . . .        -           -
        Recognition of transition obligation . . . . . . .        -      10,176
        Net amortization and deferral. . . . . . . . . . .        -           -
                                                             ------      ------
        Net periodic postretirement benefit cost . . . . . $  1,533    $ 11,708
                                                             ======      ======
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10.  POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN (continued)

     In determining the above information, the Company's actuaries assumed
     discount rates of 8.25% and 7.25% as of October 2, 1994 and October 3,
     1993, respectively.

     For measurement purposes, an 11% annual rate of increase in the per capita
     cost of covered benefits (i.e., health care cost trend rate) was assumed
     for 1994 for plan participants under age 65; the rate was assumed
     to decrease 1/2% per year to 5% by the year 2006 and remain at that level
     thereafter.  For plan participants age 65 years or older, a 9% annual



     health care cost trend rate was assumed for 1994; the rate was assumed to
     decrease 1/2% per year to 4% by the year 2004.  The health care cost trend
     rate assumption has a significant effect on the amounts reported.  For
     example, increasing the assumed health care cost trend rates by one
     percentage point in each year would increase the accumulated
     postretirement benefit obligation as of October 2, 1994 by $2,300, or 22%,
     and the aggregate of the service and interest cost components of net
     periodic postretirement benefit cost for the year ended October 2, 1994 by
     $450 or 29%.

11.  FRANCHISE ARRANGEMENTS

     Franchise arrangements generally provide for initial license fees of
     approximately $25 per restaurant and continuing payments to the Company
     based on a percentage of sales.  Among other things, the franchisee is
     provided the use of land and building, generally for a period of 20 years,
     and is required to pay  negotiated rent, property taxes, insurance and
     maintenance.  Included in other revenues is $358, $2,231 and $7,905 for
     the Company in 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively, representing gains on
     sales of restaurant businesses to franchisees.

12.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

     The Company provides distribution services to a portion of FRI's Mexican
     restaurants, principally those operated under the Chi-Chi's name.
     Distribution sales to those restaurants subsequent to January 27, 1994,
     the date the Company sold Chi-Chi's and acquired its 39% interest in FRI,
     aggregated $63,702.  In relation to the distribution sales, the Company
     had accounts receivable of $3,166 due from Chi-Chi's at October 2, 1994.

     Gibbons, Goodwin, van Amerongen ("GGvA"), successor to Gibbons, Green, van
     Amerongen, general partners in the limited partnerships which own
     approximately 46% of the Company's outstanding common stock, were paid a
     fee of $900, $827 and $900 in 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively, under an
     agreement expiring December 1994, whereby GGvA provides certain management
     services to the Company.

13.  STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

     In March 1992, PDV Holding, Inc. ("PDV"), the Company's former parent
     company, merged into Foodmaker (the "Merger").  In the Merger, 16,200,000
     shares of Foodmaker common stock were issued for 10,800,000 shares of PDV
     common stock, and 772,500 shares of Foodmaker preferred stock, $100
     liquidation value, were issued for 600,000 shares of PDV preferred stock.
     In May 1992, the preferred stock was exchanged (the "Exchange") for
     5,150,000 shares of Foodmaker common stock.   In conjunction with the
     Merger, the Company's authorized stock was increased to 75,000,000 common
     shares, par value $.01 per share (decreased from $.10) and 15,000,000
     preferred shares, par value $.01 per share.  During March 1992, the
     Company sold 17,151,000 shares of common stock resulting in net proceeds
     of approximately $242 million.

     In conjunction with the December 1988 acquisition of the Company, warrants
     for the purchase of 1,584,573 shares of common stock were issued and are
     exercisable at $.93 per share, as adjusted for the Merger.  As of
     October 2, 1994, warrants for 1,359,531 shares had been exercised.

     At October 2, 1994, the Company had 4,697,427 shares of common stock
     reserved for issuance upon the exercise of stock options and 225,042
     shares reserved for issuance upon exercise of warrants.
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14.  STOCK OPTIONS

     In January 1992, the Company adopted the 1992 Employee Stock Incentive
     Plan (the "1992 Plan") and, as part of the Merger, assumed outstanding
     options to employees under PDV's 1990 Stock Option Plan and assumed
     contractually the options to purchase 42,750 shares of common stock
     granted to two non-employee directors of the Company.  The purpose of the
     1992 Plan is to enable the Company and its subsidiaries to attract, retain
     and motivate key officers, directors and employees by providing for or
     increasing the proprietary interests of such persons to work toward the
     future financial success of the Company.  Under the 1992 Plan, employees
     are eligible to receive stock options, restricted stock and other various
     stock-based awards.  Subject to certain adjustments, up to a maximum of
     1,875,000 shares of common stock may be sold or issued under the 1992
     Plan.  No awards shall be granted after January 16, 2002, although common
     stock may be issued thereafter, pursuant to awards granted prior to such
     date.

     In August 1993, the Company adopted the 1993 Stock Option Plan (the "1993
     Plan").  The purpose of the 1993 Plan is to enable the Company and its
     subsidiaries to attract, retain and motivate non-officer employees by
     providing for or increasing the proprietary interests of such persons to
     work toward the future financial success of the Company.  Under the 1993
     Plan, employees who do not participate in the 1992 Plan are eligible to
     receive annually stock options with an aggregate exercise price equivalent
     to a maximum of 10 percent of their eligible earnings.  Subject to certain
     adjustments, up to a maximum of 3,000,000 shares of common stock may be
     sold or issued under the 1993 Plan.  No awards shall be granted after
     December 11, 2003, although common stock may be issued thereafter,
     pursuant to awards granted prior to such date.

     The terms and conditions of the stock-based awards under both plans are
     determined by a committee of the board of directors on each award date and
     may include provisions for the exercise price, expiration, vesting,
     restriction on sales and forfeiture, as applicable.  Options granted under
     the plans have terms not exceeding 11 years and provide for an option
     exercise price no less than 100% of the fair market value of the common
     stock on the day the option was granted.

     The following is a summary of stock option activity for the three fiscal
     years ended October 2, 1994:

                                                                Option price
                                                       Shares     per share
                                                      -------   ------------
        Balance at September 30, 1991 . . . . .       345,855  $   .96-1.13
          Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     1,082,885    1.13-10.00
          Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . .        (4,350)     .96-1.13
          Cancelled . . . . . . . . . . . . . .        (4,500)   1.13-10.00
                                                    ---------
        Balance at September 27, 1992 . . . . .     1,419,890     .96-10.00
          Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .       547,334   10.13-13.38
          Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      (100,923)    .96-10.00
          Cancelled . . . . . . . . . . . . . .       (10,690)   1.13-11.00
                                                    ---------
        Balance at October 3, 1993. . . . . . .     1,855,611     .96-13.38
          Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .       323,000    5.88-10.13
          Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      (115,050)     .96-1.13
          Cancelled . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      (252,970)   5.88-13.38
                                                    ---------
        Balance at October 2, 1994. . . . . . .     1,810,591     .96-12.25
                                                    =========
     Stock options for the purchase of 1,288,661 shares are exercisable at
     October 2, 1994.



                                     F-20

                         FOODMAKER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

                     NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
                    (Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
                                    (continued)

15.  AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING

     Earnings per share for 1994, 1993 and 1992 are based on the weighted
     average number of shares outstanding during the year, determined as
     follows:

                                                              October 2,      October 3,     September 27,
                                                                 1994            1993            1992
                                                              ----------      ----------     ------------
                                                                                                     
        Shares outstanding, beginning of fiscal year. . .     38,234,250      38,148,946      21,350,000
        Effect of common stock issued . . . . . . . . . .        296,797         913,570       9,335,182
        Effect of common stock reacquired . . . . . . . .              -      (1,027,008)        (34,881)
        Assumed additional shares issued upon
         exercise of stock options and warrants,
         net of shares reacquired at the average
         market price . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .              -         450,819       1,927,001
                                                              ----------      ----------      ----------
        Weighted average shares outstanding . . . . . . .     38,531,047      38,486,327      32,577,302
                                                              ==========      ==========      ==========

     In computing weighted average shares outstanding, all shares issued
     pursuant to the Merger and the Exchange were considered to be outstanding
     for all periods presented.  Common equivalent shares for stock options and
     warrants issued prior to the initial public offering were considered to be
     outstanding for all periods presented in order to comply with requirements
     of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

16.  QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (Unaudited)

                                 16 weeks ended                    12 weeks ended                 13 weeks ended
                                 --------------         ----------------------------------        --------------
                                  Jan. 17, 1993         Apr. 11, 1993         Jul. 4, 1993          Oct. 3, 1993
                                 --------------         -------------         ------------          ------------
                                                                                                               
     Revenues                         $403,333              $244,913             $280,241              $312,240
     Gross profit (loss)                70,760                13,420               (6,338)               37,967
     Earnings (loss) before
      cumulative effect of changes
      in accounting principles          11,499               (22,175)             (30,779)               (2,673)
     Net loss                          (42,481)              (22,175)             (30,779)               (2,673)
     Earnings (loss) per share before
      cumulative effect of changes
      in accounting principles             .29                  (.58)                (.81)                 (.07)
     Net loss per share                  (1.09)                 (.58)                (.81)                 (.07)

                                16 weeks ended                              12 weeks ended
                                --------------          --------------------------------------------------------
                                 Jan. 23, 1994          Apr. 17, 1994        Jul. 10, 1994          Oct. 2, 1994
                                 --------------         -------------         ------------          ------------
                                                                                                               
     Revenues                         $381,574              $218,706             $225,822              $227,224
     Gross profit                       43,602                24,574               27,988                28,651
     Loss before extraordinary item     (4,399)              (22,913)              (3,434)               (5,522)
     Net loss                           (4,399)              (25,651)              (3,434)               (6,086)
     Loss per share before
      extraordinary item                  (.11)                 (.59)                (.09)                 (.14)
     Net loss per share                   (.11)                 (.67)                (.09)                 (.16)

     Considering the sale of Chi-Chi's combined with the Company's recent
     losses, the rules under SFAS 109 required the Company to provide a non-
     cash valuation allowance for previously recognized tax benefits resulting
     in an adjustment to the tax provision for the second quarter of 1994 of
     $13.7 million or approximately 36 cents a share.  This increase in the tax
     provision increased the second quarter loss before extraordinary item to
     $22.9 million, or 59 cents a share, from a loss of $9.2 million or 24
     cents a share, as previously reported.  The net loss is therefore also
     increased to $25.7 million, or 67 cents a share, from a loss of $11.9



     million, or 31 cents a share, as previously reported.
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17.  SELECTED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)

     The following selected pro forma statement of operations for the 52 weeks
     ended October 2, 1994 give effect to the following transactions and events
     as if they had occured as of the beginning of the period presented:  (i)
     the acquisition by the Company of a 39% equity interest in FRI, valued at
     $62 million; (ii) the concurrent contribution by the Company of its entire
     Chi-Chi's Mexican restaurant chain to FRI for the above equity interest
     and approximately $173 million in cash ($208 million less the face amount
     of Chi-Chi's debt assumed); and (iii) the utilization of cash to repay all
     of the debt outstanding under the Company's then existing bank credit
     facility, which has since been terminated, with the balance of cash
     available for capital expenditures and general corporate purposes.

     The pro forma financial data presented herein do not purport to represent
     what the Company's results of operations would have been had such
     transactions in fact occurred at the beginning of the period or to project
     the Company's results of operations in any future period.

                                                                                    Pro forma        As
                                                                       Actual      adjustments    adjusted
                                                                     --------      -----------    --------
                                                                                                       
         Revenues:
            Restaurant sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $  843,038      $(123,247)   $  719,791
            Distribution sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    171,711         28,163       199,874
            Franchise rents and royalties. . . . . . . . . . . . .     33,740           (132)       33,608
            Other. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      4,837           (554)        4,283
                                                                    ---------       --------       -------
                                                                    1,053,326        (95,770)      957,556
                                                                    ---------       --------       -------
         Costs of revenues:
            Company restaurant costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    739,900       (113,299)      626,601
            Costs of distribution sales. . . . . . . . . . . . . .    165,789         28,048       193,837
            Franchised restaurant costs. . . . . . . . . . . . . .     22,822           (159)       22,663
         Selling, general and administrative . . . . . . . . . . .    100,764         (3,425)       97,339
         Equity in loss of FRI . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      2,108          6,779         8,887
         Interest expense. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     55,201         (4,373)       50,828
                                                                    ---------       --------       -------
                                                                    1,086,584        (86,429)    1,000,155
                                                                    ---------       --------       -------
         Loss before income taxes and extraordinary item . . . . .    (33,258)        (9,341)      (42,599)
         Income taxes (benefit). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      3,010         (1,710)        1,300
                                                                    ---------       --------       -------
         Loss before extraordinary item. . . . . . . . . . . . . . $  (36,268)     $  (7,631)   $  (43,899)
                                                                    =========       ========       =======
         Loss per share before extraordinary item. . . . . . . . . $     (.94)                  $    (1.14)
         Weighted average shares outstanding . . . . . . . . . . .     38,531                       38,531
         -------------------

         The pro forma adjustments: (i) eliminate revenues, costs of revenues
         and general and administrative expenses of Chi-Chi's; (ii) record
         sales and cost of sales for the Company's distribution activity with
         Chi-Chi's, previously eliminated in consolidation; (iii) record the
         Company's approximate 39% equity in the pro forma net loss of FRI;
         (iv) reflect the reduction of net interest expense through elimination
         of approximately $35 million in debt assumed by FRI and utilization of
         cash proceeds from the sale of Chi-Chi's for investments and for
         retirement of the bank credit facility; and (v) adjust income taxes to
         exclude the impact of Chi-Chi's operations and its disposition.
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               INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON SCHEDULES AND CONSENT

The Board of Directors
Foodmaker, Inc.:

Under date of November 8, 1994, we reported on the consolidated balance
sheets of Foodmaker, Inc. and subsidiaries as of October 2, 1994 and
October 3, 1993, and the related consolidated statements of operations, cash
flows, and stockholders' equity for the fifty-two weeks ended October 2,
1994, the fifty-three weeks ended October 3, 1993 and the fifty-two weeks
ended September 27, 1992.  In connection with our audits of the
aforementioned consolidated financial statements, we also audited the related
financial statement schedules in the Form 10-K.  These financial statement
schedules are the responsibility of the Company's management.  Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statement schedules based on our audits.

In our opinion, such schedules, when considered in relation to the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein.

We consent to incorporation by reference in the registration statement No.
33-50934 on Form S-3 of Foodmaker, Inc. and in registration statement Nos.
33-67450, 33-54602 and 33-51490 on Form S-8 of Foodmaker, Inc. of our report
dated November 8, 1994, relating to the consolidated balance sheets of
Foodmaker, Inc. and subsidiaries as of October 2, 1994 and October 3, 1993,
and the related consolidated statements of operations, cash flows, and
stockholders' equity and related schedules for the fifty-two weeks ended
October 2, 1994, the fifty-three weeks ended October 3, 1993 and the fifty-
two weeks ended September 27, 1992, and which report appears in the October 2,
1994 annual report on Form 10-K of Foodmaker, Inc. and subsidiaries.

                                             KPMG PEAT MARWICK LLP

San Diego, California
December 29, 1994
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                                                     Balance at      Additions                                  Balance at
                                                      beginning         at            Retire-                     end of
                                                      of period        cost            ments        Other         period
                                                      ---------      ---------       --------     --------       --------

                                                                                                                           
Fifty-two weeks ended September 27, 1992
   Land                                               $ 94,931        $ 9,822        $ 4,623      $       -       $100,130
   Buildings                                           296,099         23,663          6,241              -        313,521
   Restaurant and other equipment                      193,716         27,026          9,182              -        211,560
   Construction in progress                             24,784         16,118              -              -         40,902
                                                       -------         ------         ------        -------        -------



                                                      $609,530        $76,629        $20,046      $       -       $666,113
                                                       =======         ======         ======        =======        =======

Fifty-three weeks ended October 3, 1993
   Land                                               $100,130        $ 5,142 <F1>   $11,547      $       -       $ 93,725
   Buildings                                           313,521         39,345 <F1>    12,180          9,429 <F2>   350,115
   Restaurant and other equipment                      211,560         38,439 <F1>     8,456          9,137 <F2>   250,680
   Construction in progress                             40,902        (24,138)             -              -         16,764
                                                       -------         ------         ------        -------        -------
                                                      $666,113        $58,788 <F1>   $32,183      $  18,566 <F2>  $711,284
                                                       =======         ======         ======        =======        =======

Fifty-two weeks ended October 2, 1994
   Land                                               $ 93,725        $17,278        $ 5,670      $ (15,297)<F3>  $ 90,036
   Buildings                                           350,115         30,213          5,334       (110,434)<F3>   264,560
   Restaurant and other equipment                      250,680         18,086          4,678        (83,973)<F3>   180,115
   Construction in progress                             16,764         26,460              -         (3,350)<F3>    39,874
                                                       -------         ------         ------        -------        -------
                                                      $711,284        $92,037        $15,682      $(213,054)<F3>  $574,585
                                                       =======         ======         ======        =======        =======
<FN>
    <F1>
    The Company's additions to property include assets of $12,519 purchased by Chi-Chi's in the acquisition of Conusl
    Restaurant Corporation, which have been recorded in accordance with purchase accounting at fair values as of
    October 23, 1992, the effective date of the acquisition.
    <F2>
    In adopting SFAS 109 as of September 28, 1992, the Company adjusted the carrying amounts of fixed assets due to
    business combinations in 1988 and 1989.
    <F3>
    Represents Chi-Chi's property and equipment at January 27, 1994, the date of Chi-Chi's sale.
</FN>
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                                                                     Additions
                                                     Balance at     charged to                                  Balance at
                                                      beginning      costs and        Retire-                     end of
                                                      of period      expenses          ments        Other         period
                                                      --------       --------        --------     --------       --------

                                                                                                                           
Fifty-two weeks ended September 27, 1992
   Buildings                                          $ 37,107        $15,228        $   634      $       -       $ 51,701
   Restaurant and other equipment                       52,991         22,589          4,603              -         70,977
                                                       -------         ------         ------        -------        -------
                                                      $ 90,098        $37,817        $ 5,237      $       -       $122,678
                                                       =======         ======         ======        =======        =======

Fifty-three weeks ended October 3, 1993
   Buildings                                          $ 51,701        $16,663        $ 1,793      $   1,749 <F1>  $ 68,320
   Restaurant and other equipment                       70,977         25,722          4,268          4,062 <F1>    96,493
                                                       -------         ------         ------        -------        -------
                                                      $122,678        $42,385        $ 6,061      $   5,811 <F1>  $164,813
                                                       =======         ======         ======        =======        =======
Fifty-two weeks ended October 2, 1994
   Buildings                                          $ 68,320        $13,411        $ 1,151      $ (17,912)<F2>  $ 62,668
   Restaurant and other equipment                       96,493         18,223          2,348        (39,429)<F2>    72,939
                                                       -------         ------         ------        -------        -------
                                                      $164,813        $31,634        $ 3,499      $ (57,341)<F2>  $135,607
                                                       =======         ======         ======        =======        =======
<FN>
    <F1>
    In adopting SFAS 109 as of September 28, 1992, the Company adjusted the carrying amounts of fixed assets due to
    business combinations in 1988 and 1989.
    <F2>
    Represents Chi-Chi's accumulated depreciation and amortization of property and equipment at January 27, 1994, the date
    of Chi-Chi's sale.
</FN>
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              SCHEDULE X -- SUPPLEMENTARY INCOME STATEMENT INFORMATION

                   (Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

                                                   Fifty-two           Fifty-three            Fifty-two   
                                                  weeks ended          weeks ended           weeks ended



                                                   October 2,           October 3,          September 27,
                                                     1994                 1993                  1992
                                                   ---------            ---------             ---------
                                                                                                      
        Maintenance and repairs                    $26,929               $30,928               $28,493

        Advertising                                 71,136                84,301                69,344
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                            REVOLVING CREDIT AGREEMENT

           REVOLVING CREDIT AGREEMENT, dated as of July 26, 1994, among
Foodmaker, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), each of the banks
identified on the signature pages hereof (each, a "Bank" and, collectively,
the "Banks"), Credit Lyonnais New York Branch, as Agent for the Banks (the
"Agent"), as Collateral Agent for the Banks ("Collateral Agent") and as the
Swing Line Bank with respect to Swing Line Advances (as defined below) and
Union Bank, as the Issuing Bank with respect to Syndicated Letters of Credit
(as defined below).

                                 W I T N E S S E T H:
                                 - - - - - - - - - -

           WHEREAS, the Company has requested the Banks to lend up to
$52,500,000 to the Company, including letters of credit for the account of
the Company in an aggregate amount of up to $25,000,000, on a revolving
basis, to enable the Company to redeem its 12.75% Senior Notes, its 13.5%
Secured Note to Prudential and between $12,000,000 and $13,000,000 in
principal amount of its 14.25% Senior Subordinated Notes and for general
corporate purposes, including working capital and capital expenditures; and

           WHEREAS, the Company is willing to secure all of its obligations
hereunder by pledging to the Banks the collateral described in a Pledge and
Security Agreement (the "Security Agreement"), between the Company and Credit
Lyonnais New York Branch, as Collateral Agent;

           NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree as follows:

                                   ARTICLE I

                                  DEFINITIONS

           Section 1.01.  Definitions.

           (a)  Terms Generally.  The definitions ascribed to terms in this
Section 1.01 and elsewhere in this Agreement shall apply equally to both the
singular and plural forms of the terms defined.  Whenever the context may
require, any pronoun shall include the corresponding masculine, feminine and
neuter forms.  The words "include", "includes" and "including" shall be
deemed to be followed by the phrase "without limitation".  The words
"hereby", "herein", "hereof", "hereunder" and words of similar import refer
to

this Agreement as a whole (including any exhibits and schedules hereto) and
not merely to the specific section, paragraph or clause in which such word
appears.  All references herein to Articles, Sections, Exhibits and Schedules
shall be deemed references to Articles and Sections of, and Exhibits and
Schedules to, this Agreement unless the context shall otherwise require.
Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, all references to "dollars" or
"$" shall be deemed references to the lawful money of the United States of
America.



           (b)  Accounting Terms.  Except as otherwise expressly provided
herein, all terms of an accounting or financial nature shall be construed in
accordance with GAAP, as in effect from time to time; provided, however,
that, for purposes of determining compliance with any covenant set forth in
Article VIII, such terms shall be construed in accordance with GAAP as in
effect on the date of this Agreement applied on a basis consistent with the
construction thereof applied in preparing the Company's audited financial
statements referred to in Section 6.01(h).  In the event there shall occur a
change in GAAP which but for the foregoing proviso would affect the
computation used to determine compliance with any covenant set forth in
Article VIII, the Company and the Banks agree to negotiate in good faith in
an effort to agree upon an amendment to this Agreement that will permit
compliance with such covenant to be determined by reference to GAAP as so
changed while affording the Banks the protection afforded by such covenant
prior to such change (it being understood, however, that such covenant shall
remain in full force and effect in accordance with its existing terms pending
the execution by the Company and the Banks of any such amendment).

           (c)  Other Terms.  The following terms shall have the meanings
ascribed to them below or in the Sections of this Agreement indicated below:

           "ABR Loans" shall mean Loans which bear interest at the rate and in
the manner set forth in Section 4.02.

           "Adverse Environmental Condition" shall mean the presence or
release of any substance presently or hereafter regulated, defined or listed,
as appropriate, as hazardous, toxic or radioactive under any Environmental
Law, in violation of, or which could reasonably be expected to result in
liability under, applicable Environmental Law.

           "Agent" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the
preamble hereto.
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           "Applicable Margin" shall mean with respect to ABR Loans 1.5% per
annum and with respect to Eurodollar Loans 2.5% per annum.

           "Available Commitment" shall mean (a) on any date prior to the
Termination Date, an amount equal to the remainder of (i) the Total
Commitment on such date minus (ii) the sum of (A) the aggregate outstanding
principal amount of Loans on such date, plus (B) the aggregate outstanding
principal amount of Swing Line Advances on such date, plus (C) the aggregate
Face Amount of Syndicated Letters of Credit outstanding on such date and (b)
on and after the Termination Date, $0.

           "Bank" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the preamble
hereto.

           "Base LIBOR" shall mean, with respect to any Interest Period for a
Eurodollar Loan, the rate per annum determined by the Agent to be the
arithmetic mean (rounded to the nearest 1/16 of 1% or, if there is no nearest
1/16 of 1%, to the next higher 1/16 of 1%) of the respective rates of
interest communicated by the Reference Banks to the Agent as the rate at
which U.S. dollar deposits are offered to the Reference Banks by leading
banks in the London interbank deposits market at approximately 11:00 A.M.,
London time, on the second full Business Day preceding the first day of such
Interest Period in an amount substantially equal to the respective Reference
Amounts for a term equal to such Interest Period.

           "Base Rate" shall mean a fluctuating interest rate per annum as
shall be in effect from time to time, which rate per annum shall on any day
be equal to the higher of:

           (a) the rate of interest publicly announced by the Agent from time
     to time as its reference rate for short-term commercial loans in U.S.
     Dollars to U.S. domestic corporate borrowers (or, if the Agent has no
     such publicly announced rate of interest, the arithmetic mean of the



     rates of interest publicly announced by major banks in New York City
     selected by the Agent as their reference rate for short-term commercial
     loans in U.S. Dollars to U.S. domestic corporate borrowers); and

           (b) the sum (adjusted to the nearest 1/4 of 1% or, if there is no
     nearest 1/4 of 1%, to the next higher 1/4 of 1%) of (i) 1/2 of 1% per
     annum and (ii) the Federal Funds Rate.
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           "Borrowing Date" shall mean the date set forth in each Loan Request
as the date upon which the Company desires to borrow Loans pursuant to the
terms of this Agreement.

           "Business Day" shall mean (i) with respect to any ABR Loan or any
payment of the Commitment Fee or other amounts hereunder, any day except a
Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in New York City, Los
Angeles or Portland, Oregon are authorized by law to close and (ii) with
respect to any Eurodollar Loan, any day on which commercial banks are open
for domestic and international business (including dealings in U.S. dollar
deposits) in London and New York City.

           "Capital Lease" shall mean, with respect to any Person, any
obligation of such Person to pay rent or other amounts under a lease with
respect to any property (whether real, personal or mixed) acquired or leased
by such Person that is required to be accounted for as a liability on a
balance sheet of such Person in accordance with GAAP.

           "Capital Lease Obligations" shall mean the obligation of any Person
to pay rent or other amounts under a Capital Lease.

           "Change of Control" shall mean that either of the following shall
have occurred:  (i) any Person or Group becomes beneficial owner of 50% or
more of the equity interests of the Company, on a fully diluted basis, or
(ii) any Person or Group acquires the voting power necessary to elect a
majority of the board of directors of the Company.

           "Clean-Up Period" shall mean, commencing with the date of the
Initial Loan, any period of 30 consecutive days during each period of twelve
consecutive calendar months, specified by the Company in a notice delivered
to the Agent identified as a "Notice of Clean-Up Period" no later than two
Business Days prior to the commencement of such period, or if no such notice
shall be delivered for any such period, the last 30 days of such twelve month
period.

           "Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

           "Collateral" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the
Security Agreement and shall include "Mortgaged Property" as defined in each
of the Mortgages.

           "Collateral Agent" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in
the preamble hereto.
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           "Commitment" of each Bank shall mean the amount set forth opposite
such Bank's name under the heading "Commitment" on the signature pages
hereof, as such amount may be reduced from time to time pursuant to Sections
2.05, 2.07 and 11.08.

           "Commitment Fee" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in
Section 2.04 hereof.

           "Company" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the
preamble hereto.

           "Consolidated Capital Expenditures" shall mean, for any period, the



aggregate of all expenditures (whether paid in cash or accrued as liabilities
and including that portion of Capital Leases which is capitalized on the
consolidated balance sheet of the Company and its Subsidiaries) by the
Company and its Subsidiaries during such period that in conformity with GAAP
would be classified as capital expenditures.

           "Consolidated Covenant Indebtedness" of the Company shall mean, at
the end of any four quarter period, all Indebtedness of the Company and its
Subsidiaries less amounts outstanding at the end of the four quarter period
then ending, by the Company and its Subsidiaries pursuant to (i) Capital
Leases entered into in connection with the acquisition of new restaurant
properties and (ii) equipment financings which are accounted for on the
balance sheet of such person in accordance with GAAP.

           "Consolidated Depreciation and Amortization Expense" shall mean,
for any period, "Depreciation and amortization" or the similar item, plus
"Deferred finance cost amortization" or the similar item, both determined on
a consolidated basis for the Company and its Subsidiaries, as shown on the
consolidated statements of cash flow for the Company and its Subsidiaries for
such period.

           "Consolidated EBITDA" shall mean, for any period, the sum, without
duplication, of the amounts for such period of (i) Consolidated Operating
Income and (ii) Consolidated Depreciation and Amortization Expense, to the
extent deducted from gross income in determining Consolidated Operating
Income for such period and (iii) Consolidated Interest Expense, to the extent
deducted from gross income in determining Consolidated Operating Income for
such period.

           "Consolidated Fixed Charges" shall mean, for any period, the sum,
without duplication, of (i) Consolidated
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Interest Expense for such period, (ii) principal amounts of all Indebtedness
of the Company and its Subsidiaries scheduled to be paid during such period
and (iii) Consolidated Capital Expenditures, excluding Consolidated Capital
Expenditures made with the proceeds from sale leaseback transactions, made
during such period.

           "Consolidated Interest Expense" shall mean, for any period, total
interest expense (including that attributable to Capital Leases in accordance
with GAAP), whether paid or accrued, of the Company and its Subsidiaries,
determined on a consolidated basis, with respect to all outstanding
Indebtedness of the Company and its Subsidiaries, including all commissions,
discounts and other fees and charges owed with respect to letter of credit
and bankers' acceptance financing and net costs under Interest Rate
Protection Agreements.

           "Consolidated Net Worth" shall mean the excess of Consolidated
Total Assets over Consolidated Total Liabilities; provided, that there shall
be excluded from Consolidated Total Assets (i) cash set apart and held in a
sinking or other analogous fund established for the purpose of redemption or
other retirement of capital stock and (ii) any revaluation or other write-up
in book value of assets subsequent to October 3, 1993.

           "Consolidated Operating Income" shall mean, for any period,
"Earnings (loss) before income taxes, extraordinary items and cumulative
effect of changes in accounting principles" or the similar item, determined
on a consolidated basis for the Company and its Subsidiaries, as shown on the
consolidated statements of operations for the Company and its Subsidiaries
for such period.

           "Consolidated Total Assets" shall mean, at any date of
determination, total assets or the similar item, determined on a consolidated
basis for the Company and its Subsidiaries, as shown on the most recent
consolidated balance sheet for the Company and its Subsidiaries which has
been delivered to the Agent pursuant to Section 8.01(a).



           "Consolidated Total Liabilities" shall mean, at any date of
determination, total liabilities or the similar item, determined on a
consolidated basis for the Company and its Subsidiaries, as shown on the most
recent consolidated balance sheet for the Company and its Subsidiaries which
has been delivered to the Agent pursuant to Section 8.01(a).
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           "Conversion Date" shall mean the date on which a conversion of
interest rates on outstanding Loans, pursuant to a Conversion Request, shall
take effect.

           "Conversion Request" shall mean a request by the Company to convert
the interest rate on all or portions of outstanding Loans pursuant to the
terms hereof, which shall be substantially in the form of Exhibit A and shall
specify, with respect to such outstanding Loans, (i) the requested Conversion
Date, which shall be not less than three Business Days after the date of such
Conversion Request, (ii) the aggregate amount of the Loans, from and after
the Conversion Date, which are to bear interest as ABR Loans or Eurodollar
Loans and (iii) the term of the Interest Periods therefor, if any.

           "Credit Documents" shall mean this Agreement, the Security
Documents, the Notes, and the Syndicated Letters of Credit, as each such
agreement may hereafter be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time.

           "Default" shall mean any event or circumstance which, with the
giving of notice or the passage of time, or both, would become an Event of
Default.

           "Environmental Claim" shall mean any written notice, request for
information pursuant to applicable clean-up or remedial Environmental Laws,
action, claim, order, proceedings, demand or direction (conditional or
otherwise) based on, relating to or arising out of (i) any violation of any
Environmental Law by the Company, its Subsidiaries or any person acting on
behalf of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or (ii) any liabilities
under any Environmental Law including those arising out of any Adverse
Environmental Condition, including without limitation liabilities relating to
the release of Hazardous Substances (whether on-site or off-site), any claim
by any third party, fines, penalties or restrictions, or the transportation,
storage, treatment or disposal of any Hazardous Substances.

           "Environmental Laws" shall mean the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. 9601, et seq., the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. 6901, et seq., the Clean
Air Act, 42 U.S.C. 7401, et seq., the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. 1251, et
seq., the Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. 2601, et seq., the
environmental provisions of the Occupational Safety and Health Act, 29 U.S.C.
651, et seq., and all other federal, state and local laws, ordinances,
regulations, rules,
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orders, permits, and the like, which are directed at the protection of human
health or the environment.

           "ERISA" shall mean the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974, as amended from time to time.

           "ERISA Affiliate" shall mean a corporation, partnership or other
entity which is considered one employer with the Company under Section 4001
of ERISA or Section 414 of the Code.

           "Eurodollar Loans" shall mean Loans which bear interest at a rate
based on LIBOR and in the manner set forth in Section 4.03.

           "Eurodollar Reserve Percentage" shall mean for any day, that
percentage, expressed as a decimal, which is in effect on such day, as
prescribed by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (or any



successor) for determining the maximum reserve requirement (including any
marginal, supplemental or emergency reserve requirements) for a United States
branch or agency of a foreign bank in New York City with deposits exceeding
one billion dollars in respect of eurocurrency funding liabilities.  LIBOR
shall be adjusted automatically on and as of the effective date of any change
in the Eurodollar Reserve Percentage.

           "Event of Default" shall mean any of the events described in
Section 9.01.

           "Excluded Asset Sale" shall mean (i) the sale of goods in the
ordinary course of business; (ii) sales of assets to franchisees in the
ordinary course of business consistent with past practice; (iii) the sale of
any property or assets acquired after the date hereof by the Company or its
Subsidiaries in connection with any sale- leaseback of assets; (iv) the sale,
lease, transfer or disposal of any asset or assets by the Company or a
Subsidiary of the Company to any of the Company or any Subsidiary of the
Company; (v) the sale or other disposition of obsolete or worn out equipment
or other assets in the ordinary course of business; (vi) the sale, lease,
transfer or disposal of properties listed on Schedule 1.01(c); or (vii) the
sale, lease, transfer or disposal of assets (other than goods and services)
having a fair value consideration not exceeding $5,000,000 in the aggregate
for all of the Company and its Subsidiaries in any fiscal year; provided,
however, that for purposes of clause (vii) no sale, lease, transfer or
disposal of assets having a fair value consideration of less than $100,000
shall be included in any aggregation of sales, leases, transfers and
disposals.
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           "Extension Fee" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in
Section 11.11 hereof.

           "Face Amount" of any Syndicated Letter of Credit means, at any
time, the maximum amount available to be drawn under such Syndicated Letter
of Credit at such time (assuming compliance at such time with all conditions
to drawing).

           "Federal Funds Rate" for any day shall mean the rate (rounded to
the nearest 1/16 of 1% or, if there is no nearest 1/16 of 1%, to the next
higher 1/16 of 1%) on such day for Federal Funds as published in H.15(519),
or any successor publication, under the heading "Federal Funds (Effective)".
In the event that such rate or such publication is not published with respect
to such day the Federal Funds Rate on such day shall be the "Federal
Funds/Effective Rate" as posted by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York for
that day in its publication "Composite Closing Quotations for U.S. Government
Securities".  The Federal Funds Rate for Saturdays, Sundays and any other day
on which the Federal Reserve Bank of New York is closed shall be the Federal
Funds Rate as in effect for the next preceding day for which such rates are
published or posted, as the case may be.

           "GAAP" shall mean generally accepted accounting principles set
forth in the opinions and pronouncements of the Accounting Principles Board
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and statements and
pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board or in such other
statements by such other entities as may be approved by a significant segment
of the accounting profession, which are applicable to the circumstances as of
the date of determination.

           "Governmental Authority" shall mean any nation or government, any
state or other political subdivision thereof and any entity exercising
executive, legislative, judicial, regulatory or administrative functions of
or pertaining to government.

           "Group" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in
Section 13(d)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder as in effect on the date hereof.



           "Guarantee" by any Person shall mean any obligation, contingent or
otherwise, of such Person guaranteeing or having the economic effect of
guaranteeing any Indebtedness of any other Person (the "primary obligor") in
any manner, whether directly or indirectly, and including any
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obligation of such Person, (i) to purchase or pay (or advance or supply funds
for the purchase or payment of) such Indebtedness or to purchase (or to
advance or supply funds for the purchase of) any security for the payment of
such Indebtedness, (ii) to purchase property, securities or services for the
purpose of assuring the holder of such Indebtedness of the payment of such
Indebtedness, or (iii) to maintain working capital, equity capital or other
financial statement condition or liquidity of the primary obligor so as to
enable the primary obligor to pay such Indebtedness.  "Guaranteed",
"Guaranteeing" and "Guarantor" shall have meanings correlative to the fore-
going.

           "Hazardous Substance" means any substance presently or hereafter
regulated, defined or listed, as appropriate, as hazardous, toxic or
radioactive under any Environmental Law, whether by type or by quantity,
including any material containing any such substance as a component.
Hazardous Substance includes, without limitation, any toxic waste, pollutant,
contaminant, hazardous substance, toxic substance, hazardous waste, special
waste (each as regulated, defined or listed, as appropriate, under applicable
Environmental Laws), or petroleum or any derivative or by-product thereof,
radon, radioactive material, asbestos, asbestos containing material, urea
formaldehyde foam insulation, lead and polychlorinated biphenyl.

           "Indebtedness" of any Person shall mean, without duplication, (a)
all indebtedness of such Person for borrowed money or for the deferred
purchase price of property or services (including all obligations, contingent
or otherwise, of such Person in connection with letter of credit facilities,
bankers' acceptance facilities, Interest Rate Protection Agreements or other
similar facilities including currency swaps) other than indebtedness to trade
creditors and service providers incurred in the ordinary course of business,
(b) all obligations of such Person evidenced by bonds, notes, debentures or
other similar instruments, (c) all indebtedness created or arising under any
conditional sale or other title retention agreement with respect to property
acquired by such Person (even though the rights and remedies of the seller or
lender under such agreement in the event of default are limited to reposses-
sion or sale of such property), (d) all Capital Lease Obligations of such
Person, (e) all Indebtedness referred to in clauses (a), (b), (c) or (d)
above secured by (or for which the holder of such Indebtedness has an
existing right, contingent or otherwise, to be secured by) any Lien upon or
in property (including accounts and contract rights) owned by such Person,
even though such Person has not assumed or become
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liable for the payment of such Indebtedness, (f) all preferred stock issued
by such Person which is redeemable, prior to the full satisfaction of the
Company's obligations under the Credit Documents (including repayment in full
of the Loans and all interest accrued thereon), other than at the option of
such Person, valued at the greater of its voluntary or involuntary
liquidation preference plus accrued and unpaid dividends and (g) all
Indebtedness of others Guaranteed by such Person.

           "Initial Loan" shall mean the first Loan which is made pursuant to
the terms hereof.

           "Intellectual Property" shall have the meaning ascribed to such
term in the Security Agreement.

           "Interest Period" shall mean each one, two, three or six-month
period, in the case of Eurodollar Loans, such period being the one selected
by the Company pursuant to Section 2.02 hereof and commencing on the date the
relevant loan is made or the last day of the current Interest Period, as the
case may be.



           "Interest Rate Protection Agreements" shall mean any interest rate
swap agreement, interest rate cap agreement or similar arrangement used by a
Person to fix or cap a floating rate of interest on Indebtedness to a
negotiated maximum rate or amount.

           "Issuing Bank" shall mean Union Bank, or any successor to the
duties, obligations and rights of Union Bank, in its capacity as issuer of
Syndicated Letters of Credit hereunder.

           "Issuing Fee" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in
Section 3.01(j) hereof.

           "Letter of Credit Fee" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term
in Section 3.01(i) hereof.

           "Letter of Credit Notice" shall have the meaning ascribed to such
term in Section 3.01(c) hereof.

           "Lien" shall mean, with respect to any asset, (a) any mortgage,
deed of trust, lien, pledge, encumbrance, charge or security interest in or
on such asset, (b) the interest of a vendor or lessor under any conditional
sale agreement, capital lease or title retention agreement relating to such
asset, and (c) in the case of securities, any purchase option, call or
similar right of a third party with respect to such securities.

                                       -11-

           "LIBOR" shall mean with respect to any Interest Period the rate per
annum (rounded to the nearest 1/16 of 1% or, if there is no nearest 1/16 of
1%, to the next higher 1/16 of 1%) determined pursuant to the following
formula:

                                  Base LIBOR
                      ----------------------------------
           LIBOR =    (1 - Eurodollar Reserve Percentage)

           "Loans" shall mean, collectively, the ABR Loans and Eurodollar
Loans, but shall not include Swing Line Advances.

           "Loan Request" shall mean a request by the Company to borrow Loans
pursuant to the terms hereof, which shall be substantially in the form of
Exhibit B and shall specify, with respect to such requested Loans, (i) the
requested Borrowing Date, (ii) the aggregate amount of Loans which the
Borrower desires to borrow on such date, (iii) whether such requested Loans
are to bear interest as ABR Loans or Eurodollar Loans, and (iv) if the
requested Loans are to bear interest as Eurodollar Loans, the requested term
of the Interest Period therefor.

           "Material Adverse Effect" shall mean (i) any material adverse
effect on the business, properties, condition (financial or otherwise) or
operations, present or prospective, of the Company and its Subsidiaries taken
as a whole, since any stated reference date or from and after the date of
determination, as the case may be, (ii) any material adverse effect on the
ability of the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole to perform their
respective obligations hereunder and under the Credit Documents, (iii) any
adverse effect on the legality, validity, binding effect or enforceability of
this Agreement or any Credit Document, (iv) any adverse effect on the
perfection or priority of the Agent's and the Banks' Liens upon the
Collateral under the Security Documents or any material adverse effect on the
value of such Collateral except for such changes as may be contemplated or
permitted by this Agreement and the Security Documents.

           "Material Subsidiary" of any Person means a Subsidiary of such
Person, which as of the end of the fiscal year immediately preceding the date
of determination, had greater than five percent (5%) of the consolidated
total assets of such Person or which contributed more than five percent (5%)
of the consolidated EBITDA of such Person during such fiscal year.
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           "Monthly Statements" shall mean consolidated and divisional
financial statements of the Company for each four week period.

           "Mortgages" shall mean the mortgages and deeds of trust made by the
Company in favor of Credit Lyonnais New York Branch, as Collateral Agent, for
the benefit of the Agent, the Issuing Bank, the Swing Line Bank and the
Banks, in respect of the properties of the Company listed on Schedule
7.01(b)-1 hereto, securing the Notes, the Swing Line Advances and the
Syndicated Letters of Credit to the extent provided therein, in each case, in
substantially the form attached as Exhibit C hereto, with such modifications
as are mutually acceptable to the Banks, the Collateral Agent and the
Company.

           "Net Cash Proceeds" shall mean (i) when used in respect of any sale
of assets of the Company or any Subsidiary, the gross cash proceeds received
by the Company, or the relevant Subsidiary from such sale or disposition less
the costs of sale, including payment of the outstanding principal amount of,
premium or penalty, if any, and interest on any Indebtedness which is paid or
required to be paid as a result of such sale, all legal, accounting, title
and recording tax expenses, commissions and other fees and expenses paid or
to be paid in cash solely as a result of such sale, and all other federal,
state, local and foreign taxes paid or payable, in connection therewith,
(ii) when used with respect to any loss, casualty, fire damage, theft,
destruction or condemnation of any capital asset of the Company or any
Subsidiary, the gross cash proceeds received by the Company or the relevant
Subsidiary under any insurance policy or any award or compensation received,
as the case may be, in each case as a result of any such loss, casualty, fire
damage, theft, destruction or condemnation, net of all legal, accounting and
other fees and expenses paid or to be paid in cash as a result of such loss,
casualty, fire damage, theft, destruction or condemnation, and all other
federal, state, local and foreign taxes paid or payable in connection
therewith and (iii) when used in respect of the issuance, assumption or
incurrence of Specified Additional Indebtedness by the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, the gross cash proceeds received by the Company or the relevant
Subsidiary from such issuance, assumption or incurrence less the costs of
issuance, assumption or incurrence.  Net Cash Proceeds shall equal  if it
would otherwise be a negative number hereunder.

           "Notes" shall mean, collectively, the promissory notes of the
Company, each substantially in the form of Exhibit D.

                                       -13-

           "NRS Rate" shall mean, for any day the rate of interest per annum
equal to Credit Lyonnais Nassau Branch bid rate on overnight offshore
deposits in amounts comparable to the deposit with respect to which interest
at the NRS Rate is payable pursuant to Section 3.01(p) hereof quoted daily by
Credit Lyonnais Nassau Branch at or about 5:00 p.m. (New York time).

           "PBGC" shall mean the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation or any
successor thereto.

           "Permitted Encumbrances" shall mean (i) Liens for taxes,
assessments or governmental charges or claims which are not delinquent or
which are being contested in good faith and by appropriate proceedings and
for which adequate reserves (in accordance with GAAP) are being maintained,
(ii) Liens, deposits or pledges to secure obligations under workers'
compensation, social security or similar laws, or under unemployment
insurance, (iii) Liens, deposits or pledges to secure bids, tenders,
contracts (other than contracts for the payment of money), leases, statutory
obligations, surety and appeal bonds and other obligations of like nature
arising in the ordinary course of business, (iv) mechanics', workers',
warehousemen's, carriers', materialmen's and other like Liens arising in the
ordinary course of business with respect to obligations which are not more
than 30 days overdue or which are being contested in good faith, (v) minor
imperfections of title on real estate, provided such imperfections do not



render title unmarketable, (vi) attachment or judgment Liens not giving rise
to a Default or an Event of Default, (vii) leases or subleases granted to
others not interfering with the ordinary conduct of business of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, (viii) Liens in favor of a trustee in an
indenture relating to the Company's outstanding public debt to the extent
such Liens secure compensation and reimbursement obligations of such trustee
under such indenture, (ix) Liens arising in connection with Capital Lease
Obligations, (x) Liens pursuant to sale and leaseback transactions otherwise
permitted hereunder, (xi) any mortgage, encumbrance or other Lien upon, or
security interest in, any property hereafter acquired by the Company or its
Subsidiaries, created contemporaneously with such acquisition to secure or
provide for the payment or financing of any part of the purchase price
thereof, or the assumption of any Lien upon, or security interest in, any
such property hereafter acquired existing at the time of such acquisition, or
the acquisition of any such property subject to any Lien without the
assumption thereof (or any Permitted Refinancing thereof); provided, that (A)
the Indebtedness secured by any such Lien shall not exceed
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$5,000,000 and (B) each such Lien shall attach only to the property so
acquired and fixed improvements thereon, (xii) Liens granted to the Agent and
the Banks pursuant to the Security Agreement and the Mortgages,
(xiii) existing mortgages disclosed in the financial statements (or the notes
thereto) referred to in Section 6.01(h) (or any Permitted Refinancing
thereof) and (xiv) Liens in favor of Prudential granted in connection with
its 13.5% Note (which shall be removed before the Initial Loan).

           "Permitted Refinancing" shall mean any refinancing of existing
Indebtedness in which (i) the principal amount of Indebtedness resulting from
such refinancing does not exceed the sum of (a) the principal amount of
Indebtedness so refinanced plus (b) customary fees and expenses incurred in
connection with such refinancing, (ii) the interest borne by the Indebtedness
resulting from such refinancing does not exceed the rate of interest borne by
the Indebtedness so refinanced, (iii) the maturity of the Indebtedness
resulting from such refinancing does not occur sooner than the maturity on
the Indebtedness so refinanced and (iv)(A) Indebtedness ranking subordinate
to the Loans, Swing Line Advances and Syndicated Letters of Credit in right
of payment is replaced with other subordinated Indebtedness, (B) Indebtedness
ranking pari passu with the Loans, Swing Line Advances and Syndicated Letters
of Credit is replaced with either subordinated or pari passu Indebtedness and
(C) Indebtedness secured by a Permitted Encumbrance is replaced by
Indebtedness with no greater security than the Indebtedness being replaced.

           "Person" shall mean any individual, sole proprietorship,
partnership, joint venture, trust, unincorporated organization, association,
corporation, institution, public benefit corporation, entity or government
(whether Federal, state, county, city, municipal or otherwise, including any
instrumentality, division, agency, body or department thereof).

           "Plan" shall mean an employee pension benefit plan as defined in
Section 3(2) of ERISA (including a plan which is a multiemployer plan) which
is maintained by the Company or an ERISA Affiliate.

           "Prescribed Forms" shall mean such duly executed form(s) or
statement(s), and in such number of copies, which may, from time to time, be
prescribed by law and which, pursuant to applicable provisions of (a) an
income tax treaty between the United States and the country of residence of
the Bank providing the form(s) or statement(s), (b) the Code, or (c) any
applicable rule or regulation under
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the Code, permit the Company to make payments hereunder for the account of
such Bank free of deduction or withholding for income or similar taxes.

           "Pro Rata Share" shall mean, with respect to any Bank, the
proportion of such Bank's Commitment to the Total Commitment of all the Banks
or, if the Total Commitment shall have been cancelled or reduced to $0 or
expired, the proportion of such Bank's then outstanding Loans to the



aggregate amount of Loans then outstanding.

           "Prudential" shall mean The Prudential Insurance Company of
America.

           "Reference Amount", with respect to any Reference Bank and Interest
Period, shall mean (a) if that Reference Bank is a Bank, the amount of that
Bank's Eurodollar Loan scheduled to be outstanding during that Interest
Period, or (b) if that Reference Bank is not a Bank, the amount scheduled to
be outstanding during that Interest Period of Eurodollar Loan of the office
or affiliate of that Reference Bank that is a Bank, in each case, (i) without
taking into account any reduction in the amount of any Bank's Loan through
any assignment or transfer and (ii) rounded up to the nearest integral
multiple of $1,000,000.

           "Reference Bank" shall mean Credit Lyonnais New York Branch.

           "Reimbursement Obligations" shall mean, collectively, the
obligations of the Company then outstanding or that may thereafter arise in
respect of Syndicated Letters of Credit then outstanding under
Section 3.01(g) to reimburse the Issuing Bank in respect of any drawing under
a Syndicated Letter of Credit.

           "Required Banks" shall mean (a) as long as the Total Commitment has
not been cancelled or terminated, (i) at any date that the Commitment of only
one Bank equals 100% of the Total Commitment, that Bank, (ii) at any date
that the Commitment of only one Bank equals at least 51% but less than 100%
of the Total Commitment, that Bank and at least one other Bank and (iii) at
any date that the Commitment of each Bank is less than 51% of the Total
Commitment, Banks having 51% or more of the Total Commitment and (b) if the
Total Commitment has been cancelled or terminated, (i) at any date that any
one Bank holds Notes evidencing 100% of the aggregate unpaid principal amount
of the Loans, that Bank, (ii) at any date that any one Bank holds Notes
evidencing at least 51% but less than 100% of the aggregate unpaid principal
amount of the Loans, that
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Bank and at least one other Bank, (iii) at any date that no single Bank holds
Notes evidencing at least 51% of the aggregate unpaid principal amount of the
Loans, Banks holding Notes evidencing at least 51% of the aggregate unpaid
principal amount of the Loans.

           "Security Agreement" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term
in the Recitals hereto, and shall be in substantially the form attached as
Exhibit E hereto, with such modifications as are mutually acceptable to the
Banks, the Collateral Agent and the Company.

           "Security Documents" shall mean (i) the Security Agreement,
(ii) the Mortgages, (iii) all notices of security interests in deposit
accounts requested by the Agent pursuant to the Security Agreement,
(iv) Form UCC-1 Financing Statements and amendments thereto and (v) any other
document encumbering the Collateral or evidencing or perfecting a security
interest therein for the benefit of the Banks.

           "Solvent" shall mean, when used with respect to any Person, that:

           (a) at the date of determination, the present fair salable value of
     such Person's assets is in excess of the total amount of such Person's
     liabilities;

           (b) at the date of determination, such Person is able to pay its
     debts as they become due; and

           (c) such Person does not have unreasonably small capital to carry
     on such Person's business as theretofore operated and all businesses in
     which such Person then is about to engage.

           "Specified Additional Indebtedness" of any Person shall mean



Indebtedness which is not outstanding as of the date hereof, excluding
(i) Indebtedness to the Agent, the Swing Bank, the Issuing Bank or the Banks
hereunder and under the other Credit Documents, (ii) Indebtedness incurred
pursuant to sale-leaseback transactions, entered into pursuant to the
acquisition of new restaurant properties, not exceeding (A) $45,000,000 in
any fiscal year, including any period during which this Agreement is extended
pursuant to Section 11.11, or (B) $115,000,000 during the period from the
date hereof to the third anniversary of the date hereof, (iii) Capital
Leases, entered into in connection with the acquisition of new restaurant
properties, not exceeding $15,000,000, (iv) Indebtedness incurred pursuant to
equipment financing transactions not exceeding $15,000,000,
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(v) purchase money obligations, (vi) indebtedness incurred pursuant to a
Permitted Refinancing, (vii) Interest Rate Protection Agreements which are
subordinate to the rights of the Banks hereunder in a manner that is
acceptable to the Agent and (viii) other Indebtedness not exceeding
$3,000,000.

           "Subsidiary" shall mean any corporation the majority of the voting
shares of which at the time are owned directly or indirectly by the Company
and/or by one or more Subsidiaries of the Company.

           "Swing Line Advance" means an advance made by the Swing Line Bank
pursuant to Section 2.08.

           "Swing Line Advance Request" shall have the meaning ascribed to
such term in Section 2.08(c) hereof.

           "Swing Line Bank" means Credit Lyonnais New York Branch, or any
successor to the duties, obligations and rights of Credit Lyonnais New York
Branch, in its capacity as the bank making Swing Line Advances hereunder.

           "Swing Line Borrowing" means a borrowing consisting of a Swing Line
Advance made by the Swing Line Bank.

           "Swing Line Facility" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term
in Section 2.08 hereof.

           "Syndicated Letters of Credit" shall have the meaning ascribed to
such term in Section 3.01 hereof.

           "Syndicated Letters of Credit Commitment" shall have the meaning
ascribed to such term in Section 3.01(a) hereof.

           "Taxes" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section
5.04(a).

           "Termination Date" shall mean the earlier to occur of (i) the third
anniversary of the date of this Agreement or such later date as may be agreed
to pursuant to Section 11.11 or (ii) the date, if any, on which the Total
Commitment is cancelled or reduced to $0 pursuant to Section 2.05 or
Section 2.07.

           "Total Commitment" shall mean the aggregate Commitment of all the
Banks.
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           "UCP" shall mean the Uniform Customs and Practice for Documentary
Credits, 1993 revision, International Chamber of Commerce Publication
No. 500, as the same may be amended and in effect from time to time.

           "Wholly owned Subsidiary" shall mean any Subsidiary all the shares
of stock of all classes of which (other than directors' qualifying shares) at
the time are owned directly or indirectly by the Company and/or one or more
Wholly owned Subsidiaries of the Company.



                                  ARTICLE II

                          THE REVOLVING CREDIT LOANS

           Section 2.01.  The Loans.  Prior to the Termination Date, and
subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, upon the request of
the Company, and upon the satisfaction by the Company or the waiver by each
of the Banks of each of the conditions precedent contained in Article VII
applicable thereto, each of the Banks, severally and not jointly with the
other Banks, agrees to make one or more Loans to the Company from time to
time in an aggregate principal amount at any one time outstanding not to
exceed its Commitment; provided, however, that the sum of (i) aggregate
outstanding Loans, plus (ii) the aggregate outstanding Swing Line Advances,
plus (iii) the aggregate Face Amount of Syndicated Letters of Credit
outstanding at any time may not exceed the Total Commitment.

           Section 2.02.  Procedure for Loans.

           (a)  The Company may borrow Loans by delivering a written Loan
Request to the Agent by 2:00 p.m., New York time, on the Business Day that is
not less than one Business Day prior to the requested Borrowing Date
therefor, in the case of ABR Loans, or three Business Days prior to the
requested Borrowing Date therefor, in the case of Eurodollar Loans.  ABR
Loans shall be in the minimum aggregate amount of $1,000,000 or in integral
multiples of $1,000,000 in excess thereof.  Eurodollar Loans shall be in the
minimum aggregate amount of $5,000,000 or in integral multiples of $1,000,000
in excess thereof.  There shall not be outstanding at any one time more than
five separate Eurodollar Loans.

           (b)  Upon receipt of any Loan Request from the Company, the Agent
shall forthwith give notice to each Bank of the substance thereof.  Not later
than 10:00 A.M. New York time, on the Borrowing Date specified in such Loan
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Request, each Bank shall make available to the Agent in immediately available
funds at the office of the Agent at its address set forth on the signature
pages hereof, such Bank's Pro Rata Share of the requested Loans.

           (c)  Upon receipt by the Agent of all such funds and upon the
satisfaction by the Company or waiver by each of the Banks of each of the
conditions precedent contained in Article VII applicable thereto, the Agent
shall disburse to the Company on the requested Borrowing Date the Loans
requested in such Loan Request.  The Agent may, but shall not be required to,
advance on behalf of any Bank such Bank's Pro Rata Share of the Loans on a
Borrowing Date unless such Bank shall have notified the Agent prior to such
Borrowing Date that it does not intend to make available its Pro Rata Share
of such Loans on such date.  If the Agent makes such advance, the Agent shall
be entitled to recover such amount on demand from the Bank on whose behalf
such advance was made, and if such Bank does not pay the Agent the amount of
such advance on demand, the Company shall promptly repay such amount to the
Agent.  Until such amount is repaid to the Agent by such Bank or the Company,
such advance shall be deemed for all purposes to be a Loan made by the Agent.
The Agent shall be entitled to recover from the Bank or the Company, as the
case may be, interest on the amount advanced by it for each day from the
Borrowing Date therefor until repaid to the Agent, at a rate per annum equal
to the applicable rate on the Loans made on the Borrowing Date.

           (d)  In lieu of delivering the written notice described above, the
Company may give the Agent telephonic notice of any request for borrowing by
the time required under this Section 2.02; provided, that such telephonic
notice shall be confirmed by delivery of a written notice to the Agent by no
later than 2:00 P.M., New York time, on the date of such telephonic notice.

           Section 2.03.  Notes.  The Company's obligation to repay the Loans
shall be evidenced by Notes, one such payable to the order of each Bank.  The
Note of each Bank shall (i) be in the principal amount of such Bank's
Commitment, (ii) be dated the date of the Initial Loan and (iii) be stated to



mature on the Termination Date and bear interest from its date until maturity
on the principal balance (from time to time outstanding thereunder) payable
at the rates and in the manner provided herein.  Each Bank is authorized to
indicate upon the grid attached to its Note all Loans made by it pursuant to
this Agreement, interest elections and payments of principal and interest
thereon.  Such notations shall be presumptive as to the aggregate
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unpaid principal amount of all Loans made by such Bank, and interest due
thereon, but the failure by any Bank to make such notations or the inaccuracy
or incompleteness of any such notations shall not affect the obligations of
the Company hereunder or under the Notes.

           Section 2.04.  Commitment Fee.  The Company shall pay to the Agent
for the account of the Banks a fee (the "Commitment Fee") equal to one-half
of one percent (1/2 of 1%) per annum (on the basis of a 365-day year for the
actual number of days elapsed) on the daily average Available Commitment from
the date hereof to the Termination Date.  Such fee shall be payable in
arrears on the last day of each calendar quarter, commencing on the first
such date after the date hereof, and on the Termination Date.

           Section 2.05.  Cancellation or Reduction of Commitment.  The
Company shall have the right, upon not less than three Business Days' written
notice to the Agent and upon payment of the Commitment Fee accrued through
the date of such cancellation or reduction, to cancel the Total Commitment in
full or to reduce the amount thereof; provided, however, that the Total
Commitment may not be fully canceled so long as any Loan, Swing Line Advance
or Syndicated Letter of Credit remains outstanding; and provided, further,
that the amount of any partial reduction in the Total Commitment shall not
exceed the Available Commitment.  Partial reductions of the Total Commitment
shall be in the amount of $5,000,000 or in integral multiples of $1,000,000
in excess thereof (or, if the aggregate outstanding amount of Loans is less
than $5,000,000 or $1,000,000, as the case may be, then all of such lesser
amount).  All such cancellations or reductions shall be permanent.

           Section 2.06.  Optional Prepayment.  The Company shall have the
right, on not less than three Business Days' written notice to the Agent, to
prepay Loans bearing interest on the same basis and having the same Interest
Periods, if any, in whole or in part, without premium or penalty, in the
aggregate principal amount of $1,000,000 or in integral multiples of
$1,000,000 in excess thereof, in the case of ABR Loans, or in the aggregate
principal amount of $3,000,000 or in integral multiples of $1,000,000 in
excess thereof, in the case of Eurodollar Loans (or, if the outstanding
aggregate amount of such Loan is less than $3,000,000 or $1,000,000, as the
case may be, then all of such lesser amount), together with accrued interest
on the principal being prepaid to the date of prepayment and, in the case of
Eurodollar Loans, the amounts required by
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Section 5.03.  Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, prepaid Loans may
be reborrowed.

           Section 2.07.  Mandatory Reduction of the Commitment; Mandatory
Prepayment.

           (a)  If (i) the Company or any Subsidiary shall sell, lease,
assign, transfer or otherwise dispose of any of its assets, other than
pursuant to an Excluded Asset Sale, (ii) any of Company's or Subsidiary's
capital assets shall be subject to loss, casualty, fire damage, theft or
other destruction or condemnation or (iii) the Company or a Subsidiary
issues, assumes or incurs Specified Additional Indebtedness, the Commitment
of each Bank shall be reduced as provided below by an amount equal to such
Bank's Pro Rata Share of the Net Cash Proceeds from any such sale, lease,
assignment, transfer, disposition, loss, casualty, fire damage, theft,
destruction, condemnation, issuance, assumption or incurrence.  In the case
of reductions due to the issuance, assumption or incurrence of Specified
Additional Indebtedness, each Bank's Commitment shall be reduced upon receipt
by the Company or any Subsidiary, as the case may be, of the Net Cash



Proceeds, and the Company or its Subsidiary, as the case may be, shall
promptly deliver to the Agent notice of the mandatory reduction.  In the case
of reductions due to a sale, lease, assignment, transfer, disposition, loss,
casualty, fire damage, theft, destruction or condemnation such reduction
shall be effective on the date that is six months after the date of receipt
of such Net Cash Proceeds, unless the Company or any such Subsidiary
(i) reinvests an amount equal to such Net Cash Proceeds in a Capital
Investment permitted hereunder within six months of receipt thereof or
(ii)(A) commits, within six months of receipt thereof, to reinvest an amount
equal to such Net Cash Proceeds in a Capital Investment permitted hereunder,
(B) delivers notice and evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Agent of such
commitment and (C) applies such amount to such Capital Investment within six
months of the date of delivery of such notice.  In the event that Net Cash
Proceeds are received by the Company or any Subsidiary, the Commitment of
each Bank shall be reduced by an amount equal to such Bank's Pro Rata Share
in any such proceeds not reinvested pursuant to (i) above, or committed to be
reinvested pursuant to (ii) above, except that if any such proceeds committed
to be reinvested pursuant to (ii) above are not applied to such committed
Capital Investment within six months of the date of delivery of the required
notice, the provisions of clause (ii) above shall not apply and the
Commitment of each Bank shall be reduced as provided in the first sentence of
this Section 2.07(a), effective on
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the date that is six months from the date of delivery of the required notice.

           (b)  Reductions Permanent.  Once effective, any reduction of the
Commitments pursuant to this Section 2.07 shall be permanent and may not be
reinstated.

           (c)  Mandatory Prepayment.  In order that the sum of (i) the
aggregate outstanding Loans, plus (ii) the aggregate outstanding Swing Line
Advances, plus (iii) the aggregate Face Amount of Syndicated Letters of
Credit outstanding will not at any time exceed the Total Commitment, the
Company shall to the extent of any such excess (A) prepay Loans and/or Swing
Line Advances, (B) cause Syndicated Letters of Credit to be returned to the
Issuing Bank for cancellation or (C) deposit with the Issuing Bank an amount
of cash with respect to Syndicated Letters of Credit (and upon such deposit
of cash the Company shall designate which Syndicated Letter of Credit such
cash relates to).  With respect to cash deposited with the Issuing Bank
pursuant to the preceding sentence, the Issuing Bank shall (i) hold such cash
for the ratable benefit of the Banks against the obligation to pay such
Syndicated Letter of Credit in the event of any draw with respect thereto,
(ii) pay interest thereon to the Company at the NRS Rate at the end of each
month, and (iii) return to the Company all cash deposited with it pursuant to
the preceding sentence, together with any accrued but unpaid interest
thereon, promptly upon the expiration or cancellation of each Syndicated
Letter of Credit with respect to which such funds were deposited.

           (d)  Application of Prepayments.  All prepayments required to be
made pursuant to this Section 2.07 shall be applied in the following order:
first, to compensate the Banks for any amounts required by Section 5.03, in
the case that such prepayment shall apply to any Eurodollar Loans, second, to
accrued interest on the principal amount being prepaid and third, to the
principal of the Loans and/or Swing Line Advances, as applicable, then
outstanding, if any.

           (e)  Officer's Certificate.  Promptly upon receipt of any Net Cash
Proceeds, other than pursuant to any Excluded Asset Sale, the Company shall
deliver to the Agent a certificate signed by the chief financial officer of
the Company setting forth the amount of the gross cash proceeds received and
the items deducted therefrom in reasonable detail in order to confirm the
amount of such Net Cash Proceeds.
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           Section 2.08.  Swing Line Advances.



           (a)  Prior to the Termination Date, and subject to the terms and
conditions of this Agreement, the Swing Line Bank shall make, on the terms
and conditions hereinafter set forth, Swing Line Advances to the Company from
time to time on any Business Day in an aggregate amount not to exceed at any
time outstanding $5,000,000 (the "Swing Line Facility"); provided, however,
that the sum of (i) the aggregate outstanding Loans, plus (ii) the aggregate
outstanding Swing Line Advances, plus (iii) the aggregate Face Amount of
Syndicated Letters of Credit outstanding at any time may not exceed the Total
Commitment; provided further, however, that the Swing Line Bank may, if in
its sole discretion it elects to do so, also make, on the terms and
conditions hereinafter set forth, Swing Line Advances to the Company from
time to time on any Business Day in an amount such that the aggregate Swing
Line Advances do not exceed at any time $5,000,000 outstanding.  No Swing
Line Advance shall be used for the purpose of funding the payment of
principal of any other Swing Line Advance.  Each Swing Line Borrowing shall
be in an amount of not less than $500,000 or an integral multiple of $100,000
in excess thereof.

           (b)  Interest.  Each Swing Line Advance shall bear interest at a
rate based upon the Base Rate and in the manner set forth in Section 4.02, as
if such Swing Line Advance were an ABR Loan.

           (c)  Procedure.  Each Swing Line Borrowing shall be made on notice,
given not later than 11:00 A.M., New York time on the date of the proposed
Swing Line Borrowing, by the Company to the Swing Line Bank and the Agent.
Each such notice of a proposed Swing Line Borrowing (a "Swing Line Advance
Request") shall be by telephone, telex, cable or telecopier (and if by telex,
telecopier or cable, in the form of Exhibit F hereto), and, if by telephone,
confirmed immediately in writing, specifying therein the requested (i) date
of such borrowing, (ii) amount of such borrowing and (iii) maturity of such
borrowing (which maturity shall be no later than the seventh day after the
requested date of such borrowing).  To the extent it is required or elects to
do so pursuant to Section 2.08(a) above, the Swing Line Bank will make the
amount of the requested Swing Line Advance available to the Agent in
immediately available funds, at the office of the Agent at its address set
forth on the signature pages hereof.  After the Agent's receipt of such funds
and upon satisfaction by the Company, or waiver by the Agent of each of the
conditions precedent contained in Article VII applicable thereto, the Agent
will disburse such funds to the Company.  Upon written demand by the Swing
Line
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Bank, with a copy of such demand to the Agent, each other Bank shall purchase
from the Swing Line Bank, and the Swing Line Bank shall sell and assign to
each such other Bank, such other Bank's Pro Rata Share of such outstanding
Swing Line Advance as of the date of such demand, by making available to the
Agent for the account of the Swing Line Bank, in immediately available funds,
an amount equal to the portion of the outstanding principal amount of such
Swing Line Advance to be purchased by such Bank.  The Company hereby agrees
to each such sale and assignment.  Each Bank agrees to purchase its Pro Rata
Share of an outstanding Swing Line Advance on (i) the Business Day on which
demand therefor is made by the Swing Line Bank, provided that notice of such
demand is given not later than 11:00 A.M., New York time, on such Business
Day or (ii) the first Business Day next succeeding such demand if notice of
such demand is given after such time.  Upon any such assignment by the Swing
Line Bank to any other Bank of a portion of a Swing Line Advance, the Swing
Line Bank represents and warrants to such other Bank that the Swing Line Bank
is the legal and beneficial owner of such interest being assigned by it, but
makes no other representation or warranty and assumes no responsibility with
respect to such Swing Line Advance, the Credit Documents or the Company.  If
and to the extent that any Bank shall not have so made the amount of such
Swing Line Advance available to the Agent, such Bank agrees to pay to the
Agent forthwith on demand such amount together with interest thereon, for
each day from the date of demand by the Swing Line Bank until the date such
amount is paid to the Agent, at a rate per annum equal to the rate of
interest then applicable to ABR Loans, changing as and when said rate
changes.  If such Bank shall pay to the Agent such amount for the account of
the Swing Line Bank on any Business Day, such amount so paid in respect of



principal shall constitute a Swing Line Advance made by such Bank on such
Business Day for purposes of this Agreement, and the outstanding principal
amount of the Swing Line Advance made by the Swing Line Bank shall be reduced
by such amount on such Business Day.

           (d)  Repayment.  The Company shall repay to the Agent for the
account of the Swing Line Bank and each other Bank which has made a Swing
Line Advance the outstanding principal amount of each Swing Line Advance made
to the Company by each of them on the earlier of the maturity date specified
in the applicable Swing Line Advance Request (which maturity shall be no
later than the seventh day after the requested date of such borrowing) and
the Termination Date.
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           Section 2.09.  Clean-Up Periods.  The Company shall, to the extent
necessary, repay outstanding Loans and Swing Line Advances and cash
collateralize, or cause to be returned for cancellation, Syndicated Letters
of Credit so that during each Clean-Up Period to occur following the date of
the Initial Loan the aggregate outstanding amount of Loans plus Swing Line
Advances plus the Face Amount of Syndicated Letters of Credit is less than
$35,000,000.  Such repaid Loans and Swing Line Advances and cash
collateralized or returned Syndicated Letters of Credit may not be reborrowed
until after such Clean-Up Period has ended.  No Clean-Up Period shall begin
earlier than thirty days after the completion of the immediately preceding
Clean-Up Period.

                                 ARTICLE III

                       SYNDICATED LETTERS OF CREDIT

           Section 3.01.  Syndicated Letters of Credit.  Subject to the terms
and conditions hereof, the Issuing Bank shall issue letters of credit (the
"Syndicated Letters of Credit") for the account of the Company.

           (a)  The Syndicated Letters of Credit Commitment  at any time shall
be equal to the lesser of (x) $25,000,000 and (y) the Available Commitment.

           (b)  The Syndicated Letters of Credit (A) shall have an aggregate
Face Amount not in excess of the Syndicated Letter of Credit Commitment,
(B) may, at the sole option of the Issuing Bank, be renewable if so requested
by the Company using the form for such request then in general use by the
Issuing Bank, and (C) shall have an expiration date no later than the earlier
of (i) 365 days after the date of issuance thereof and (ii) the Termination
Date.  There shall not be outstanding at any one time more than ten (10)
separate Syndicated Letters of Credit.

           (c)  The Company shall give the Agent at least three Business Days'
prior written notice substantially in the form of Exhibit G (effective upon
receipt) (a "Letter of Credit Notice") specifying the date on which each
Syndicated Letter of Credit is to be issued, the requested expiration date
thereof and the stated amount thereof, and attaching a proposed form of such
letter of credit accompanied by a completed form of application for issuance
of a letter of credit, using such standard form as shall then be in general
use by the Issuing Bank.  Upon receipt of such notice, the Agent shall notify
each Bank of the contents thereof.
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           (d)  Upon the date of issuance of each Syndicated Letter of Credit,
the Issuing Bank shall be deemed, without further action by any party hereto,
to have sold to each Bank, and each Bank hereby irrevocably agrees to
purchase and each Bank shall be deemed, without further action by any party
hereto, to have purchased from the Issuing Bank, an undivided and continuing
participation in such Syndicated Letter of Credit, in accordance with such
Bank's Pro Rata Share.

           (e)  Upon receipt from the beneficiary of any Syndicated Letter of



Credit of any demand for payment under such Letter of Credit, the Issuing
Bank shall promptly notify the Company as to the amount paid or to be paid as
a result of such demand and the respective payment date.

           (f)  Each Bank shall promptly, upon request by the Issuing Bank,
remit to the Issuing Bank, through the Agent, such Bank's share (as
determined in accordance with Section 3.01(d) above) of the payment made by
the Issuing Bank together with interest thereon for each day from the day of
demand through the day of payment at a rate equal to the rate of interest
then applicable to ABR Loans, changing as and when said rate shall change.

           (g)  The Company shall not later than noon, New York time, on the
date of payment of each drawing, reimburse the Issuing Bank, through the
Agent, for any amounts paid by the Issuing Bank under any Syndicated Letter
of Credit.  The Issuing Bank shall promptly remit to each Bank, through the
Agent, such Bank's share (as determined in accordance with Section 3.01(d)
above) of any payment received by the Issuing Bank to the extent that such
Bank has reimbursed the Issuing Bank in accordance with clause (f) of this
Section 3.01.  To the extent that the Company does not reimburse the Issuing
Bank, by means of payment pursuant to this paragraph (g) or by means of Loans
issued pursuant to paragraph (h) of this Section 3.01, for any payment by the
Issuing Bank under any Syndicated Letter of Credit on the date of such
payment, such amounts not reimbursed shall accrue interest, payable on
demand, at the rate per annum (on the basis of a 365-day year for the actual
number of days involved) equal to the sum of (i) 2% per annum and (ii) the
rate of interest then applicable to ABR Loans, changing as and when said rate
shall change.

           (h)  The Company may request each Bank to make a Loan in order to
pay its Reimbursement Obligation in respect of any payment of each drawing
under any Syndicated Letter of Credit.  To the extent that the Company has
not otherwise paid such Reimbursement Obligation on the date of any such
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drawing, the Company shall be deemed to have given a timely notice of request
for Loans to be made on such day as ABR Loans in an aggregate amount of such
Reimbursement Obligation.  On the day that Loans are to be made in order to
pay such Reimbursement Obligation, each Bank shall, subject to and in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement (including
satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Article VII hereof), make a Loan,
the proceeds of which shall be applied to such Reimbursement Obligation;
provided, however, that such Loan may be in amounts less than the minimum
aggregate principal amount or in amounts other than in multiples of
$1,000,000 in excess thereof as required by Section 2.02(a); and provided
further that, with respect to such Loan, such Bank shall be required to make
available to the Issuing Bank under Section 2.02(b) only an amount equal to
the difference, if any, between the amount of such Loan and the amount
remitted through the Agent to the Issuing Bank pursuant to Section 3.01(f).
Nothing in this paragraph (h) shall limit each Bank's irrevocable obligations
with respect to participations in each Syndicated Letter of Credit pursuant
to this Section 3.01.

           (i)  The Company shall pay to the Agent for the account of each
Bank a letter of credit fee (the "Letter of Credit Fee") on such Bank's share
(as determined in accordance with Section 3.01(d) above) of each Syndicated
Letter of Credit in the daily average undrawn face amount of such Syndicated
Letter of Credit for the period from and including the date of issuance
thereof to and including the date of expiration or termination thereof at a
rate per annum equal to 2.5%, such fee to be paid quarterly in arrears on the
last day of each March, June, September and December, and on the date of
expiration of such Syndicated Letter of Credit; provided that if any such day
is not a Business Day, such fee shall be payable on the next preceding
Business Day.

           (j)  The Company shall pay to the Issuing Bank for the sole account
of the Issuing Bank an issuing fee (the "Issuing Fee") equal to 1/4 of 1% per
annum of the aggregate daily average undrawn face amount of Syndicated
Letters of Credit outstanding from time to time, such fee to be paid



quarterly in arrears on the last day of each March, June, September and
December; provided that if any such day is not a Business Day, such fee shall
be payable on the next preceding Business Day.  The Company shall also pay
such other fees with respect to issuance, amendment, advising and like
services by the Issuing Bank as are generally charged to its customers by the
Issuing Bank for such services at the time such service is performed.
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           (k)  The obligations of the Company under this Section 3.01 shall
be unconditional and irrevocable and shall be paid strictly in accordance
with the terms of this Agreement under all circumstances, including
circumstances such as:  (a) any lack of validity or enforceability of this
Agreement, any Syndicated Letter of Credit or any other Credit Document; (b)
the existence of any claim, set-off, defense or other right that the Company
or any other Person may have at any time against any beneficiary or
transferee of any Syndicated Letter of Credit (or any Persons from whom any
such beneficiary or transferee may be acting), the Issuing Bank, any Bank or
any other Person, whether in connection with this Agreement, the transactions
contemplated hereby or any unrelated transaction; (c) any draft, certificate,
statement or other document presented under any Syndicated Letter of Credit
proving to be forged, fraudulent, invalid or insufficient in any respect or
any statement therein being untrue or inaccurate in any respect; (d) payment
by the Issuing Bank under any Syndicated Letter of Credit against
presentation of a draft or certificate that does not comply with the terms of
such Syndicated Letter of Credit, or payment by the Issuing Bank under the
Syndicated Letter of Credit in any other circumstances in which conditions to
payment are not met, except any such payment resulting solely from the gross
negligence or willful misconduct of such Issuing Bank; or (e) any other
event, condition or circumstance whatever, whether or not similar to any of
the foregoing.  The Company bears the risk of, and neither the Issuing Bank,
any of its directors, officers, employees or agents, nor any Bank, shall be
liable or responsible for any of the foregoing matters, the use that may be
made of any Syndicated Letter of Credit or acts or omissions of the
beneficiary or any transferee in connection therewith.

           (l)  On each day during the period commencing with the issuance by
the Issuing Bank of any Syndicated Letter of Credit and until such Syndicated
Letter of Credit shall have expired or been terminated, the Commitment of
each Bank shall be deemed to be utilized for all purposes hereof (including
Section 2.04) in an amount equal to such Bank's share (as determined in
accordance with Section 3.01(d) above) of the then undrawn face amount of
such Letter of Credit; provided, however, that for the purpose of determining
whether any requested Loan or Syndicated Letter of Credit would exceed the
Total Commitment if made, on each day during the period commencing with the
giving of notice by the Company to the Issuing Bank of a requested Syndicated
Letter of Credit pursuant to Section 3.01(c), the Commitment of each Bank
shall be deemed to be utilized in an amount
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equal to such Bank's Commitment with respect to the then undrawn face amount
of such Syndicated Letter of Credit.

           (m)  The issuance by the Issuing Bank of each Syndicated Letter of
Credit shall, in addition to the conditions precedent set forth in
Article VII, be subject to the conditions precedent that such Syndicated
Letter of Credit shall be in such form as shall be satisfactory to the
Issuing Bank in its reasonable discretion and that the Company shall have
executed and delivered such other instruments and agreements relating to such
Syndicated Letter of Credit as the Issuing Bank shall have reasonably
requested.

           (n)  If, at any time, after the Issuing Bank has made payment on a
demand under a Syndicated Letter of Credit and has received from any Bank
such Bank's share of such payment, and the Issuing Bank receives any payment
or makes any application of funds on account of the Company's Reimbursement
Obligations under such Syndicated Letter of Credit arising from such payment,
the Issuing Bank will pay to the Agent, for the account of such Bank, such



Bank's share (as determined in accordance with Section 3.01(d) above) of such
payment.

           (o)  If any amount received by the Issuing Bank on account of any
Syndicated Letter of Credit Reimbursement Obligation shall be avoided,
rescinded or otherwise returned or paid over by the Issuing Bank for any
reason at any time, whether before or after the termination of this Agreement
(or the Issuing Bank believes in good faith that such avoidance, rescission,
return or payment is required, whether or not such matter has been
adjudicated), each Bank shall, promptly upon notice from the Issuing Bank,
pay over to the Agent for the account of the Issuing Bank its share (as
determined in accordance with Section 3.01(d) above) of such amount, together
with its Pro Rata Share of any interest or penalties payable with respect
thereto.

           (p)  In the event that the Commitment terminates by acceleration
upon the occurrence of a default or otherwise, prior to the Termination Date,
upon such termination, the Company shall either (i) cause all Syndicated
Letters of Credit to be returned to the Issuing Bank for cancellation or
(ii) deposit with the Issuing Bank an amount of cash equal to the Face Amount
of all Syndicated Letters of Credit not so returned to the Issuing Bank upon
such termination.  The Issuing Bank shall hold funds so deposited for the
ratable benefit of the Banks as collateral against the obligation of the
Banks to pay such Syndicated Letters of Credit in the event of any draw with
respect
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thereto and shall pay interest thereon to the Company at the NRS Rate at the
end of each month.  The Issuing Bank shall return to the Company any amounts
deposited with it pursuant to this Section 3.01(p) promptly upon the
expiration or cancellation of each Syndicated Letter of Credit with respect
to which such funds were deposited.

           (q)  Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, each Bank hereby
agrees that its obligation to participate in each Syndicated Letter of Credit
issued in accordance herewith, its obligation to make the payments specified
in this Section 3.01, and the right of the Issuing Bank to receive such
payments in the manner specified therein, are each absolute, irrevocable and
unconditional and shall not be affected by any event, condition or
circumstance whatsoever.  The failure of any Bank to make any such payment
shall not relieve any other Bank of its funding obligation hereunder on the
date due, but no Bank shall be responsible for the failure of any other Bank
to meet its funding obligations hereunder.

                                  ARTICLE IV

               INTEREST, METHOD OF PAYMENT, CONVERSION, ETC.

           Section 4.01.  Procedure for Interest Rate Determination.  Unless
the Company shall request in a Loan Request or in a Conversion Request that
the Loans (or portions thereof) bear interest as Eurodollar Loans, the Loans
shall bear interest as ABR Loans.

           Section 4.02.  Interest on ABR Loans.  Each ABR Loan shall bear
interest from the date of such ABR Loan until maturity, or the beginning of
any relevant Interest Period, as the case may be, payable in arrears on the
last day of each month of each year, commencing with the first such date
after the date hereof, and on the date such ABR Loan is repaid, at a rate per
annum (on the basis of a 365- or 366-day year for the actual number of days
involved) equal to the sum of (i) the Applicable Margin with respect to ABR
Loans and (ii) the Base Rate in effect from time to time, which rate shall
change as and when said Base Rate shall change.

           Section 4.03.  Interest on Eurodollar Loans.

           (a)  Each Eurodollar Loan shall bear interest from the date of such
Loan until maturity, payable in arrears, with respect to Interest Periods of



three months or less, on the last day of such Interest Period, and with
respect to
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Interest Periods longer than three months, on the day which is three months
after the commencement of such Interest Period and on the last day of such
Interest Period, at a rate per annum (on the basis of a 360-day year for the
actual number of days involved), determined by the Agent with respect to each
Interest Period with respect to Eurodollar Loans, equal to the sum of (i) the
Applicable Margin and (ii) LIBOR.

           (b)  The Interest Period for each Eurodollar Loan shall be selected
by the Company at least three Business Days prior to the beginning of such
Interest Period.  If the Company fails to notify the Agent of the Interest
Period for a subsequent Eurodollar Loan at least three Business Days prior to
the last day of the then current Interest Period of an outstanding Eurodollar
Loan, then such outstanding Eurodollar Loan shall become an ABR Loan at the
end of such current Interest Period.

           (c)  Notwithstanding the foregoing:  (i) if any Interest Period for
a Eurodollar Loan would otherwise end on a day which is not a Business Day,
such Interest Period shall be extended to the next succeeding Business Day
unless the result of such extension would be to carry such Interest Period
into another calendar month, in which event such Interest Period shall end on
the immediately preceding Business Day; (ii) any Interest Period that begins
on the last Business Day of a calendar month (or on a day for which  there is
no numerically corresponding day in the calendar month at the end of such
Interest Period) shall end on the last Business Day of a calendar month; and
(iii) no Interest Period for a Eurodollar Loan may extend beyond the
Termination Date.

           (d)  Eurodollar Loans shall be made by each Bank from its branch or
affiliate identified as its Eurodollar Lending Office on the signature page
hereto, or such other branch or affiliate as it may hereafter designate to
the Company and the Agent as its Eurodollar Lending Office.

           Section 4.04.  Conversion.

           (a)  The Company may  request, by delivery to the Agent of a
written Conversion Request not less than three Business Days prior to a
requested Conversion Date, that all or portions of the outstanding Loans, in
the aggregate amount of $1,000,000 or in integral multiples of $1,000,000 in
excess thereof (or, if the aggregate amount of outstanding Loans is less than
$1,000,000, then all such lesser amount) to bear interest from and after the
Conversion Date as either ABR Loans or Eurodollar Loans.
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           (b)  Upon receipt of any such Conversion Request from the Company,
the Agent shall forthwith give notice to each Bank of the substance thereof.
Effective on such Conversion Date and upon payment by the Company of the
amounts, if any, required by Section 5.03, the Loans or portions thereof as
to which the Conversion Request was made shall commence to accrue interest as
set forth in this Article IV for the interest rate selected by the Company.

         (c)  In lieu of delivering the above described notice, the Company
may give the Agent telephonic notice hereunder by the required time under
this Section 4.04; provided, that such telephonic notice shall be confirmed
by delivery of a written notice to the Agent by no later than 2:00 P.M., New
York City time, the date of such telephonic notice.

           Section 4.05.  Post Default Interest.  Upon the occurrence and
during the continuation of an Event of Default, the Agent or the Required
Banks may, at their option, by notice to the Company (which notice may be
revoked at the option of the Required Banks notwithstanding any provision of
Section 11.04 requiring unanimous consent of the Banks to changes in interest
rate), declare that all Loans, Swing Line Advances and any unpaid installment
of interest shall bear interest at a rate per annum (on the basis of a 365-



day year (with respect to ABR Loans and Swing Line Advances) or a 360-day
year (with respect to Eurodollar Loans) for the actual number of days
involved) equal to the sum of (i) 2% and (ii) (A) with respect to ABR Loans
and Swing Line Advances, the rate of interest then applicable to ABR Loans,
changing as and when said rate shall change, and (B) with respect to
Eurodollar Loans, the rate of interest applicable to each such Eurodollar
Loan.  Interest payable pursuant to this Section 4.05 shall be payable on
demand.

           Section 4.06.  Maximum Interest Rate.

           (a)  Nothing in this Agreement or the Notes shall require the
Company to pay interest at a rate exceeding the maximum rate permitted by
applicable law.  Neither this Section nor Section 11.01 is intended to limit
the rate of interest payable for the account of any Bank to the maximum rate
permitted by the laws of the State of New York (or any other applicable law)
if a higher rate is permitted with respect to such Bank by supervening
provisions of U.S. Federal law.

           (b)  If the amount of interest payable for the account of any Bank
on any interest payment date in respect of the immediately preceding interest
computation period,
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computed pursuant to this Article IV, would exceed the maximum amount
permitted by applicable law to be charged by such Bank, the amount of
interest payable for its account on such interest payment date shall
automatically be reduced to such maximum permissible amount.

           (c)  If the amount of interest payable for the account of any Bank
in respect of any interest computation period is reduced pursuant to clause
(b) of this Section 4.06 and the amount of interest payable for its account
in respect of any subsequent interest computation period would be less than
the maximum amount permitted by law to be charged by such Bank, then the
amount of interest payable for its account in respect of such subsequent
interest computation period automatically shall be increased to such maximum
permissible amount; provided that at no time shall the aggregate amount by
which interest paid for the account of any Bank has been increased pursuant
to this clause (c) exceed the aggregate amount by which interest paid for its
account has theretofore been reduced pursuant to clause (b) of this
Section 4.06.

                                   ARTICLE V

                           DISBURSEMENT AND PAYMENT

           Section 5.01.  Pro Rata Treatment.  Each payment of the Commitment
Fee and each reduction of the Total Commitment shall be apportioned among the
Banks in proportion to each Bank's Pro Rata Share.  Except as provided in
Section 5.04 or 5.05, the Notes or portions thereof as to which a Conversion
Request has been made pursuant to Section 4.04 hereof shall at all times bear
interest on the same basis (as ABR Loans and Eurodollar Loans) and the
Interest Periods applicable thereto, if any, shall be of the same duration.

           Section 5.02.  Method of Payment.  All payments by the Company
hereunder and under the Notes shall be made without setoff or counterclaim to
the Agent, for its account or for the account of the Bank or Banks entitled
thereto, as the case may be, in lawful money of the United States and in
immediately available funds at the office of the Agent on the date when due.

           Section 5.03.  Compensation for Losses.

             Compensation.  In the event that the Company makes a
prepayment of Eurodollar Loans under Section 2.06 or 2.07 or in the event a
Conversion Date with respect to a
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Eurodollar Loan selected pursuant to Section 4.04 falls on a day other than
the last day of the Interest Period for the amount so prepaid or as to which
a conversion is made, or in the event the Company revokes any notice given
under Section 2.02 with respect to a Eurodollar Loan, or in the event the
Loans or portions thereof are converted into ABR Loans pursuant to
Section 5.05, or Eurodollar Loans shall be declared to be due and payable
prior to the scheduled maturity thereof pursuant to Section 9.01, the Company
shall pay to each Bank promptly after its demand an amount which will compen-
sate such Bank for any out-of-pocket loss or premium or penalty incurred by
such Bank as a result of such prepayment, conversion, declaration or
revocation of notice in respect of funds obtained for the purpose of making
or maintaining such Bank's Loans, or any part thereof.  Such compensation
shall include an amount equal to the excess, if any, of (i) the amount of
interest which would have accrued on the amount so paid or prepaid, or not
borrowed or converted, for the period from the date of such payment or
prepayment or conversion or failure to borrow to the last day of such
Interest Period (or, in the case of a failure to borrow, the Interest Period
that would have commenced on the date of such failure to borrow) in each case
at the applicable rate of interest for such Loan provided for herein
(excluding, however, the Applicable Margin included therein) over (ii) the
amount of interest (as reasonably determined by such Bank) which would have
accrued to such Bank on such amount by placing such amount on deposit for a
comparable period with leading banks in the London interbank market or in the
New York certificate of deposit market.

           (b)  Certificate, Etc.  Each Bank shall promptly notify the
Company, with a copy to the Agent, upon becoming aware that the Company may
be required to make any payment pursuant to this Section 5.03.  When
requesting payment pursuant to this Section 5.03, each Bank shall provide to
the Company, with a copy to the Agent, a certificate, signed by an officer of
such Bank, setting forth the amount required to be paid by the Company to
such Bank and the computations made by such Bank to determine such amount.
In the absence of manifest error, such certificate shall be conclusive and
binding on the Company as to the amount so required to be paid by the Company
to such Bank.

           Section 5.04.  Withholding, Reserves and Additional Costs.

           (a)  Withholding.  To the extent permitted by law, all payments
under this Agreement and under the Notes (including payments of principal and
interest) shall be payable to each Bank free and clear of any and all present
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and future taxes, levies, imposts, duties, deductions, withholdings, fees,
liabilities and similar charges (collectively, the "Taxes"); provided, that
"Taxes" shall not include taxes imposed on or measured by the overall net
income of any Bank by the United States of America or any political
subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein, or taxes on or measured
by the overall net income of any foreign office, branch or subsidiary of such
Bank by any foreign country or subdivision thereof in which such office,
branch or subsidiary is doing business.  If any Taxes are required to be
withheld or deducted from any amount payable under this Agreement or any
Note, then the amount payable under this Agreement or such Note shall be
increased to the amount which, after deduction from such increased amount of
all Taxes required to be withheld or deducted therefrom, will yield to such
Bank the amount stated to be payable under this Agreement or such Note.  The
Company shall execute and deliver to any Bank upon its request such further
instruments as may be necessary or desirable to give full force and effect to
any such increase, including a new Note of the Company to be issued in
exchange for any Note theretofore issued.  The Company shall also hold each
Bank harmless and indemnify it for any stamp or other taxes with respect to
the preparation, execution, delivery, recording, performance or enforcement
of the Credit Documents (all of which shall be included within "Taxes").  If
any of the Taxes specified in this Section 5.04(a) are paid by any Bank, the
Company shall, upon demand of such Bank, promptly reimburse such Bank for
such payments, together with any interest, penalties and expenses incurred in
connection therewith, plus interest thereon at a rate per annum (based on a



365-day year for the actual number of days involved) equal to the sum of 2%
and the interest rate then applicable to ABR Loans, changing as and when such
rate shall change, from the date such payment or payments are made by such
Bank to the date of reimbursement by the Company.  The Company shall deliver
to the Agent certificates or other valid vouchers for all Taxes or other
charges deducted from or paid with respect to payments made by the Company
hereunder.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall be entitled, to
the extent it is required to do so by law, to deduct or withhold (and shall
not be required to make payments as otherwise required in this Section on
account of such deductions or withholdings) income or other similar taxes
imposed by the United States of America from interest, fees or other amounts
payable hereunder for the account of any Bank other than a Bank (i) who is a
U.S. Person for U.S. Federal income tax purposes or (ii) who has the
Prescribed Forms on file with the Company for the applicable year; provided,
that if the Company shall so deduct or withhold any such taxes, it shall
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provide a statement to the Agent and such Bank, setting forth the amount of
such taxes so deducted or withheld, the applicable rate and any other
information or documentation which such Bank may reasonably request for
assisting such Bank to obtain any allowable credits or deductions for the
taxes so deducted or withheld in the jurisdiction or jurisdictions in which
such Bank is subject to tax.

         (ii)  Each Bank agrees that (x) it will take all reasonable actions
by all usual means to maintain all exemptions, if any, available to it from
United States withholding taxes (whether available by treaty or existing
administrative waiver) and (y) otherwise cooperate with the Company to
minimize any amounts payable by the Company under this Section 5.04(a).

           (b)  Additional Costs.  (i)  If after the date hereof, any change
in any law or regulation or in the interpretation thereof by any court or
administrative or governmental authority charged with the administration
thereof or the enactment of any law or regulation shall either (1) impose,
modify or deem applicable any reserve, special deposit or similar requirement
against the Banks' Commitments or the Loans or Swing Line Advances or
(2) impose on any Bank any other condition regarding this Agreement, its
Commitment or the Loans or Swing Line Advances and the result of any event
referred to in clause (1) or (2) of this clause (b) shall be to increase the
cost to any Bank of maintaining its Commitment or the Loans or Swing Line
Advances (which increase in cost shall be calculated in accordance with each
Bank's reasonable averaging and attribution methods) by an amount which any
such Bank deems to be material, then, upon written demand by such Bank, the
Company shall pay to such Bank within 15 days of such written demand an
amount equal to such increase in cost; provided, that in respect of any Loan
or Swing Line Advance, no such compensation shall be payable to the extent
that, in the reasonable opinion of such Bank, the interest rate on the Loans
or Swing Line Advances has been adjusted to account for such increased cost.
Such amount shall bear interest, after receipt by the Company of such demand
until payment in full thereof, at a rate per annum (based on a 365-day year,
for the actual number of days involved) equal to the sum of 2% and the
interest rate then applicable to ABR Loans, changing as and when such rate
shall change.

         (ii)  If any Bank shall have determined that the adoption of any
applicable law, rule, regulation or guideline regarding capital adequacy, or
any change therein, or any change in the interpretation or administration
thereof by any governmental authority, central bank or comparable
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agency charged with the interpretation or administration thereof, (including
any such adoption or change made prior to the date hereof but not effective
until after the date hereof) or compliance by any Bank with any request or
directive regarding capital adequacy (whether or not having the force of law)
of any such authority, central bank or comparable agency, has or would have
the effect of reducing the rate of return on capital for any such Bank or any
corporation controlling such Bank as a consequence of its obligations under
this Agreement to a level below that which such Bank or such corporation



could have achieved but for such adoption, change or compliance (taking into
consideration such Bank's or such corporation's policies with respect to
capital adequacy), then from time to time, upon demand by such Bank, the
Company shall pay to such Bank such additional amount or amounts as will
compensate such Bank for such reduction, plus interest thereon at a rate per
annum (based on a 365-day year, for the actual number of days involved) equal
to the sum of 2% and the interest rate then applicable to ABR Loans, changing
as and when such rate shall change, from the date of such demand by such Bank
to the date of payment by the Company.

           (c)  Lending Office Designations.  Before giving any notice to the
Company pursuant to this Section 5.04, each Bank shall, if possible,
designate a different lending office if such designation will avoid the need
for giving such notice and will not, in the judgment of such Bank, be
otherwise disadvantageous to such Bank.

           (d)  Certificate, Etc.  Each Bank shall promptly notify the
Company, with a copy to the Agent, upon becoming aware that the Company may
be required to make any payment pursuant to this Section 5.04.  When
requesting payment pursuant to this Section 5.04, each Bank shall provide to
the Company, with a copy to the Agent, a certificate, signed by an officer of
such Bank, setting forth the amount required to be paid by the Company to
such Bank and the computations made by such Bank to determine such amount.
Determinations and allocations by such Bank for purposes of this Section 5.04
shall be conclusive, provided that such determinations and allocations are
made on a reasonable basis and are mathematically accurate.  In the absence
of manifest error, such certificate shall be conclusive and binding on the
Company as to the amount so required to be paid by the Company to such Bank.

           Section 5.05.  Unavailability.  If at any time any Bank shall have
determined in good faith (which determination shall be conclusive) that the
making or maintenance of all or any part of such Bank's Eurodollar Loans has
been
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made impracticable or unlawful because of compliance by such Bank in good
faith with any law or guideline or interpretation or administration thereof
by any official body charged with the interpretation or administration
thereof or with any request or directive of such body (whether or not having
the effect of law), because U.S. dollar deposits in the amount and requested
maturity of such Eurodollar Loans are not available to the Bank in the London
Eurodollar interbank market or because of any other reason, then the Agent,
upon notification to it of such determination by such Bank, shall forthwith
advise the other Banks and the Company thereof.  Upon such date as shall be
specified in such notice and until such time as the Agent, upon notification
to it by such Bank, shall notify the Company and the other Banks that the
circumstances specified by it in such notice no longer apply,
(i) notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, such Bank's
Eurodollar Loans shall automatically and without requirement of notice by the
Company be converted to ABR Loans and (ii) the obligation of only such Bank
to allow borrowing, elections and renewals of Eurodollar Loans shall be sus-
pended, and, if the Company shall request in a Borrowing Request or
Conversion Request that such Bank make a Eurodollar Loan, the loan requested
to be made by such Bank shall instead be made as an ABR Loan.

           Section 5.06.  Additional Costs in Respect of Letters of Credit.

           (a)  Except in the case of increased cost attributable to the
imposition of taxes as to which the Company's liability is governed by
Section 5.04(a), if as a result of any change after the date hereof in
applicable law or regulation or in the interpretation thereof by any
Governmental Authority there shall be imposed, modified or deemed applicable
any reserve, special deposit, capital adequacy requirement or other
requirements against or with respect to or measured by reference to
Syndicated Letters of Credit issued or to be issued by the Issuing Bank
hereunder and the result shall be to increase the cost to the Issuing Bank of
issuing or maintaining any Syndicated Letter of Credit hereunder, or reduce
any amount receivable by the Issuing Bank hereunder in respect of any



Syndicated Letter of Credit (which increase in cost, or reduction in amount
receivable, shall be the result of the Issuing Bank's reasonable allocation
of the aggregate of such increases or reductions resulting from such event),
the Company shall, upon demand by the Issuing Bank, promptly pay to the
Issuing Bank such additional amounts as the Issuing Bank from time to time
specifies as necessary to compensate the Issuing Bank for such increased
costs or reductions in amounts receivable.
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           (b)  Certificate, Etc.  The Issuing Bank shall promptly notify the
Company, with a copy to the Agent, upon becoming aware that the Company may
be required to make any payment pursuant to this Section 5.06.  When
requesting payment pursuant to this Section 5.06, the Issuing Bank shall
provide to the Company, with a copy to the Agent, a certificate, signed by an
officer of the Issuing Bank, setting forth the amount required to be paid by
the Company to the Issuing Bank and the computations made by the Issuing Bank
to determine such amount.  Determinations and allocations by the Issuing Bank
for purposes of this Section 5.06 shall be conclusive, provided that such
determinations and allocations are made on a reasonable basis and are
mathematically accurate.  In the absence of manifest error, such certificate
shall be conclusive and binding on the Company as to the amount so required
to be paid by the Company to the Issuing Bank.  Notwithstanding anything to
the contrary contained herein, the Company shall not be required to make any
payment to the Issuing Bank pursuant to this Section 5.06 with respect to
costs, reductions or other amounts relating to any time which is greater than
30 days prior to the Issuing Bank's request therefor.

           Section 5.07.  Commercial Practices in Respect of Letters of
Credit.  Without affecting any rights the Banks may have under applicable law
(including under the UCP), the Company agrees that none of the Banks, the
Issuing Bank or the Agent nor any of their respective officers or directors
shall be liable or responsible for, and the obligations of the Company to the
Banks, the Issuing Bank, and the Agent hereunder shall not in any manner be
affected by:  (i) the use that may be made of any Syndicated Letter of Credit
or the proceeds thereof by the beneficiary thereof or any other Person;
(ii) the validity, sufficiency or genuineness of documents other than the
Issuing Bank Syndicated Letters of Credit, or of any endorsement(s) thereon,
even if such documents should, in fact, prove to be in any or all respects
invalid, insufficient, fraudulent or forged; or (iii) any other circumstances
whatsoever in making or failing to make payment under any Syndicated Letter
of Credit; provided that the foregoing shall not operate to bar a claim
against a Bank or the Issuing Bank to the extent, but only to the extent, of
any direct, as opposed to consequential, damages suffered by the Company that
are caused by such Bank's or Issuing Bank's willful misconduct or gross
negligence in determining whether documents presented under any Syndicated
Letter of Credit complied with the terms of such Syndicated Letter of Credit
or such Bank's or Issuing Bank's failure to pay under such Syndicated Letter
of Credit after the presentation to it of
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documents strictly complying with the terms and conditions of such Syndicated
Letter of Credit.  In furtherance and not in limitation of the foregoing, any
Bank or the Issuing Bank may accept documents that appear on their face to be
in order without responsibility for further investigation.

                                   ARTICLE VI

                         REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

           Section 6.01.  Representations and Warranties.  The Company
represents and warrants to the Banks that:

           (a)  Subsidiaries.  At the date hereof, the Company has no
Subsidiaries other than as listed on Schedule 6.01(a).

           (b)  Good Standing and Power.  The Company and each of its



Subsidiaries are corporations, each duly organized and validly existing,
under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation, and each has the
corporate power to own its property and to carry on its business as now being
conducted and is duly qualified to do business and is in good standing in
each jurisdiction in which the character of the properties owned or leased by
it therein or in which the transaction of its business makes such qualifica-
tion necessary, except where any such failure could not individually or
together with all other such failures to be so qualified reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

           (c)  Corporate Authority.  The Company has full corporate power and
authority to execute, deliver and perform each of the Credit Documents to
which it is a party, to grant to the Collateral Agent the security interests
and liens described therein, to make the borrowings contemplated hereby, and
to execute and deliver the Notes and to incur the obligations provided for
herein and therein, all of which have been duly authorized by all proper and
necessary corporate action.  No consent or approval of stockholders of the
Company is required as a condition to the validity or performance or the
exercise by the Agent or the Banks of any of their rights or remedies under
any of the Credit Documents.

           (d)  Authorizations.  All authorizations, consents, approvals,
registrations, notices, exemptions and licenses with or from Governmental
Authorities and other Persons which are necessary for the borrowing
hereunder, the grant of the security interests in and liens on the Collat-
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eral, the execution and delivery of the Credit Documents, the performance by
the Company of its obligations hereunder and thereunder and the exercise by
the Agent and the Banks of their remedies hereunder and thereunder have been
effected or obtained and are in full force and effect, except for those that
may be necessary in connection with the perfection or protection of liens
granted pursuant to the Security Documents.

           (e)  Binding Agreements.  This Agreement and each of the other
Credit Documents (other than the Notes) constitutes, and the Notes, when
executed and delivered pursuant hereto for value received will constitute,
the valid and legally binding obligations of the Company enforceable in
accordance with their terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent
transfer, reorganization, moratorium and similar laws of general
applicability relating to or affecting creditors' rights and to general
equity principles.

           (f)  Litigation.  Except as described in Schedule 6.01(f) hereto,
there are no proceedings or investigations pending or threatened before any
court or arbitrator or before or by any Governmental Authority which, in any
one case or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect or relate to any Credit Document or the transactions
contemplated hereby and thereby.

           (g)  No Conflicts.  There is no statute, regulation, rule, order or
judgment, and no provision of any material agreement or instrument binding on
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or affecting their respective
properties and no provision of the certificate of incorporation or by-laws of
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, which would prohibit, conflict with
or in any way prevent the execution, delivery, or performance of the terms of
the Credit Documents or the incurrence of the obligations provided for herein
and therein, or result in or require the creation or imposition of any Lien
on any of the Company's or its Subsidiaries' properties as a consequence of
the execution, delivery and performance of any Credit Document or the
transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, other than as contemplated in
the Security Documents.

           (h)  Financial Condition.  (i) The consolidated balance sheet of
the Company and its Subsidiaries as of October 3, 1993, together with
consolidated statements of income, retained earnings, paid-in capital and
surplus and cash flows for the fiscal year then ended, all certified by
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KPMG Peat Marwick, and the consolidated balance sheet of the Company and its
Subsidiaries as of April 17, 1994, together with consolidated statements of
income and cash flows for the six months then ended, all certified by the
chief financial officer of the Company, heretofore delivered to the Agent,
fairly present the consolidated financial condition of the Company and its
Subsidiaries and the results of their operations and transactions in their
surplus accounts as of the dates and for the periods referred to and have
been prepared in accordance with GAAP consistently applied throughout the
periods involved (subject to normal year-end adjustments in the case of the
April 17, 1994 financial statements).  There are no material liabilities,
direct or indirect, fixed or contingent, of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries as of the dates of such balance sheets which are not reflected
therein or in the notes thereto.  All projections contained in the "Foodmaker
Preliminary Management Plan," dated June 24, 1994, heretofore delivered to
the Agent by the Company have been prepared by the Company in good faith and,
as of the date hereof, there is no reason to believe that the estimates and
assumptions used to prepare such projections are not reasonable.

         (ii)  Excluding the sale of Chi'Chi's, Inc. on January 27, 1994, the
financing lease arrangements described in Note 3 to the Company's January 23,
1994 unaudited consolidated financial statements and a $3.5 million charge
against earnings taken during the Company's second fiscal quarter in
connection with closing seven restaurants, there has been no material adverse
change in the business, properties, condition (financial or otherwise) or
operations, present or prospective, of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries
since the date of the balance sheet dated October 3, 1993 delivered to the
Agent.

        (iii)  Since April 17, 1994, there has not occurred any fact, event
or condition which could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse
Effect.

           (i)  Taxes.  As of the date hereof, the Company and each of its
Subsidiaries has filed or caused to be filed all tax returns which are
required to be filed and has paid all taxes required to be shown to be due
and payable on said returns or on any assessment made against it or any of
its property and all other taxes, assessments, fees, liabilities, penalties
or other charges imposed on it or any of its property by any Governmental
Authority, except for any taxes, assessments, fees, liabilities, penalties or
other charges which are being contested in good faith and for which adequate
reserves (in accordance with GAAP) have
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been established and except for such taxes, assessments, fees, liabilities
and other charges which are not material in amount.

           (j)  Use of Proceeds.  The proceeds of the Loans, the Swing Line
Advances and the Syndicated Letters of Credit will be used by the Company for
the purposes described in the first recital hereto.

           (k)  Margin Regulations.  No part of the proceeds of any Loan will
be used to purchase or carry, or to reduce or retire or refinance any credit
incurred to purchase or carry, or extend credit to others for the purpose of
purchasing or carrying, any "margin stock" as defined in Regulation G or
Regulation U of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System.  The
making of the Loans hereunder, the use of the proceeds thereof as
contemplated hereby and the security arrangements contemplated by the Credit
Documents will not violate or be inconsistent with any of the provisions of
Regulation U, G, T or X of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System.

           (l)  Accuracy of Information.  All written information relating to
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries heretofore delivered to the Agent in
connection with the Credit Documents by or on behalf of the Company is true
and correct in all material respects as of the date given.

           (m)  Title to Properties; Possession Under Leases.  The Company and
its Subsidiaries each have good and marketable title to, or valid leasehold



interests in, all of their respective material properties and assets except
for minor defects in title that do not interfere with the ability of the
Company or any such Subsidiaries to conduct its business as now conducted.
All such assets and properties are free and clear of all Liens, except
Permitted Encumbrances.

           (n)  Conduct of Business.  At the date hereof, the Company and its
Subsidiaries have valid fee or leasehold interests in all real property where
they maintain offices or operate their businesses and hold all
authorizations, consents, approvals, registrations, franchises, licenses and
permits, with or from Governmental Authorities and other Persons as are
required or necessary for them to own their properties and conduct their
business as now conducted, except where the failure to hold any such
authorization, consent, approval, registration, franchise, license or permit
is not, in any one case or in the aggregate,
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reasonably expected to have a material impact on the Company or materially
impair the value of the Collateral.

           (o)  Compliance with Laws and Charter Documents.  As of the date
hereof, neither the Company nor any Subsidiary thereof is in violation of
(i) any law, statute, rule, regulation or order of any Governmental Authority
(including Environmental Laws) applicable to it or its properties or assets,
except, in each case, where any such violation could not be material to the
operations, properties or assets or (ii) its certificate of incorporation or
any similar document.

           (p)  ERISA.  (i) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries
has engaged in a transaction with respect to any Plan which, assuming the
taxable period of such transaction expired as of the date hereof, could
subject the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to a tax or penalty imposed by
either Section 4975 of the Code or Section 502(i) of ERISA in an amount that
could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

           (ii)  No Plan which is a single employee plan had an accumulated
funding deficiency, whether or not waived, as of the last day of the most
recent fiscal year of such Plan ended prior to the date hereof.  Neither the
Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is (A) required to give security to any
Plan which is a single employer plan pursuant to Section 401(a)(29) of the
Code or Section 307 of ERISA, or (B) subject to a lien in favor of such a
Plan under Section 302(f) of ERISA.

         (iii)  No liability under Sections 4062, 4063, 4064 or 4069 of ERISA
has been or is reasonably expected by the Company to be incurred by the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries with respect to any Plan which is a single
employer plan in an amount that could reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect.  Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has
incurred or expects to incur any withdrawal liability with respect to any
Plan which is a multiemployer plan in an amount which could reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

         (iv)  Under each Plan which is a single employer plan, as of the
last day of the most recent plan year ended prior to the date hereof, the
actuarially determined present value of all benefit liabilities (as
determined on the basis of the actuarial assumptions contained in the Plan's
most recent actuarial valuation) did not exceed the fair market value of the
assets of such Plan by more than $5,000,000, and there has been no material
adverse change in the
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financial condition of the Plan since the last day of the most recent plan
year.

           (v)  Insofar as the representations and warranties of the Company
and its Subsidiaries contained in clauses (i) and (ii) above relate to any
Plan which is a multiemployer plan, such representations and warranties are
made to the best knowledge of the Company and its Subsidiaries.  As used in



this Section, Section 8.01(k) or Section 9.01(i), (A) "accumulated funding
deficiency" shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 412 of
the Code and Section 302 of ERISA; (B) "multiemployer plan" and "plan year"
shall have the respective meanings assigned to such terms in Section 3 of
ERISA; (C) "affected party" and "single employer plan" shall have the
respective meanings assigned to such terms in Section 4001 of ERISA;
(D) "taxable period" shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section
4975 of the Code; and (E) "withdrawal liability" shall have the meaning
assigned to such term in Part 1 of Subtitle E of Title IV of ERISA.

           (q)  Not an Investment Company.  Neither the Company nor any of its
Subsidiaries is or, after giving effect to the transactions contemplated
hereby will be, (i) an "investment company" or a company "controlled" by an
"investment company" within the meaning of the Investment Company Act of
1940, as amended or (ii) subject to regulation under the Public Utility
Holding Company Act of 1935, the Federal Power Act or any foreign, federal,
state or local statute or regulation limiting its ability to incur
indebtedness for money borrowed as contemplated hereby.

           (r)  The Security Documents.  The provisions of the Security
Documents will be effective to create in favor of the Banks a valid, binding
and enforceable security interest in all right, title and interest of the
Company in the Collateral described therein, and upon making all appropriate
filings and notifications will constitute a fully perfected first and prior
security interest, lien or mortgage, in all right, title and interest of the
Company in such Collateral which may be perfected by the making of
appropriate filings or notifications, superior in right to any Liens, except
for Permitted Encumbrances, existing or future (except, with respect to
future liens, as otherwise provided in the applicable Uniform Commercial
Code), which the Company or any third Person may have against such Collateral
or interests therein.

           (s)  Environmental Protection.  To the Company's knowledge, except
as set forth on Schedule 6.01(s) or as could not reasonably be expected to
materially impact the
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Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole or materially impair the value
of the Collateral:  (i) all real property owned or leased by the Company or
any of the Company's Subsidiaries is free of contamination from any Hazardous
Substance; (ii) neither the Company nor any of the Company's Subsidiaries has
caused or suffered to occur any release of any Hazardous Substance into the
environment or any other conditions that could result in the incurrence of
liabilities or any violations of any Environmental Laws; (iii) neither the
Company nor any of the Company's Subsidiaries has caused or suffered to occur
any condition on any of the Company's or such Subsidiary's property that
could give rise to the imposition of any lien under the Environmental Laws;
(iv) neither Company nor any of the Company's Subsidiaries is engaged in any
manufacturing or any other operations, other than the use of petroleum
products for vehicles, that require the use, handling, transportation,
storage or disposal of any Hazardous Substance, where such operations require
permits or are otherwise regulated pursuant to the Environmental Laws.

           (t)  Solvency.  On the date of each Loan and Swing Line Advance
hereunder, and after the payment of all estimated legal, accounting and other
fees related hereto, the Company and each of its Subsidiaries will be
Solvent.

           (u)  Insurance.  As of the date hereof, all of the properties and
operations of the Company and its Subsidiaries of a character usually insured
by companies of established reputation engaged in the same or a similar
business similarly situated are adequately insured, by financially sound and
reputable insurers, against loss or damage of the kinds and in amounts
customarily insured against by such Persons, and the Company and its
Subsidiaries carry, with such insurers in customary amounts, such other
insurance, including larceny, embezzlement or other criminal misappropriation
insurance and business interruption insurance, as is usually carried by
companies of established reputation engaged in the same or a similar business



similarly situated.

           (v)  Intellectual Property.  The Company and each of its Subsidiary
owns, or is licensed to use, all trademarks, trade names, patents and
copyrights (the "Intellectual Property") necessary for the conduct of its
business as currently conducted, including, without limitation, the
Intellectual Property listed on Schedule 6.01(v) hereto except where the
failure to own or license any such Intellectual Property could not have a
Material Adverse Effect.  To the knowledge of the Company, no claim which
could reasonably be expected to have a Material
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Adverse Effect has been asserted or is pending by any Person challenging or
questioning the use by the Company or any Subsidiary of any such Intellectual
Property or the validity or effectiveness of any such Intellectual Property,
nor does the Company know of any valid basis for any such claim.  To the
knowledge of the Company, the use of such Intellectual Property by the
Company and its Subsidiaries does not infringe on the rights of any Person,
except for such claims and infringements that, in the aggregate, could not
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, nor, to the
knowledge of the Company, are there any uses by other Persons of such
Intellectual Property which infringe on the rights of the Company and its
Subsidiaries, except for such infringements that, in the aggregate, could not
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

           (w)  Labor Matters.  To the knowledge of the Company, there are no
strikes, lockouts or work stoppages or slowdowns, jurisdictional disputes,
organizing activity or labor disputes occurring or threatened with respect to
the business operations of the Company or its Subsidiaries which could
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

                                  ARTICLE VII

                             CONDITIONS OF LENDING

           Section 7.01.  Conditions to the Initial Loan.  The obligations of
the Banks, the Issuing Bank or the Swing Line Bank, as the case may be, in
connection with the first to occur of (i) the Initial Loan, (ii) the making
of the first Swing Line Advance or (iii) the issuance of the first Syndicated
Letter of Credit are subject to the conditions precedent that, on the date of
such Initial Loan, such Swing Line Advance or issuance of such Syndicated
Letter of Credit and after giving effect thereto, each of the following
conditions precedent shall have been satisfied or waived in writing by each
Bank:

           (a)  Credit Agreement.  The Agent shall have received this
Agreement duly executed and delivered by each of the Banks and the Company.

           (b)  Security Documents.  The Agent shall have received duly
executed copies of (i) the Security Agreement and (ii) the mortgages and
deeds of trust with respect to each of the properties of the Company and its
Subsidiaries set forth on Schedule 7.01(b)-1 hereof, granting to Credit
Lyonnais New York Branch, as Collateral Agent, for the
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benefit of the Agent, the Issuing Bank, the Swing Line Bank and each of the
Banks, a security interest in the Collateral described therein together with
(A) copies of Financing Statements (Form UCC-1) to be filed under the Uniform
Commercial Code, and other financing and assignment documents as provided in
the Security Agreement and (B) evidence satisfactory to the Agent and the
Banks with respect to the priority of the Collateral Agent's security
interest in the Collateral (which may include certified copies of Requests
for Information or equivalent reports, listing all financing statements which
name the Company as debtor and which are filed in all relevant jurisdictions
as provided in the Security Agreement).

           (c)  Evidence of Corporate Action.  The Agent shall have received



certified copies of all corporate action taken by the Company to authorize
this Agreement and each of the other Credit Documents.

           (d)  Fees and Expenses.  The Agent, the Collateral Agent and each
Bank, as the case may be, shall have received all fees and expenses which are
due and payable as of the date hereof.

           (e)  Operating Budget.  The Agent shall have received from the
Company a copy of its operating budget for the current fiscal year.

           (f)  Opinions of Counsel.  (i) The Agent shall have received a
favorable written opinion of Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher, counsel for the
Company, addressed to the Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Banks and dated
the date of the first to occur of (A) the Initial Loan, (B) the making of the
first Swing Line Advance or (C) the issuance of the first Syndicated Letter
of Credit in substantially the form of Exhibit H.

           (g)  Note Redemption.  The Agent shall have received irrevocable
notice of the redemption of the Company's 12.75% Senior Notes.  The Agent
also shall have received evidence satisfactory to the Agent that the
Company's 13.5% secured note to Prudential has been redeemed.

           (h)  Financial Statements.  The Agent shall have received the
financial statements referenced in Section 6.01(h), and such financial
statements shall not be materially less favorable, as determined by the
Agent, than the financial information previously provided to the Agent.

                                       -49-

           (i)  Insurance.  The Company shall have delivered to the Agent,
consistent with the requirements of Section 8.01(c), evidence satisfactory to
it that the Collateral is adequately insured.

           (j)  Accountant's Review Report.  The Agent shall have received a
copy of a review report prepared by KPMG Peat Marwick, with respect to the
financial information of the Company relating to the six months ended April
17, 1994, in substantially the form of Exhibit I.

           (k)  No Material Adverse Change.  In the reasonable judgment of the
Agent there shall have occurred no material adverse change in the condition
(financial or otherwise), business, results of operations, performance,
properties or prospects of the Company or any Subsidiary, individually or
taken as a whole, since April 17, 1994.

           (l)  Solvency Opinion.  The Agent shall have received (with a copy
for each Bank) a certificate of the chief financial officer of the Company
regarding the solvency of the Company.  Such certificate shall be in the form
of Exhibit J hereto.

           (m)  Litigation.  There shall not be pending or threatened any
action or proceeding before any court or administrative agency which could
reasonably be expected to materially impair the ability of the Company to
perform its obligations hereunder or under the Credit Documents.

           (n)  Authorizations.  All authorizations, consents, approvals,
registrations, notices, exemptions and licenses with or from Governmental
Authorities and other Persons which are required to be obtained on or prior
to the date of the Initial Loan, the first Swing Line Advance or the issuance
of the first Syndicated Letter of Credit for the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement and the other Credit Documents, the grant of the security
interests in and liens on the Collateral, the execution and delivery of the
Credit Documents, the performance by the Company of its obligations hereunder
and thereunder, other than those that may be necessary in connection with the
perfection or protection of liens granted pursuant to the Security Documents,
shall have been effected or obtained (without the imposition of any
conditions that are not reasonably acceptable to the Agent) and shall remain
in full force and effect, with only such exceptions as could not reasonably
be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; all applicable waiting periods



with respect to any such authorizations, consents, approvals, registrations,
notices, exemptions and licenses shall have expired without the taking by any
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Governmental Authority of any action, and no law, statute, rule, regulation,
order or other action of any Governmental Authority shall be applicable, that
restrains, prevents or imposes any conditions on the transactions
contemplated hereby.

           (o)  Title Policies and Surveys.  The Agent shall have received a
schedule of existing title policies and surveys.

           (p)  Other Documents.  The Agent shall have received such other
certificates and documents as the Agent and the Banks reasonably may require.

           Section 7.02.  Conditions to All Loans.  (i) The obligations of
each Bank in connection with each Loan (including the Initial Loan), (ii) the
obligations of the Swing Line Bank in connection with each Swing Line
Advance, and (iii) the obligations of the Issuing Bank in connection with
each Syndicated Letter of Credit are subject to the conditions precedent
that, on the date of each such Loan, Swing Line Advance and issuance of a
Syndicated Letter of Credit and after giving effect thereto, each of the
following conditions precedent shall have been satisfied or waived in writing
by each Bank:

           (a)  Execution of Notes.  The Agent on behalf of the Banks shall
have received the relevant Notes for such Loan, duly executed and delivered
by the Company.

           (b)  Requests.  For each Loan, the Agent shall have received a Loan
Request, for each Swing Line Advance, the Agent and the Swing Line Bank shall
have received a Swing Line Advance Request and for each Syndicated Letter of
Credit, the Agent and the Issuing Bank shall have received a Letter of Credit
Notice, in the form and manner set forth herein for such requests.

           (c)  Use of Proceeds.  The Agent shall have received from the
Company a certificate signed by an authorized officer of the Company
certifying that the proceeds of such Loan, Swing Line Advance or Syndicated
Letter of Credit will be used in accordance with the provisions of Section
6.01(j).

           (d)  No Default.  No Default or Event of Default shall have
occurred and be continuing.

           (e)  Representations and Warranties; Covenants.  The
representations and warranties contained in Article VI shall have been true
when made and shall be true and correct
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in all material respects with the same effect as though such representations
and warranties had been made at the time of such Loan, Syndicated Letter of
Credit or Swing Line Advance.

           (f)  Other Documents.  The Agent shall have received such other
certificates and documents as the Agent and the Banks reasonably may require.

           Section 7.03.  Satisfactions of Conditions Precedent.  Delivery by
the Company of a Loan Request, Swing Line Advance Request or Letter of Credit
Notice, as the case may be, pursuant to Section 7.02(b) shall be deemed to
constitute a certification of the Company that each of the foregoing
conditions precedent in this Article VII has been satisfied or waived in
writing by each Bank.

                                 ARTICLE VIII

                                  COVENANTS



           Section 8.01.  Affirmative Covenants.  Except when an alternative
time period is specifically noted, until the Termination Date, and thereafter
until payment in full of the Notes, Swing Line Advances and Reimbursement
Obligations, expiration or cancellation of all outstanding Syndicated Letters
of Credit and performance of all other obligations of the Company hereunder,
the Company will:

           (a)  Financial Statements; Compliance Certificates.  Furnish to the
Agent a copy for the Agent and a copy for each Bank, 

            (i) until the Consolidated EBITDA for the immediately proceeding
     twelve month period exceeds $100,000,000, within 28 days after the end
     of each monthly reporting period, Monthly Statements.

           (ii) as soon as available, but in no event more than 45 days
     following the end of each of the first three fiscal quarters of each
     fiscal year, all quarterly consolidated and divisional balance sheets,
     income statements and statements of cash flow and reports of the Company
     and its Subsidiaries, prepared in a format and in scope consistent with
     the April 27, 1994 financial statements and reports of the Borrower
     referenced in Section 6.01(h); 

          (iii) as soon as available, but in no event more than 90 days
     following the end of each fiscal year,
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     unaudited annual divisional financial reports of the Company and its     
     Subsidiaries and the annual consolidated audit report and consolidated
     financial statements relating to the Company and the Subsidiaries,
     certified by an independent certified public accountant reasonably
     satisfactory to the Agent, prepared in a format and in scope consistent
     with the October 3, 1993 financial statements and reports of the Company
     referenced in Section 6.01(h);

           (iv) as soon as available, but in no event later than 60 days
     following the end of each fiscal year, the business plan, budget and
     forecast of the Company and its Subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis
     and for each operating division for the then-current fiscal year,
     prepared in a manner, form and detail satisfactory to the Agent (it
     being agreed that the budget shall include projected income statements
     and cash flow statements for each four-week period and a projected year
     end balance sheet);

            (v) together with each of the financial statements delivered
     pursuant to clauses (ii) and (iii) of this Section 8.01(a), a
     certificate of the Chief Financial Officer of the Company stating
     whether to such officer's knowledge as of the last date of such finan-
     cial statements any event or circumstance exists which constitutes a
     Default or Event of Default and, if so, stating the facts with respect
     thereto, and whether to such officer's knowledge the Company (and where
     applicable, each of the Subsidiaries) is in compliance with each of the
     covenants set forth in Article VIII hereof, together with calculations,
     where applicable, which establish the Company's (and where applicable,
     each of the Subsidiaries') compliance therewith;

           (vi) promptly upon receipt thereof, copies of any reports and
     management letters submitted to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries
     or their accountants in connection with any annual or interim audit of
     the books of the Company or the Subsidiaries, together with the
     responses thereto, if any; and 

          (vii) such additional information, reports or statements as the
     Agent and the Banks from time to time may reasonably request.

           (b)  Taxes.  Pay and discharge, and cause each of its Subsidiaries
to pay and discharge, all taxes, assessments and governmental charges upon
it, its income and its properties prior to the date on which penalties are



attached
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thereto, unless and to the extent only that (A) (i) such taxes, assessments
and governmental charges shall be contested in good faith and by appropriate
proceedings by the Company or such Subsidiary, as the case may be and
(ii) adequate reserves (in accordance with GAAP) are maintained by the
Company or such Subsidiary, as the case may be, with respect thereto, or
(B) any failure to pay and discharge such taxes, assessments and governmental
charges could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

           (c)  Insurance.  Maintain, and cause each of its Subsidiaries to
maintain, insurance with responsible insurance companies against such risks,
on such properties and in such amounts as is customarily maintained by
companies of established reputation engaged in the same or similar busi-
nesses; provide evidence that, to the extent required by the Agent and the
Banks, the Collateral Agent, for its benefit and the benefit of the Banks,
has been named as loss payee by endorsement to the policies for such
insurance; and file and cause each of its Subsidiaries to file with the
Collateral Agent upon its request or the request of any Bank a detailed list
of the insurance companies, the amounts and rates of insurance, the dates of
the expiration thereof and the properties and risks covered thereby.

           (d)  Corporate Existence.  Except as permitted by Section 8.02(d),
maintain, and cause each of its Material Subsidiaries to maintain, its
corporate existence in good standing and qualify and remain qualified to do
business as a foreign corporation in each jurisdiction in which the character
of the properties owned or leased by it therein or in which the transaction
of its business is such that the failure to qualify could reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; provided, however, that no
Material Subsidiary shall be required to maintain any such corporate
existence or qualification, if the Board of Directors of the Company shall
determine that the maintenance thereof is no longer desirable in the conduct
of the businesses of the Company and the Subsidiaries taken as a whole.

           (e)  Authorizations.  Obtain, make and keep in full force and
effect all authorizations from and registrations with Governmental
Authorities that are required for the validity or enforceability of this
Agreement and the other Credit Documents.

           (f)  Maintenance of Records.  For the Company and each of its
Subsidiaries (i) keep proper books of record and account in which full, true
and correct entries will be made of all dealings or transactions of or in
relation to its
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business and affairs; and (ii) set up on its books reserves with respect to
all taxes, assessments, charges, levies and claims.  All determinations pur-
suant to this Section 8.01(f) shall be made in accordance with, or as
required by, GAAP consistently applied in the opinion of such independent
public accountants as shall then be regularly engaged the Company.

           (g)  Inspection.  Permit and cause each of its Subsidiaries to
permit, the Agent and the Banks to have one or more of their officers and
employees, or any other Person designated by the Agent or the Banks, visit
and inspect any of the properties of the Company and its Subsidiaries and to
examine the minute books, books of account and other records of the Company
and its Subsidiaries and make copies thereof or extracts therefrom, and
discuss its affairs, finances and accounts with its officers and, at the
request of the Agent or the Banks, with the Company's independent
accountants, during normal business hours and at such other reasonable times
and as often as the Agent or the Banks reasonably may desire.

           (h)  Maintenance of Property, Etc.  (i) Maintain, keep and preserve
and cause each of its Subsidiaries to maintain, keep and preserve all of its
properties in good repair, working order and condition in all material
respects and from time to time make all necessary and proper repairs,
renewals, replacements, and improvements thereto, and (ii) maintain, preserve



and protect and cause each of its Subsidiaries to maintain, preserve and
protect all franchises, licenses, copyrights, patents and trademarks material
to its business; provided, however, that nothing in this Section 8.01(h)
shall prevent the Company from discontinuing the operation or maintenance of
any of its properties if such discontinuance is desirable in the conduct of
the business of the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole and not
materially disadvantageous to the Banks.

           (i)  Conduct of Business.  (i) Preserve, renew and keep in full
force and effect each of its material contracts except contracts which are no
longer desirable in the conduct of the business of the Company, (ii)
preserve, renew, replace and maintain in full force and effect all material
franchises and licenses necessary or desirable in the normal conduct of its
business as now conducted, and (iii) comply in all material respects with all
rules and regulations of all Governmental Authorities, the loss of or
noncompliance with which could reasonably be expected to materially impair
the operations, finances or prospects of the Company and its Subsidiaries,
taken as a whole.
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           (j)  Notification of Defaults and Adverse Developments.  Promptly
notify the Agent upon the discovery by any officer of the Company of the
occurrence of (i) any Default or Event of Default; (ii) any event,
development or circumstance whereby the financial statements most recently
furnished to the Agent fail in any material respect to present fairly, in
accordance with GAAP, the financial condition and operating results of the
Company and its Subsidiaries as of the date of such financial statements;
(iii) any material litigation or proceedings that are instituted or
threatened (to the knowledge of the Company) against the Company or its
Subsidiaries or any of their respective assets; and (iv) any other
development in the business or affairs of the Company or its Subsidiaries if
the effect thereof could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse
Effect; in each case describing the nature thereof and the action the Company
proposes to take with respect thereto.  Upon receipt of any such notice of
default or adverse development, the Agent shall forthwith give notice to each
Bank of the details thereof.

           (k)  Notice of ERISA Events.  Within 10 Business Days after the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries knows that any of the events described in
the succeeding two sentences have occurred, the Company shall furnish to the
Agent a statement signed by a senior officer of the Company describing such
event in reasonable detail and the action, if any, proposed to be taken with
respect thereto.  The events referred to in the preceding sentence are, with
respect to any Plan: (i) any reportable event described in Section 4043 of
ERISA, other than a reportable event for which the 30-day notice requirement
has been waived by the PBGC; (ii) the filing with any affected party of a
notice of intent to terminate a Plan; (iii) the adoption of an amendment to a
Plan if, after giving effect to such amendment, the Plan is a plan described
in Section 4021(b) of ERISA; (iv) receipt of notice of an application by the
PBGC to institute proceedings to terminate a Plan pursuant to Section 4042 of
ERISA; (v) withdrawal from or termination of a Plan during a plan year for
which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is or could be subject to
liability under Sections 4063 or 4064 of ERISA; and (vi) receipt of notice of
withdrawal liability pursuant to Section 4202 of ERISA.  Such events shall
also include the receipt of a claim, notice or inquiry with respect to the
liability or potential liability of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries
under Sections 4062, 4063 or 4064 of ERISA with respect to a single employer
plan other than a Plan.

           (l)  Environmental Matters.  (i) Comply, and cause its Subsidiaries
to comply, in all material respects with
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all applicable Environmental Laws, (ii) notify the Agent promptly after
becoming aware of any Adverse Environmental Condition, Environmental Claim or
any other violation of any Environmental Law in connection with the Company's
or any Subsidiaries' properties or facilities which could reasonably be



expected to have a material impact on the Company or materially impair the
value of the Collateral, and (iii) promptly forward to Agent a copy of any
order, notice, permit, application, or any other communication or report
received by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries pursuant to which the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries becomes aware of any actual or potential
Adverse Environmental Condition, Environmental Claim or any other violation
of any Environmental Law which could reasonably be expected to have a
material impact on the Company or materially impair the value of the
Collateral.

           (m)  Note Redemption.  Within six months of the date hereof, the
Agent shall have received evidence satisfactory to the Agent that between
$12,000,000 and $13,000,000 principal amount of the Company's 14.25% Senior
Subordinated Notes due 1998 have been redeemed.

           (n)  Further Assurances.  From time to time at and subsequent to
the date hereof, at the reasonable request of the Agent and without further
consideration, execute and deliver such other instruments of security,
conveyance, assignment and transfer and take such other actions as the Agent
may reasonably request in order more effectively to grant, convey, assign,
and transfer to the Agent and the Banks or their designees the security
interest in the Collateral.

           Section 8.02.  Negative Covenants.  Until the Termination Date, and
thereafter until payment in full of the Notes, Swing Line Advances and all
Reimbursement Obligations, expiration or cancellation of all outstanding
Syndicated Letters of Credit and performance of all other obligations of the
Company hereunder, the Company will not:

           (a)  Transactions with Affiliates.  Enter into, or permit any of
its Subsidiaries to enter into any transaction or series of related
transactions with any Affiliate, other than transactions in the ordinary
course of business which are on terms and conditions substantially as
favorable to the Company or such Subsidiary as would be obtainable by the
Company or such Subsidiary in an arms-length transaction with a Person other
than an Affiliate except (i) payments for management advisory work not in
excess of $375,000, and (ii) the sale of any of the Common Stock of the
Company to any officers or employees of the Company or any of its 
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Subsidiaries or the issuance of options to purchase Common Stock of the
Company.

           (b)  Indebtedness.  Create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any
Indebtedness, or permit any Subsidiary so to do, except (i) Specified
Additional Indebtedness, (ii) Indebtedness of the Company and any Subsidiary
secured by mortgages, encumbrances or liens specifically permitted by Section
8.02(c), (iii) contingent liabilities permitted by Section 8.02(f) and
(iv) Indebtedness existing as of the date hereof and specified on
Schedule 8.02(b) hereto.

           (c)  Mortgages and Pledges.  Create, incur, assume or suffer to
exist, or permit any of its Subsidiaries to create, incur, assume or suffer
to exist, any Lien of any kind upon or in any of its property or assets,
whether now owned or hereafter acquired, except Permitted Encumbrances.

           (d)  Merger, Acquisition or Sales of Assets.  Enter into any merger
or consolidation or acquire assets of any Person, or sell, lease, or
otherwise dispose of any of its assets, except pursuant to an Excluded Asset
Sale, or permit any Subsidiary so to do, except that a Wholly owned
Subsidiary may be merged or consolidated with one or more other Wholly owned
Subsidiaries or into the Company.

           (e)  Business.  Engage, or permit any Subsidiary to engage, in any
business other than its principal business of owning, operating and
franchising restaurants, licensing intellectual property or any business
incidental thereto.



           (f)  Contingent Liabilities.  Assume, guarantee, endorse,
contingently agree to purchase or otherwise become liable upon the obligation
of any other Person, or permit any Subsidiary so to do, except: 

            (i)  in connection with a merger permitted by Section 8.02(d), 

         (ii)  by the endorsement of negotiable instruments for deposit or
     collection or similar transactions in the ordinary course of business, 

        (iii)  Interest Rate Protection Agreements in respect of other
     permitted Indebtedness, which are subordinate to the rights of the Banks
     hereunder in a manner that is acceptable to the Agent, and

         (iv)  Guarantees by the Company of contractual obligations (other
     than for the payment of Indebtedness) of any Wholly owned Subsidiary.
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           (g)  Loans and Investments.  Purchase or acquire the obligations or
stock of, or any other interest in, or make loans, advances or capital
contributions to, or form any joint ventures or partnerships with, any
Person, or permit any Subsidiary so to do, except (i) direct obligations of,
or obligations the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally
guaranteed by, the United States of America with a maturity not exceeding one
year, (ii) certificates of deposit, time deposits, banker's acceptances or
other instruments of a bank having a combined capital and surplus of not less
than $500,000,000 with a maturity not exceeding one year, and
(iii) commercial paper rated at least A-1 or P-1 maturing within one year
after the date of acquisition thereof; and (iv) money market accounts
maintained at a bank having combined capital and surplus of not less than
$500,000,000 or at another financial institution satisfactory to the Agent. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company may:

           (A)  Make loans and advances to officers and employees of the
           Company or any of its Subsidiaries in the ordinary course of
           business in an aggregate amount at any one time outstanding not to
           exceed $2,000,000.

           (B)  Make advances in connection with purchases in the ordinary
           course of business, required deposits in connection with leases and
           otherwise in the ordinary course of business and Consolidated
           Capital Expenditures permitted hereunder.

           (C)  Make investments in joint ventures in an aggregate amount at
           any one time outstanding not to exceed $4,000,000.

           (D)  Make loans and advances to Jack In The Box franchisees in an
           aggregate amount at any one time outstanding not to exceed
           $3,000,000.

           (E)  Generate accounts receivable in the ordinary course of
           business.

           (h)  Corporate Organization.  (i) Create any Subsidiaries not in
existence as of the date hereof; (ii) amend its certificate of incorporation
in any material respect without the written consent of the Agent; or
(iii) change its corporate structure.

           (i)  Dividends and Purchase of Stock.  Declare any dividends (other
than dividends payable in capital stock of the Company) on any shares of any
class of its capital
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stock, or apply any of its property or assets to the purchase, redemption or
other retirement of, or set apart any sum for the payment of any dividends
on, or for the purchase, redemption or other retirement of, or make any other
distribution by reduction of capital or otherwise in respect of, any shares



of any class of capital stock of the Company, or permit any Subsidiary which
is not a Wholly owned Subsidiary so to do, or permit any Subsidiary to
purchase or acquire any shares of any class of capital stock of the Company.

           (j)  Stock of Subsidiaries.  Issue, sell or otherwise dispose of
any shares of capital stock of any Subsidiary (except in connection with a
merger or consolidation of a Wholly owned Subsidiary permitted by Section
8.02(d) or with the dissolution of any Subsidiary) or permit any Subsidiary
to issue any additional shares of its capital stock except pro rata to its
stockholders.

           (k)  Family Restaurants, Inc. Warrants.  Exercise the warrants for
the capital stock of Family Restaurants, Inc.

           (l)  Terms of Indebtedness.  Amend or modify, or permit to be
amended or modified the terms of any Company or Subsidiary Indebtedness for
borrowed money exceeding $5,000,000 or any documents relating thereto in a
manner which would (i) increase the principal amount of such Indebtedness,
(ii) increase the interest borne by such Indebtedness, (iii) shorten the
maturity of such Indebtedness or (iv) elevate, in relation to the Loans,
Swing Line Advances and Syndicated Letters of Credit, the ranking in terms of
payment of such Indebtedness, without prior written consent from the Agent.

           (m)  Prepayment of Debt.  Excluding the partial redemption of the
Company's 14.25% Senior Subordinated Notes due 1998 contemplated in
Section 8.01(m), prepay, redeem, defease (whether actually or in substance)
or purchase in any manner (or deposit or set aside funds or securities for
the purpose of the foregoing) any of the Company's (i) 9.25% Senior Notes due
1999, (ii) 9.75% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2002 or (iii) 14.25% Senior
Notes due 1998, or cause or permit any Subsidiary to do any of the foregoing.

           Section 8.03.  Financial Covenants.  Until the Termination Date,
and thereafter until payment in full of the Notes and all Reimbursement
Obligations, expiration or cancellation of all outstanding Syndicated Letters
of Credit and performance of all other obligations of the Company hereunder,
the Company will
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           (a)  Minimum Consolidated EBITDA.  Maintain Consolidated EBITDA of
not less than the amounts specified for each of the following periods:

              For the Fiscal
              Quarter Ending                       Amount (in
                                                    millions)
           ---------------------                -----------------
                  01/95                               $15.0

            For the Two Fiscal
             Quarters Ending                       Amount (in
                                                    millions)
           ---------------------                -----------------
                  04/95                               $33.0

           For the Three Fiscal                    Amount (in
             Quarters Ending                        millions)
           ---------------------                -----------------
                  07/95                               $55.0

            For the Four Fiscal                    Amount (in
             Quarters Ending                        millions)
           ---------------------                -----------------
                  10/95                               $79.0
                  01/96                                85.0
                  04/96                                92.0
                  07/96                                98.0
                  09/96                               105.0
                  01/97                               111.0



                  04/97                               117.0
                  07/94                               125.0
              and thereafter

           (b)  Capital Expenditures.  Not make or permit its Subsidiaries to
make, during the four quarter period ending at the date specified, aggregate
Consolidated Capital Expenditures other than Consolidated Capital
Expenditures made from the proceeds of sale-leaseback transactions, in an
amount in excess of (i) the amount specified for such period plus (ii) the
lesser of (A) $10,000,000 and (B) the excess, in the immediately preceding
period, of (I) the amount set forth for such period, over (II) actual Capital
Investments, other than those made from the proceeds of sale-leaseback
transactions:

          For the Fiscal 12 Month                  Amount (in 
               Period Ending                        millions)
           ---------------------                -----------------
                  10/95                               $42.0
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          For the Fiscal 12 Month                  Amount (in 
               Period Ending                        millions)
           ---------------------                -----------------
                  09/96                               $58.0
                  09/97                               $62.0
              and thereafter

           (c)  Minimum Interest Coverage Ratio.  Maintain  a ratio of
Consolidated EBITDA to Consolidated Interest Expense of not less than the
ratio specified for each of the following periods:

              For the Fiscal
              Quarter Ending                          Ratio
           ---------------------                -----------------
                  01/95                               1.40:1     

           For the Two Fiscal
            Quarters Ending                           Ratio
           ---------------------                -----------------
                  04/95                               1.50:1     

           For the Three Fiscal
             Quarters Ending                          Ratio
           ---------------------                -----------------
                  07/95                               1.70:1     
                      
           For the Four Fiscal
             Quarters Ending                          Ratio
           ---------------------                -----------------
                  10/95                               1.80:1
                  01/96                               1.90:1
                  04/96                               2.10:1
                  07/96                               2.20:1
                  09/96                               2.30:1
                  01/97                               2.50:1
                  04/97                               2.60:1
                  07/97                               2.80:1
              and thereafter
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           (d)  Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio.  Maintain a ratio of Consolidated
EBITDA to Consolidated Fixed Charges of not less than the ratio specified for
each of the following periods:



              For the Fiscal
              Quarter Ending                          Ratio
           ---------------------                -----------------
                  01/95                               0.70:1

             For the Two Fiscal
              Quarters Ending                         Ratio
           ---------------------                -----------------
                  04/95                               0.70:1

            For the Three Fiscal
              Quarters Ending                         Ratio
           ---------------------                -----------------
                  07/95                               0.80:1

            For the Four Fiscal
             Quarters Ending                          Ratio
           ---------------------                -----------------
                  10/95                               0.80:1

            For the Four Fiscal
              Quarters Ending                         Ratio
           ---------------------                -----------------
                  10/95                               0.80:1
                  01/96                               0.90:1
                  04/96                               0.90:1
                  07/96                               0.90:1
                  09/96                               0.90:1
                  01/97                               1.00:1
                  04/97                               1.10:1
                  07/97                               1.10:1
              and thereafter
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           (e)  Minimum Net Worth.  Have at the end of each of the following
periods Consolidated Net Worth of not less than the amount specified for such
period:

               For the Fiscal
               Quarter Ending                  Amount (in millions)
           ---------------------               -------------------
                  01/95                               $115.0
                  04/95                               $115.0
                  07/95                               $118.0
                  10/95                               $120.0
                  01/96                               $123.0
                  04/96                               $125.0
                  07/96                               $128.0
                  09/96                               $130.0
                  01/97                               $136.0
                  04/97                               $141.0 
                  07/97                               $146.0
             and thereafter

           (f)  Maximum Leverage.  Maintain a ratio of Consolidated Covenant
Indebtedness at the date specified to Consolidated EDITDA for the four
quarters ending at the date specified not in excess of the ratio set forth
below for the applicable period:

          For the Period Ending                       Ratio
          ----------------------                  -------------   
                  10/95                               5.70:1



                  01/96                               5.30:1
                  04/96                               4.90:1
                  07/96                               4.60:1
                  09/96                               4.30:1 
                  01/97                               4.10:1
                  04/97                               3.80:1
                  07/97                               3.60:1
             and thereafter

                                   ARTICLE IX

                                EVENTS OF DEFAULT

           Section 9.01.  Events of Default.  If one or more of the following
events (each, an "Event of Default") shall occur:
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           (a)  Default shall be made in the payment of any installment of
     principal of any Note, Swing Line Advance or Reimbursement Obligation
     when due and payable, whether at maturity, upon mandatory prepayment or
     otherwise; default shall be made in the payment of any installment of
     interest upon any Note or upon any Swing Line Advance, when due and
     payable, and, such default shall have continued for three days; or

           (b)  Default shall be made in the payment of the Commitment Fee or
     any other fee or amount payable hereunder when due and payable and such
     Default shall have continued for three days; or

           (c)  Default shall be made in the due observance or performance of
     any other term, covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement or any
     other Credit Document, and such default shall have continued unremedied
     for a period of 30 days after any officer of the Company becomes aware,
     or should have become aware, of such default; or

           (d)  Any representation or warranty made or deemed made by the
     Company or any of its Subsidiaries herein or in any Credit Document or
     any statement or representation made in any certificate, report or
     opinion delivered by or on behalf of the Company in connection herewith
     or in connection with any other Credit Document shall prove to have been
     false or misleading in any material respect when made; or

           (e)  Default in the payment when due of any principal of, interest
     on or fees incurred in connection with, any Indebtedness of the Company
     or its Subsidiaries in excess of $5,000,000, or default in the
     performance or observance of any other obligation or condition with
     respect to any such Indebtedness, or the occurrence of any other event,
     if the effect of such default or event is to accelerate, or permit the
     acceleration of, the maturity of such Indebtedness; 

           (f)  An involuntary case or other proceeding shall be commenced
     against the Company or any material Subsidiary seeking liquidation,
     reorganization or other relief with respect to it or its debts under any
     applicable Federal or State bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or
     similar law now or hereafter in effect or seeking the appointment of a
     custodian, receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, sequestrator or
     similar official of it or any substantial part of its property, and such
     involuntary case or other
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     proceeding shall remain undismissed and unstayed, or an order or decree
     approving or ordering any of the foregoing shall be entered and
     continued unstayed and in effect, in any such event, for a period of 60
     days; or

           (g)  The commencement by the Company or any material Subsidiaries
     of a voluntary case or proceeding under any applicable Federal or State
     bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other similar law or of any



     other case or proceeding to be adjudicated a bankrupt or insolvent or
     the consent by any of them to the entry of a decree or order for relief
     in respect of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in an involuntary
     case or proceeding under any applicable Federal or State bankruptcy,
     insolvency, reorganization or other similar law or to the commencement
     of any bankruptcy or insolvency case or proceeding against any of them,
     or the filing by any of them of a petition or answer or consent seeking
     reorganization or relief under any applicable Federal or State law, or
     the consent by any of them to the filing of such petition or to the
     appointment of or taking possession by a custodian, receiver,
     liquidator, assignee, trustee, sequestrator or similar official of the
     Company or any of its Subsidiaries or any substantial part of their
     respective property, or the making by any of them of an assignment for
     the benefit of creditors, or the admission by any of them in writing of
     inability to pay their debts generally as they become due, or the taking
     of corporate action by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in
     furtherance of any such action; or

           (h)  One or more judgments against the Company or any of its
     Subsidiaries or attachment against its property, which in the aggregate
     exceed $5,000,000, or the operation or result of which could be to
     interfere materially and adversely with the conduct of the business of
     the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, remain unpaid, unstayed on
     appeal, undischarged, unbonded, or undismissed for a period of 60 days;
     or

           (i)  With respect to any Plan which is a single employer plan, any
     of the following shall occur:  (A) the filing with any affected party as
     such term is defined in Section 4001 of ERISA of a notice of intent to
     terminate the Plan under Section 4041 of ERISA, the adoption of an
     amendment to the Plan if, after giving effect thereto, the Plan is a
     plan described in Section 4021(b) of ERISA, or receipt of notice of an
     application by the PBGC to institute proceedings to
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     terminate the Plan pursuant to Section 4042 of ERISA; in each case, if
     the amount of unfunded benefit liabilities, as such term is defined in
     Section 4001(a)(18) of ERISA, of the Plan as of the date such event
     occurs is more than $1,000,000, (B) the Company or any of its
     Subsidiaries incurs liability under Sections 4062(e), 4063 or 4064 of
     ERISA in an amount in excess of $1,000,000, (C) an amendment is adopted
     to the Plan which would require security to be given to the Plan
     pursuant to Section 401(a)(29) of the Code or Section 307 of ERISA in an
     amount in excess of $1,000,000, or (D) the Company fails to make a
     payment to the Plan which would give rise to a lien in favor of the Plan
     under Section 302(f) of ERISA in an amount in excess of $1,000,000; or

           (j)  Any Credit Document shall for any reason cease to be, or be
     asserted in writing by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries not to be,
     in full force and effect and enforceable in accordance with its terms,
     or any security interest purported to be created in any Collateral by or
     under any Security Document shall, after the making of all appropriate
     filings or notifications necessary to perfect valid and perfected first
     priority Liens thereunder, cease to be a valid and perfected first
     priority Lien in such Collateral, except as expressly contemplated
     herein or by such Security Document;

           (k)  There shall occur a Change of Control;

           (l)  There shall exist on the date hereof, on the date of any Loan
     (including the Initial Loan), on the date of any Swing Line Advance or
     on the date of issuance of any Syndicated Letter of Credit, any
     Environmental Claim Adverse Environmental Condition or any other
     violation of any Environmental Law, which, if it had been known, could
     reasonably have been expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; or

           (m)  At September 30, 1994, the Company shall not have retired the
     Company's 13.5% secured note to Prudential.



then (i) upon the happening and during the continuation of any of the
foregoing Events of Default, the obligation of the Banks to make any further
Loans, the obligation of the Swing Line Bank and the other Banks to make any
further Swing Line Advances and of the Issuing Bank to issue any further
Syndicated Letters of Credit shall terminate upon declaration to that effect
delivered by the Agent or the
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Required Banks to the Company and (ii) upon the happening of any of the
foregoing Events of Default which shall be continuing, all Notes, Swing Line
Advances and all Reimbursement Obligations shall become and be immediately
due and payable upon declaration to that effect delivered by the Agent or the
Required Banks to the Company; provided, that upon the happening of any event
specified in Section 9.01(f) or (g), the Notes, Swing Line Advances and the
Reimbursement Obligations shall become immediately due and payable and the
obligation of the Banks to make any further Loans, the obligation of the
Swing Line Bank and the other Banks to make any further Swing Line Advances
and of the Issuing Bank to issue any further Syndicated Letters of Credit
hereunder shall terminate without declaration or other notice to the Company. 
The Company expressly waives any presentment, demand, protest or other notice
of any kind.

                                   ARTICLE X

                            THE AGENT AND THE BANKS

           Section 10.01.  The Agency.  Each Bank appoints Credit Lyonnais New
York Branch as its Agent and as its Collateral Agent under the Security
Agreement and irrevocably authorizes the Agent, which for purposes of this
Article X shall refer to the Agent and/or Collateral Agent, as appropriate,
to take such action on its behalf and to exercise such powers hereunder and
thereunder as are specifically delegated to the Agent by the terms hereof and
thereof, together with such powers as are reasonably incidental hereto and
thereto, including the execution and delivery by the Agent on behalf of such
Bank of the Security Agreement and any documents related thereto and the
exercise by the Agent of powers delegated to the Agent and the Banks thereby,
and the Agent hereby accepts such appointment subject to the terms hereof. 
The relationship between the Agent and the Banks shall be that of agent and
principal only and nothing herein or therein shall be construed to constitute
the Agent a trustee for any Bank nor to impose on the Agent duties or
obligations other than those expressly provided for herein.

           Section 10.02.  The Agent's Duties.  The Agent shall promptly
forward to each Bank copies, or notify each Bank as to the contents, of all
notices and other communications received from the Company pursuant to the
terms of this Agreement and the other Credit Documents and, in the event that
the Company fails to pay when due the principal of or interest on any Loan,
Swing Line Advance or
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any Reimbursement Obligation, the Agent shall promptly give notice thereof to
the Banks.  As to any other matter not expressly provided for herein or
therein, the Agent shall have no duty to act or refrain from acting with
respect to the Company, except upon the instructions of the Required Banks. 
The Agent shall not be bound by any waiver, amendment, supplement, or modifi-
cation of this Agreement or the other Credit Documents which affects its
duties hereunder and thereunder, unless it shall have given its prior written
consent thereto.  The Agent shall have no duty to ascertain or inquire as to
the performance or observance of any of the terms, conditions, covenants or
agreements binding on the Company pursuant to this Agreement or any other
Credit Document nor shall it be deemed to have knowledge of the occurrence of
any Default or Event of Default (other than a failure of the Company to pay
when due the principal or interest on any Loan), unless it shall have
received written notice from the Company or a Bank specifying such Default or
Event of Default and stating that such notice is a "Notice of Default".

           Section 10.03.  Sharing of Payment and Expenses. All funds for the



account of the Banks received by the Agent in respect of payments made by the
Company pursuant to, or from any Person on account of, this Agreement or any
other Credit Document shall be distributed forthwith by the Agent among the
Banks, in like currency and funds as received, ratably in proportion to their
respective interests therein.  In the event that any Bank shall receive from
the Company or any other source any payment of, on account of, or for or
under this Agreement or any other Credit Document (whether received pursuant
to the exercise of any right of set-off, banker's lien, realization upon any
security held for or appropriated to such obligation or otherwise as
permitted by law) other than in proportion to its Pro Rata Share, then such
Bank shall purchase from each other Bank so much of its interest in
obligations of the Company as shall be necessary in order that each Bank
shall share such payment with each of the other Banks in proportion to each
Bank's Pro Rata Share; provided, that no Bank shall purchase any interest of
any Bank that does not, to the extent that it may lawfully do so, set-off
against the balance of any deposit accounts maintained with it the
obligations due to it under this Agreement; and provided, further, that
nothing herein contained shall obligate any Bank to apply any set-off or
banker's lien or collateral security permitted hereby first to the
obligations of the Company hereunder if the Company is obligated to such Bank
pursuant to other loans or notes, but any such application of proceeds shall
be in proportion to the total obligations of the Company to such Bank.  In
the event that any purchasing Bank shall be required
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to return any excess payment received by it, the purchase shall be rescinded
and the purchase price restored to the extent of such return, but without
interest.

           Section 10.04.  The Agent's Liabilities.  Each of the Banks and the
Company agrees that (i) neither the Agent in such capacity nor any of its
officers or employees shall be liable for any action taken or omitted to be
taken by any of them hereunder except for its or their own gross negligence
or wilful misconduct (provided that the Agent is not thereby exonerated from
its contractual obligations under the Credit Documents), (ii) neither the
Agent in such capacity nor any of its officers or employees shall be liable
for any action taken or omitted to be taken by any of them in good faith in
reliance upon the advice of counsel, independent public accountants or other
experts selected by the Agent (provided that the Agent is not thereby
exonerated from its contractual obligations under the Credit Documents), and
(iii) the Agent in such capacity shall be entitled to rely upon any notice,
consent, certificate, statement or other document (including any telegram,
cable, telex, facsimile or telephone transmission) believed by it to be
genuine and correct and to have been signed and/or sent by the proper
Persons.

           Section 10.05.  The Agent as a Bank.  The Agent shall have the same
rights and powers hereunder as any other Bank and may exercise the same as
though it were not the Agent, and the terms "Bank" or "Banks", unless the
context otherwise indicated, include the Agent in its individual capacity. 
The Agent may, without any liability to account, maintain deposits or credit
balances for, invest in, lend money to and generally engage in any kind of
banking business with the Company or any Subsidiary or affiliate of the
Company as if it were any other Bank and without any duty to account therefor
to the other Banks.

           Section 10.06.  Bank Credit Decision.  Neither the Agent nor any of
its officers or employees has any responsibility for, gives any guaranty in
respect of, nor makes any representation to the Banks as to, (i) the
condition, financial or otherwise, of the Company or any Subsidiary thereof
or the truth of any representation or warranty given or made herein or in any
other Credit Document, or in connection herewith or therewith or (ii) the
validity, execution, sufficiency, effectiveness, construction, adequacy,
enforceability or value of this Agreement or any other Credit Document or any
other document or instrument related hereto or thereto.  Except as
specifically provided herein and in the other Credit Documents to which the
Agent is a party, the Agent shall have no duty or responsibility, either 
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initially or on a continuing basis, to provide any Bank with any credit or
other information with respect to the operations, business, property,
condition or creditworthiness of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries,
whether such information comes into the Agent's possession on or before the
date hereof or at any time thereafter.  Each Bank acknowledges that it has,
independently and without reliance upon the Agent or any other Bank, based on
such documents and information as it has deemed appropriate, made its own
credit analysis and decision to enter into this Agreement and to authorize
the Agent to execute on its behalf the Security Agreement.  Each Bank also
acknowledges that it will independently and without reliance upon the Agent
or any other Bank, based on such documents and information as it shall deem
appropriate at the time, continue to make its own credit decisions in taking
or not taking action under this Agreement or any other Credit Document.

           Section 10.07.  Indemnification.  Each Bank agrees (which agreement
shall survive payment of the Loans and the Notes) to indemnify the Agent, to
the extent not reimbursed by the Company, ratably in accordance with their
respective Commitments or after the Termination Date, their respective Loans
(as of the time of the incurrence of the liability being indemnified
against), from and against any and all liabilities, obligations, losses,
claims, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or
disbursements of any kind or nature whatsoever which may be imposed on,
incurred by, or asserted against the Agent in any way relating to or arising
out of this Agreement or any other Credit Document, or any action taken or
omitted to be taken by the Agent hereunder or thereunder; provided, that no
Bank shall be liable for any portion of such liabilities, obligations,
losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or
disbursements resulting from the gross negligence or wilful misconduct of the
Agent or any of its officers or employees.  Without limiting the foregoing,
each Bank agrees to reimburse the Agent promptly upon demand for its ratable
share of any out-of-pocket expenses (including counsel fees) incurred by the
Agent in such capacity in connection with the preparation, execution or
enforcement of, or legal advice in respect of rights or responsibilities
under, this Agreement or any other Credit Document or any amendments or
supplements hereto or thereto, to the extent that the Agent is not reimbursed
for such expenses by the Company.

           Section 10.08.  Successor Agent.  The Agent may resign at any time
by giving written notice thereof to the Banks and the Company, and the Agent
may be removed at any time by the Required Banks by giving written notice
thereof
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to the Agent, the other Banks and the Company at least 10 Business Days'
prior to the effective date of such removal.  Upon any such resignation or
removal, the Required Banks shall have the right to appoint a successor
Agent.  If no successor Agent shall have been so appointed by the Required
Banks and shall have accepted such appointment within 30 days after the
resigning Agent's giving of notice of resignation, or the Required Banks'
giving notice of removal, as the case may be, the resigning or removed Agent
may, on behalf of the Banks, appoint a successor Agent, which shall be a
commercial bank organized under the laws of the United States of America or
of any State thereof and having a combined capital and surplus of at least
$250,000,000.  Upon the acceptance of any appointment as Agent hereunder by a
successor Agent, such successor Agent shall thereupon succeed to and become
vested with all the rights, powers, privileges and duties of the resigned or
removed Agent, and the resigned or removed Agent shall be discharged from its
duties and obligations under this Agreement.  After any Agent's resignation
or removal hereunder as Agent, the provisions of this Article X shall inure
to its benefit as to any actions taken or omitted to be taken by it while it
was Agent under this Agreement.

                                  ARTICLE XI

                                 MISCELLANEOUS



           Section 11.01.  APPLICABLE LAW.  THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED
BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW
YORK, UNITED STATES OF AMERICA.

           Section 11.02.  Set-off.  As security for its obligations
hereunder, the Company hereby grants to the Agent, the Collateral Agent, the
Issuing Bank, the Swing Line Bank and each Bank a security interest in, lien
upon, and right of set-off against any amounts standing to the credit of the
Company on the books of the Agent, the Collateral Agent, the Issuing Bank,
the Swing Line Bank or such Bank in any deposit or other account maintained
with any branch of the Agent, the Collateral Agent, the Issuing Bank, the
Swing Line Bank or such Bank.

           Section 11.03.  Expenses.  The Company agrees to pay (i) all
out-of-pocket expenses of the Agent and Collateral Agent (including the
reasonable fees and expenses of Sullivan & Cromwell, as counsel to the Agent
and Collateral Agent) in connection with the preparation of this Agreement
and the other Credit Documents and any amendments
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or supplements hereto or thereto and (ii) all reasonable out-of-pocket
expenses incurred by the Agent, the Collateral Agent, the Issuing Bank, the
Swing Line Bank and any Bank and without duplication, reasonable fees and
disbursements of one counsel representing the Agent, the Collateral Agent,
the Issuing Bank, the Swing Line Bank and the Banks in connection with the
administration and enforcement of any provisions of this Agreement, the other
Credit Documents or any amendment or supplement hereto or thereto.  The
Company shall indemnify each Bank against any transfer taxes, documentary
taxes, assessments or charges made by any Governmental Authority by reason of
the execution and delivery of this Agreement or the Credit Documents.

           Section 11.04.  Amendments.  Any provision of this Agreement, the
Notes or the other Credit Documents may be amended or waived if, but only if,
such amendment or waiver is in writing and is signed by the Company and the
Required Banks (and, if the rights or duties of the Agent, the Collateral
Agent, the Issuing Bank or the Swing Line Bank are affected thereby, by the
Agent, the Collateral Agent, the Issuing Bank or the Swing Line Bank,
respectively); provided, that no such amendment, waiver or modification
shall, unless signed by all the Banks, (i) increase or decrease the
Commitment of any Bank or subject any Bank to any additional obligation,
(ii) reduce the principal of or rate of interest on any Loan or any fees
hereunder, (iii) postpone the date fixed for any payment of principal of or
interest on any Loan or any fees hereunder or for any reduction or
termination of any Commitment, (iv) change the percentage of any of the
Commitments or of the aggregate unpaid principal amount of the Notes or Swing
Line Advances or the number of Banks, which shall be required for the Banks
or any of them to take any action under this Section or any other provision
of this Agreement, (v) release all or substantially all of the Collateral or
(vi) amend or waive the provisions of this Section 11.04.

           Section 11.05.  Cumulative Rights and No Waiver.  Each and every
right granted to the Agent, the Collateral Agent, the Issuing Bank, the Swing
Line Bank and the Banks hereunder or under any other document delivered
hereunder or in connection herewith, or allowed them by law or equity, shall
be cumulative and may be exercised from time to time.  No failure on the part
of the Agent, the Collateral Agent, the Issuing Bank, the Swing Line Bank or
any Bank to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right will operate as a
waiver thereof, nor will any single or partial exercise by the Agent, the
Collateral Agent, the Issuing Bank, the Swing Line Bank or any Bank of any
right preclude any other
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or future exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right.

           Section 11.06.  Notices.  Any communication, demand or notice to be
given in writing hereunder or with respect to the Notes will be duly given
when delivered in writing or by telecopy to a party at its address as



indicated below, except that notices from the Company pursuant to Sec-
tion 2.02, 2.07 or 3.01(c) will not be effective until received by the Agent.

           A communication, demand or notice given pursuant to this Sec-
tion 11.06 shall be addressed:

           If to the Company, at

                Foodmaker, Inc.
                9330 Balboa Avenue
                San Diego, California  92123
                Telecopy:   (619) 571-2101
                Attention:  Chief Financial Officer

           With copies to:

                Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher
                750 "B" Street
                Suite 3300
                San Diego, California  92101
                Telecopy:   (619) 544-8190
                Attention:  Rhonda S. Wagner

           If to the Agent, the Collateral Agent, the Issuing Bank, the Swing
Line Bank or any Bank, at its address as indicated on the signature pages
hereof, with a copy to:

                Sullivan & Cromwell
                444 South Flower Street
                Los Angeles, California 90071
                Telecopy:   (213) 683-0457
                Attention:  Alison S. Ressler 

           Unless otherwise provided to the contrary herein, any notice which
is required to be given in writing pursuant to the terms of this Agreement
may be given by telex, telecopy or facsimile transmission.

           Section 11.07.  Separability.  In case any one or more of the
provisions contained in this Agreement shall be invalid, illegal or
unenforceable in any respect under any law, the validity, legality and
enforceability of the
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remaining provisions contained herein shall not in any way be affected or
impaired thereby.

           Section 11.08.  Assignments and Participations.

           (a)  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the Company, the Agent, the Collateral Agent, the Issuing Bank, the Swing
Line Bank and the Banks and their respective successors and assigns, except
that the Company may not assign any of its rights hereunder without the prior
written consent of the Banks.

           (b)  Any Bank may at any time grant to one or more banks or other
institutions (each a "Participant") participating interests in its Commitment
or any or all of its Loans or participation interests in Syndicated Letters
of Credit and drawings thereunder.  In the event of any such grant by a Bank
of a participating interest to a Participant, whether or not upon notice to
the Company and the Agent, such Bank shall remain responsible for the
performance of its obligations hereunder, and the Company and the Agent shall
continue to deal solely and directly with such Bank in connection with such
Bank's rights and obligations under this Agreement.  Any agreement pursuant
to which any Bank may grant such a participating interest shall provide that
such Bank shall retain the sole right and responsibility to enforce the
obligations of the Company hereunder including the right to approve any
amendment, modification or waiver of any provision of this Agreement;
provided, that such participation agreement may provide that such Bank will



not agree to any modification, amendment or waiver of this Agreement
described in clauses (i) through (vi), inclusive, of Section 11.04 without
the consent of the Participant.  The Company agrees that each Participant
shall be entitled to the benefits of Sections 5.03, 5.04 and 11.04 with
respect to its participating interest; provided, that with respect to a
participating interest hereunder, no Participant shall be entitled to receive
any amount pursuant to Section 5.03 or Section 5.04 in excess of the amount
which would have been received with respect to such participating interest by
the Bank from whom such Participant purchased such participating interest
from had such Bank not sold such participating interest to such Participant. 
An assignment or other transfer which is not permitted by clause (c) below
shall be given effect for purposes of this Agreement only to the extent of a
participating interest granted in accordance with this clause (b).  

           (c)  Any Bank may at any time assign to one or more banks or other
institutions (each an "Assignee") all,
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or a proportionate part of all, of its rights and obligations under this
Agreement, and such Assignee shall assume such rights and obligations,
pursuant to an agreement ("Assignment Agreement") executed by such Assignee
and such transferor Bank in substantially the form of the Assignment
Agreement attached as Exhibit K hereto, with (and subject to) the consent of
the Company and the Agent (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld);
provided, however, that any assignment of less than $5,000,000 must either
(1) be to another Bank or (2) represent a complete divestiture of the Bank's
interest in the Facility; provided, that the foregoing consent requirement
shall not be applicable in the case of, and this subsection (c) shall not
restrict, an assignment or other transfer by any Bank to a Federal Reserve
Bank.  Upon (i) execution and delivery of an Assignment Agreement,
(ii) payment by such Assignee to such transferor Bank of an amount equal to
the purchase price agreed between such transferor Bank and such Assignee and
(iii) payment to the Agent of an administrative fee of $3,500, such Assignee
shall be a Bank party to this Agreement and shall have all the rights and
obligations of a Bank with a Commitment as set forth in such instrument of
assumption, and the transferor Bank shall be released from its obligations
hereunder to a corresponding extent, and no further consent or action by any
party shall be required.  Upon the consummation of any assignment pursuant to
this subsection (c), the transferor Bank, the Agent and the Company shall
make appropriate arrangements so that, if required, new Notes are issued to
the Assignee.

           (d)  No Assignee, Participant or other transferee of any Bank's
rights shall be entitled to receive any greater payment under Section 5.03 or
5.04 than such Bank would have been entitled to receive with respect to the
rights transferred, unless such Assignee became a party to this Agreement
with the Company's prior written consent or by reason of the provisions of
Section 5.04 requiring such Bank to designate a different lending office
under certain circumstances or at a time when the circumstances giving rise
to such payment did not exist.

           Section 11.09.  WAIVER OF JURY; CONSENT TO JURISDICTION.

           (a)  THE COMPANY, THE AGENT, THE COLLATERAL AGENT, THE ISSUING BANK
AND EACH OF THE BANKS HEREBY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY JUDICIAL PROCEEDING
INVOLVING, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, ANY MATTER (WHETHER SOUNDING IN TORT,
CONTRACT OR OTHERWISE) IN ANY WAY ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO, OR CONNECTED
WITH THIS AGREEMENT, THE NOTES, THE SYNDICATED
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LETTERS OF CREDIT, THE SECURITY DOCUMENTS OR THE RELATIONSHIPS ESTABLISHED
HEREUNDER.

           (b)  Each of the Company, the Agent and each of the Banks hereby
irrevocably submits to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of any state or federal
court in the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York for the purpose of
any suit, action, proceeding or judgment relating to or arising out of this
Agreement and each other Credit Document.  The Company hereby appoints CT



Corporation System, 1633 Broadway, New York, New York 10019 and the Agent and
each Bank hereby also appoints CT Corporation System, 1633 Broadway, New
York, New York 10019 as their respective authorized agent on whom process may
be served in any action which may be instituted against any of them in any
state or federal court in the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York,
arising out of or relating to any Loan or this Agreement and each other
Credit Document.  Service of process upon such authorized agent and written
notice of such service to the Company or the Agent and each Bank, as the case
may be, shall be deemed in every respect effective service of process upon
the Company, the Agent or any Bank as the case may be, and the Company, the
Agent and each of the Banks hereby irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction
of any such court in any such action and to the laying of venue in the
Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York.  The Company, the Agent and each
Bank hereby irrevocably waives any objection to the laying of the venue of
any such suit, action or proceeding brought in the aforesaid courts and
hereby irrevocably waives any claim that any such suit, action or proceeding
brought in any such court has been brought in an inconvenient forum. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall in any way affect the
right of the parties hereto to bring any action arising out of or relating to
the Loans or this Agreement and each other Credit Document in any competent
court elsewhere having jurisdiction.

           Section 11.10.  Confidentiality.  Except as may be required to
enforce the rights and duties established hereunder (including establishing
and maintaining the Agent's and the Banks' perfected security interest in the
Collateral), the parties hereto shall preserve in a confidential manner all
information received from the other pursuant to this Agreement, the Credit
Documents and the transactions contemplated hereunder and thereunder, and
shall not disclose such information except to those persons with which a
confidential relationship is maintained (including regulators, legal counsel,
accountants, or designated agents), or where required by law.
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           Section 11.11.  Extension of Termination Date.  If for the four
quarter period ending six months prior to the third anniversary of the date
of this Agreement the Company has a Consolidated EBITDA of not less than
$140,000,000, the Company may extend the Termination Date to the fourth
anniversary of the date of this Agreement by (i) giving written notice on or
before the date five months prior to the third anniversary of the date of
this Agreement of its election to so extend the Termination Date and
(ii) paying, on or before the third anniversary of the date of this
Agreement, an extension fee equal to 0.25% of each Bank's Commitment (the
"Extension Fee") to the Agent for the account of each Bank.

           Section 11.12.  Indemnity.  The Company agrees to indemnify the
Agent, the Collateral Agent, the Issuing Bank, the Swing Line Bank and each
of the Banks and each of their respective Affiliates and their respective
directors, officers, employees and agents (each such person being called an
"Indemnitee") against, and to hold each Indemnitee harmless from, any and all
losses, claims, damages, liabilities and related expenses, including counsel
fees and expenses, incurred by or asserted against any Indemnitee arising out
of, in any way connected with, or as a result of (i) the execution or
delivery of this Agreement or any other Credit Document or any agreement or
instrument contemplated hereby or thereby, the performance by the parties
thereto of their respective obligations hereunder or thereunder or the
consummation of the transactions and the other transactions contemplated
hereby or thereby, (ii) the use of the proceeds of the Loans or (iii) any
claim, litigation, investigation or proceeding relating to any of the fore-
going, whether or not any Indemnitee is a party thereto; provided that such
indemnity shall not, as to any Indemnitee, be available to the extent that
such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or related expenses are determined
by a court of competent jurisdiction by final and nonappealable judgment to
have resulted from the gross negligence or wilful misconduct of any
Indemnitee.  In case any proceeding should be instituted involving any
Indemnitee, such Indemnitee shall promptly notify any Indemnitor in writing
thereof, provided that the failure to provide such notice shall not relieve
the Indemnitor from any liability to the Indemnitee unless such failure shall



materially prejudice the Indemnitor.  The Indemnitor shall not be liable for
any settlement of any proceeding effected without its written consent, which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

           The provisions of this Section 11.12 shall remain operative and in
full force and effect regardless of the expiration of the term of this
Agreement, the consummation
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of the transactions contemplated hereby, the repayment of any of the Loans,
the reduction or cancellation of the Commitment, the invalidity or
unenforceability of any term or provision of this Agreement or any other
Credit Document, or any investigation made by or on behalf of the Banks.  All
amounts due under this Section 11.12 shall be payable in immediately
available funds upon written demand therefor.

           Section 11.13.  Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be
executed in any number of counterparts and by the different parties hereto on
separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be
an original, but all the counterparts shall together constitute one and the
same instrument.
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           IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement
to be duly executed as of the date first above written.

                                    FOODMAKER, INC.

                                    By: CHARLES DUDDLES
                                       ---------------------------
                                       Name:   Charles Duddles
                                       Title:  Chief Financial Officer

                                    CREDIT LYONNAIS, NEW YORK BRANCH,
                                      as Agent for the Banks

                                    By: FREDERICK HADDAD
                                       ---------------------------
                                       Name:   Frederick Haddad
                                       Title:  Senior Vice President

                                    Address for Notices:

                                    1301 Avenue of the Americas
                                    New York, New York 10016
                                    Attn:  Mark Koneval
                                    Fax:   (212) 459-3176

                                    With copies to:

                                    Credit Lyonnais Los Angeles Branch
                                    515 South Flower Street
                                    Los Angeles, California 90071
                                    Attn:  David Miller
                                    Fax:   (213) 623-3437

                                    Sullivan & Cromwell
                                    444 South Flower Street
                                    Suite 1200
                                    Los Angeles, California 90071



                                    Attn:  Alison S. Ressler
                                    Fax:   (213) 683-0457
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Commitment: $35,000,000             CREDIT LYONNAIS NEW YORK BRANCH
                                    Signing as a Bank, Swing Line Bank
                                    and Collateral Agent

                                    By: FREDERICK HADDAD
                                       ---------------------------
                                       Name:   Frederick Haddad
                                       Title:  Senior Vice President

                                    Address for Notices:

                                    1301 Avenue of the Americas
                                    New York, New York 10016
                                    Attn:  Mark Koneval
                                    Fax:   (212) 459-3176

                                    With copies to:

                                    Credit Lyonnais Los Angeles Branch
                                    515 South Flower Street
                                    Los Angeles, California 90071
                                    Attn:  David Miller
                                    Fax:   (213) 623-3437

                                    Sullivan & Cromwell
                                    444 South Flower Street
                                    Suite 1200
                                    Los Angeles, California 90071
                                    Attn:  Alison S. Ressler
                                    Fax:   (213) 683-0457
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Commitment: $10,000,000             UNITED STATES NATIONAL BANK
                                    OF OREGON

                                    By: JANET E. JORDAN
                                       ---------------------------
                                       Name:   Janet E. Jordan
                                       Title:  Vice President

                                    Address for Notices:

                                    111 S.W. Fifth Avenue, T-29
                                    Portland, Oregon  97204

                                    Attn:  Janet E. Jordan
                                    Fax:   (503) 275-5428

                                    Eurodollar Lending Office:

                                    111 S.W. Fifth Avenue, T-29
                                    Portland, Oregon  97204

                                    Attn:  Janet E. Jordan



                                    Fax:   (503) 275-5428
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Commitment: $7,500,000              UNION BANK as a Bank and as the
                                    Issuing Bank

                                    By: ALI PASHA MOGHADDAM
                                       ---------------------------
                                       Name:   Ali Pasha Moghaddam
                                       Title:  Vice President

                                    Address for Notices:

                                    445 South Figueroa Street
                                    15th Floor
                                    Los Angeles, California  90071

                                    Attn:  Wendy Frear
                                    Fax:   (213) 236-6701

                                    Eurodollar Lending Office:
                                    445 South Figueroa Street
                                    15th Floor
                                    Los Angeles, California  90071

                                    Attn:  Wendy Frear
                                    Fax:   (213) 236-6701



                                                       EXHIBIT 10.1.1

                              FIRST AMENDMENT TO
                          REVOLVING CREDIT AGREEMENT

          THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE REVOLVING CREDIT AGREEMENT
("Amendment") is made as of December 14, 1994, among Foodmaker, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (the "Company"), each of the banks identified on the
signature pages hereof (each a "Bank" and, collectively, the "Banks"), Credit
Lyonnais New York Branch, as Agent,  Collateral Agent, and Swing Line Bank
and Union Bank, as Issuing Bank.  

                              W I T N E S S E T H
                              - - - - - - - - - -
          WHEREAS, the Company, the Banks, the Agent, the Collateral Agent,
the Swing Line Bank and the Issuing Bank entered into the Revolving Credit
Agreement, dated as of July 26, 1994 (the "Credit Agreement"); and

          WHEREAS, the signatories hereto desire to amend the Credit
Agreement as set forth herein;

          NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the
covenants and agreements contained herein and in the Credit Agreement, the
parties hereto agree that the Credit Agreement is hereby amended as set forth
herein:

          1.  Capitalized terms used herein which are not otherwise defined
herein but are defined in the Credit Agreement shall have the meanings given
to such terms in the Credit Agreement.

          2.  Section 8.03 of the Credit Agreement is amended to read in its
entirety as follows:

               Section 8.03.  Financial Covenants.  Until the Termination
     Date, and thereafter until payment in full of the Notes and all
     Reimbursement Obligations, expiration or cancellation of all outstanding
     Syndicated Letters of Credit and performance of all other obligations of
     the Company hereunder, the Company will

               (a)  Minimum Consolidated EBITDA.  Maintain Consolidated
     EBITDA of not less than the amounts specified for each of the following
     periods:

                 For the Fiscal
                 Quarter Ending                   Amount (in
                                                   millions)
         -------------------------------       ------------------
                     01/95                            $15

                For the Two Fiscal
                 Quarters Ending                  Amount (in
                                                   millions)
         -------------------------------       ------------------
                     04/95                            $33

                For the Three Fiscal              Amount (in
                 Quarters Ending                   millions)
         -------------------------------       ------------------
                     07/95                            $55

                For the Four Fiscal               Amount (in
                 Quarters Ending                   millions)



         -------------------------------       ------------------
                     10/95                            $75
                     01/96                            $80
                     04/96                            $84
                     07/96                            $89
                     09/96                            $95 
                     01/97                           $100
                     04/97                           $106
                     07/97                           $113
                     09/97                           $120
                 and thereafter

               (b)  Capital Expenditures.  Not make or permit its
     Subsidiaries to make, during the fiscal year ending at the date
     specified, aggregate Consolidated Capital Expenditures other than
     Consolidated Capital Expenditures made from the proceeds of sale-
     leaseback transactions ("Net Capital Expenditures"), in an amount in
     excess of (i) the amount specified below for such period plus (ii) the
     lesser of (A) $10,000,000 and (B) the excess, in the immediately
     preceding period, of (I) the amount set forth below for such period,
     over (II) actual Capital Investments, other than those made from the
     proceeds of sale-leaseback transactions:
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                For the Fiscal                    Amount (in 
                  Year Ending                      millions)
         -------------------------------       ------------------
                     10/95                            $37
                     09/96                            $43
                     09/97                            $45
                and thereafter

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 8.03(b), if Consolidated
EBITDA equals or exceeds $86,000,000 for the fiscal year ending October 1995,
Net Capital Expenditures for the fiscal year ending September 1996 may equal
up to $58,000,000, and if Consolidated EBITDA equals or exceeds $109,000,000
for the fiscal year ending September 1996, Net Capital Expenditures for the
fiscal year ending September 1997 may equal up to $62,000,000.

               (c)  Minimum Interest Coverage Ratio.  Maintain  a ratio of
     Consolidated EBITDA to Consolidated Interest Expense of not less than
     the ratio specified for each of the following periods:

                For the Fiscal
                 Year Ending                         Ratio
         -------------------------------       ------------------
                     01/95                           1.15:1

               For the Two Fiscal
                Quarters Ending                      Ratio
         -------------------------------       ------------------
                     04/95                           1.35:1

              For the Three Fiscal
                Quarters Ending                      Ratio
         -------------------------------       ------------------
                     07/95                           1.50:1

               For the Four Fiscal
                Quarters Ending                      Ratio
         -------------------------------       ------------------
                     10/95                           1.60:1
                     01/96                           1.75:1
                     04/96                           1.85:1
                     07/96                           2.00:1
                     09/96                           2.10:1
                     01/97                           2.20:1
                     04/97                           2.30:1



                     07/97                           2.50:1
                     09/97                           2.60:1
                and thereafter
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               (d)  Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio.  Maintain a ratio of
     Consolidated EBITDA to Consolidated Fixed Charges of not less than the
     ratio specified for each of the following periods:

                For the Fiscal
                Quarter Ending                       Ratio
         -------------------------------       ------------------
                     01/95                           0.65:1

              For the Two Fiscal
                Quarters Ending                       Ratio
         -------------------------------       ------------------
                     04/95                            0.70:1

             For the Three Fiscal
               Quarters Ending                        Ratio
         -------------------------------       ------------------
                     07/95                            0.80:1

              For the Four Fiscal
                Quarters Ending                       Ratio
         -------------------------------       ------------------
                     10/95                            0.80:1

              For the Four Fiscal
                 Quarters Ending                      Ratio
         -------------------------------       ------------------
                     01/96                            0.90:1
                     04/96                            0.90:1
                     07/96                            0.90:1
                     09/96                            0.90:1
                     01/97                            1.00:1
                     04/97                            1.10:1
                     07/97                            1.10:1
                     09/97                            1.20:1
                 and thereafter

               (e)  Minimum Net Worth.  Have at the end of each of the
     following periods Consolidated Net Worth of not less than the amount
     specified for such period:

                For the Fiscal
                Quarter Ending                 Amount (in millions)
         -------------------------------       ---------------------
                     01/95                            $90
                     04/95                            $90
                     07/95                            $90
                     10/95                            $90
                     01/96                            $85
                     04/96                            $85
                     07/96                            $90
                     09/96                            $95
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                     01/97                            $90
                     04/97                            $90
                     07/97                           $105
                     09/97                           $110
                 and thereafter

          (f)  Maximum Leverage.  Maintain a ratio of Consolidated Covenant
Indebtedness at the date specified to Consolidated EBITDA for the four
quarters ending at the date specified not in excess of the ratio set forth



below for the applicable period:

                For the Fiscal
                Quarter Ending                        Ratio
                --------------                        -----
                     10/95                            5.70:1
                     01/96                            5.60:1
                     04/96                            5.30:1
                     07/96                            4.90:1
                     09/96                            4.60:1
                     01/97                            4.30:1
                     04/97                            4.10:1
                     07/97                            3.80:1
                     09/97                            3.50:1
                 and thereafter

          3.  Section 8.01(m) of the Credit Agreement is amended to read in
its entirety as follows:

          (m)  Note Redemption.  Within six months of the date hereof, the
Agent shall have received evidence satisfactory to the Agent that (A) between
$12,000,000 and $13,000,000 principal amount of the Company's 14.25% Senior
Subordinated Notes due 1998 have been redeemed, (B) between $15,000,000 and
$16,000,000 principal amount of the Company's 9.75% Senior Subordinated Notes
due 2002 have been redeemed at a price no greater than 80% of such principal
amount, or (C) some combination of principal amounts of notes described in
(A) and (B) that yields a minimum interest savings (net of redemption
premiums) over the thirty-two month period ending September 30, 1997 of
$3,900,000, provided that the total amount spent on retirement of principal
does not exceed $13,000,000.  

          4.  The definitions of "Consolidated Fixed Charges" and
"Consolidated Net Worth" are amended to read in their entirety as follows:
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          "Consolidated Fixed Charges" shall mean, for any period, the sum,
without duplication, of (i) Consolidated Interest Expense for such period,
(ii) principal amounts of all Indebtedness of the Company and its
Subsidiaries scheduled to be paid during such period and (iii) Consolidated
Capital Expenditures, excluding Consolidated Capital Expenditures made with
the proceeds from sale leaseback transactions, made during such period;
provided, however, that for the fiscal quarter ending January 22, 1995
Consolidated Fixed Charges shall not include the aggregate principal amount
of, and any interest and premium on, the Company's 14.25% Senior Subordinated
Notes due 1998 and 9.75% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2002 redeemed pursuant
to Section 8.01(m) hereof.

          "Consolidated Net Worth" shall mean the excess of Consolidated
Total Assets over Consolidated Total Liabilities; provided, that there shall
be excluded from Consolidated Total Assets (i) cash set apart and held in a
sinking or other analogous fund established for the purpose of redemption or
other retirement of capital stock; (ii) any revaluation or other write-up in
book value of assets subsequent to October 3, 1993 and (iii) cumulative gains
or losses from minority interests in Family Restaurants, Inc. as of fiscal
year end 1994.

          5.  THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK, UNITED STATES OF AMERICA.

          6.  This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts
and by the different parties hereto on separate counterparts and each such
counterpart shall be deemed to be an original, but all such counterparts
shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.  When counterparts
of this Amendment executed by each party shall have been lodged with the
Agent (or, in the case of any Bank as to which an executed counterpart shall
not have been so lodged, the Agent shall have received telegraphic, telex or
other written confirmation of execution of a counterpart hereof by such



Bank), this Amendment shall become effective as of the date hereof and the
Agent shall so inform all of the parties hereto.

          7.  The Credit Agreement, as amended hereby, shall be binding upon
the Company, the Banks, the Agent, the Collateral Agent, the Swing Line Bank
and the Issuing Bank and their respective successors and assigns, and shall
inure to the benefit of the Company, the Banks, the Agent, the Collateral
Agent, the Swing Line Bank and the Issuing Bank and their respective
successors and assigns.
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          8.  Except as expressly provided in this Amendment, all of the
terms, covenants, conditions, restrictions and other provisions contained in
the Credit Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.
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          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment
to be executed as of the date first above written.

                                          FOODMAKER, INC.

                                          By: CHARLES DUDDLES
                                              -------------------------
                                          Name:  Charles Duddles
                                          Title: Chief Financial Officer

                                          CREDIT LYONNAIS NEW YORK BRANCH
                                          as Agent for the Banks

                                          By: FREDERICK HADDAD
                                              -------------------------
                                          Name:  Frederick Haddad
                                          Title: Senior Vice President

                                          CREDIT LYONNAIS NEW YORK BRANCH
                                          as Collateral Agent for the Banks

                                          By: FREDERICK HADDAD
                                              -------------------------
                                          Name:  Frederick Haddad
                                          Title: Senior Vice President

                                          CREDIT LYONNAIS NEW YORK BRANCH
                                          as a Bank and as the Swing Line Bank

                                          By: FREDERICK HADDAD
                                              -------------------------
                                          Name:  Frederick Haddad
                                          Title: Senior Vice President
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                                          UNITED STATES NATIONAL BANK OF
                                            OREGON

                                          By:___________________________
                                          Name:  Janet E. Jordan
                                          Title: Vice President

                                          UNION BANK as a Bank and as the
                                            Issuing Bank

                                          By: ALI PASH MOGHADDAM
                                              -------------------------
                                          Name:  Ali Pash Moghaddam
                                          Title: Vice President
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<ARTICLE> 5
<LEGEND>         FISCAL YEAR 1994 IS 52 WEEKS 
<MULTIPLIER> 1000
       
                                     
<PERIOD-TYPE>                   YEAR
<FISCAL-YEAR-END>                          OCT-02-1994
<PERIOD-START>                             OCT-04-1993
<PERIOD-END>                               OCT-02-1994
<CASH>                                          35,965
<SECURITIES>                                         0
<RECEIVABLES>                                   28,568
<ALLOWANCES>                                     4,173
<INVENTORY>                                     25,319
<CURRENT-ASSETS>                               107,486
<PP&E>                                         574,585
<DEPRECIATION>                                 135,607
<TOTAL-ASSETS>                                 740,285
<CURRENT-LIABILITIES>                          147,530
<BONDS>                                        447,822
<COMMON>                                           401
<PREFERRED-MANDATORY>                                0
<PREFERRED>                                          0
<OTHER-SE>                                      99,650
<TOTAL-LIABILITY-AND-EQUITY>                   740,285
<SALES>                                      1,014,749
<TOTAL-REVENUES>                             1,053,326
<CGS>                                          410,349
<TOTAL-COSTS>                                  928,511
<OTHER-EXPENSES>                                     0
<LOSS-PROVISION>                                     0
<INTEREST-EXPENSE>                              55,201
<INCOME-PRETAX>                               (33,258)
<INCOME-TAX>                                     3,010
<INCOME-CONTINUING>                           (36,268)
<DISCONTINUED>                                       0
<EXTRAORDINARY>                                (3,302)
<CHANGES>                                            0
<NET-INCOME>                                  (39,570)
<EPS-PRIMARY>                                   (1.03)
<EPS-DILUTED>                                   (1.03)
        


	10-K (JACK IN THE BOX INC /NEW/) (December 30, 1994)
	10-K
	PART I
	ITEM 1. BUSINESS
	ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
	ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
	ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
	ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
	ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
	ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
	ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
	ITEM 9. DISAGREEMENTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

	PART III
	ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
	ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
	ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
	ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
	ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
	Item 5, a press release dated November 9, 1994 announcing the Company's
	ITEM 14(c) All required exhibits are filed herein or incorporated by

	SIGNATURES

	EX-10.1 (REVOLVING CREDIT AGREEMENT)
	EX-10.1.1 (FIRST AMENDMENT TO REVOLVING CREDIT AGREEMENT)
	EX-27 (ARTICLE 5 FDS FOR FISCAL YEAR 1994 10-K)


